
           

REGULAR WORK SESSION & MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

May 24, 2016

ADDISON TOWN HALL
5300 BELT LINE RD., DALLAS, TX 75254

5:30 PM DINNER & EXECUTIVE SESSION

6:00 PM WORK SESSION

7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING
             

Executive Session
 

1.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with
its attorney(s) on a matter in which the duty of the attorney(s) to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551,
Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban
Green Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District
Court, Dallas County, Texas

  

Attorney Client Privilege In Regards To Open Records Requests
  

Mayor's Newsletter
 

↵



 

2.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into
Regular Session to consider action, if any, on any matter discussed in
Executive Session.

 

WORK SESSION
 

3.   Presentation And Discussion Of A Public Art Policy.
 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

4. Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any topic
not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and
submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation. Speakers are
allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with fifteen (15) total
minutes on items of interest or concern and not on items that are on the
current agenda. In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City
Council cannot take action on items not listed on the agenda. The Council
may choose to place the item on a future agenda.

 

5.   Present A Proclamation Declaring May 20, 2016 As Put On Purple
Day For Lupus Awareness Month.    

 

6.   Present A Proclamation Declaring May As Motorcycle Safety And
Awareness Month.   

 

Consent Agenda:



Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted
by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will
be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

7.   Consider Approval Of The April 26, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.   
 

8.   Consider A Resolution Adopting A Public Art Policy.
 

9.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into
A Professional Services Agreement With Garver, LLC, To Complete
A Detailed Assessment and Evaluation of the Kellway Sanitary
Sewer Lift Station And To Develop A Capital Improvement Program
For The Contract Amount of $81,488.

 

10.   Consider Approval Of Bid #1603-001 From American Landscape
Systems, Inc. For Landscape Maintenance Of Addison Circle District
And Addison Circle Park In An Amount Not To Exceed $135,000.

 

11.   Consider Approval Of Change Order 6 To John Burns Construction,
Inc. For The Belt Line Road Underground Utilities Project In An
Amount Not To Exceed $129,950.

 

12.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into
A Contract With Kleinfelder, Inc., For Design And Construction
Observation Services For the Surveyor Ground Storage Tank
Rehabilitation and Pipeline Improvements Project In The Amount of
$243,969.

 

13.   Consider A Resolution For A Proposal For The Naming Rights To
The Main Space Of The Addison Theatre Centre .

 

Regular Items
 

14.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, Consider, And Take Action Regarding
The Termination Of The Mayor's Weekly Newsletter.

 

15.   Discuss And Consider Action Needed For Reimbursement Of Legal



15.   Discuss And Consider Action Needed For Reimbursement Of Legal
Expenses For The Mayor's Defense Of Complaints Filed With The
Texas Ethics Commission That The Mayor's Newsletter Is "Political
Advertising."

 

16.   Discuss And Consider A Resolution For Installation Of The "Lost In
Wisconsin" Public Art Piece At The Southeast Corner of Beltway
and Proton Drives.

 

17.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, Consider And Approve An Ordinance
Establishing Standards Of Care For Youth Recreation Programs
Conducted By The Town For Elementary Age Children Ages 5
Through 13; Providing For Compliance With Section 42.041(b)(14)
Of The Texas Human Resources Code.

 

18.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance
Approving A Special Use Permit For A Restaurant And A Special
Use Permit For The Sale Of Alcoholic Beverages For On-Premises
Consumption Only, On Property Located At 5290 Belt Line Road,
Suite 115 On Application From Gyu KaKu.Case 1736-SUP/Gyu Kaku.

 

19.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance
Amending Ordinance No. O07-034 As Amended By Ordinance No.
O13-026 That Zones That Area Of The Town Known As Vitruvian
Park And Containing Approximately 121 Acres Of Land Generally
Located At The Southeast Corner Of Marsh Lane And Spring Valley
Road In Order To Adopt A New Concept Plan, Add Additional
Permitted Uses, And Revise Various Development Standards, On
Application From UDR . Case 1735-Z/UDR.

 

20.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discussion And Consider Action On An 
Ordinance Approving A Development Plan For The Construction Of
383 Multi-Family Units And An Amenity Center, Located on 5.091
Acres On The North East Corner Of Vitruvian Way And Marsh Lane,
On Application From UDR . Case 1734-Z/Vitruvian West Phase I.

 

21.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discussion And Consider Action On An 



21.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discussion And Consider Action On An 
Ordinance Approving A Development Plan For The Redevelopment
Of Approximately 86,310 Square Feet Of Retail Space Within The
Brookhaven Village Shopping Center Located On The South East
Corner Of Spring Valley Road And Marsh Lane, On Application
From UDR . Case 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village Shopping Center.

 

22.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance
Approving A Development Plan For The Development The Addison
Grove Project Including A Site Plan, Landscape Plan And Building
Elevations And Floor Plans For 57 Townhomes In Accordance With
The Planned Development District (PD), Established By Ordinance
No. O16-003 On Property Located At 4150 Belt Line Road, On
Application From Fenway Development, Inc . Case 1729-Z/Addison
Grove Block B

 

23.   Presentation And Discuss The Belt Line Utility Relocation Update.
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

 

Posted:
Laura Bell, 5/20/2016, 9:00 pm
  
THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.

PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST
48 HOURS IN ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.



   
AI-1684     Item #   1.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney(s)
on a matter in which the duty of the attorney(s) to the governmental body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly
conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban Green
Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District Court, Dallas
County, Texas

  

Attorney Client Privilege In Regards To Open Records Requests
  

Mayor's Newsletter

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a

↵



   
AI-1685     Item #   2.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider
action, if any, on any matter discussed in Executive Session.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A



   
AI-1623     Item #   3.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Presentation And Discussion Of A Public Art Policy.

BACKGROUND:
The Public Art Policy was drafted by Staff in 2013, in conjunction with the Addison Arbor
Foundation, and has served as the unofficial policy for accepting, displaying, acquiring
and maintaining works in the Town of Addison. Council action on this item will make the
Public Art Policy an official Town document.

Public Art has been identified and encouraged in the 2013 Town of Addison
Comprehensive Plan and through the long-range vision for the Town in the 2020 and
2030 Strategic Vision Plan. 

The 2030 Vision Project placed public art and design aesthetics in the recommended
"A" list priorities.  The vision states, "recommit Addison to the promotion and installation
of design aesthetics in all public spaces to include landscaping and public art. "Design
matters" is a phrase the 2030 Committee members used repeatedly in this regard."

The 2020 Vision Project 'encourages the development of the Arts and art in public
spaces'  and the 2013 Comprehensive Land Use Plan has a goal of "incorporating public
art into the community in a way that is strategic, selective, and impactful.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
Accession Record
Proposed Policy



ADDISON PUBLIC ART ARCHIVES
16801 Westgrove Drive, Addison, Texas 75001

(972) 450-2851

ACCESSION RECORD 

ACCESION INFORMATION:

Accession Number:_________________ 

Date:_________________________ 

Date received:____________________ 

Location: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Received from:_________________________________________________________________________ 

Address and telephone:__________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Accession Title: ________________________________________________________________________ 

Provenance:___________________________________________________________________________

Biographical information: ________________________________________________________________ 

CONTENTS: 

__  Public Art __  Paintings, Prints, Drawings 

__ Other (describe)___________________________________________

ARTIST INFORMATION

Artist Name: __________________________________________________________________________

Name of Art Piece: _____________________________________________________________________

Artist Location:________________________________________________________________________

Date of Creation: ______________________________________________________________________

Material: _____________________________________________________________________________

Description:___________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

 



ACQUISITION INFORMATION

__ Donation  __ Transfer 

__ Purchase /$:________________ __ Other: _________________________________________

Restrictions:___________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Donor Name(s) :________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

Notes:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date acknowledged: ____________________________________________________________________ 

Archivist:______________________________________________________________________________

Insurable Value:________________________________________________________________________



TOWN OF ADDISON POLICY ON PUBLIC ART

The Town of Addison recognizes the cultural importance of public art and its impact on our Town’s 
identity, economy, and community. The Town will continue to maintain a policy of encouraging 
donated works for public display. Policies and guidelines included in this document provide a general 
direction when the Town is making decisions about public art; however, the policies and guidelines 
are intended to be flexible, are not absolute, and may be changed or modified by the City Council as 
deemed appropriate.

PUBLIC ART      POLICY OUTLINE 
I. PUBLIC ART PURPOSE AND GOALS
II. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR ACCEPTING DONATED WORKS OF ART
III. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PURCHASING PUBLIC ART
IV. PROCESS
V. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES
VI. DE-ACCESSION AND STORAGE GUIDELINES

I. PUBLIC ART PURPOSE AND GOALS
a.    The goal of this public art policy is to update our current standards of conservation 

and bring public art back to its original intent of:

I. Making art accessible to the citizens of the Town

II. Visually improving public spaces in Addison

III. Supporting the arts community 
b.   In keeping with the long-range vision for the Town, as set forth by the 2020 and 2030

Vision Plans, public art will improve our parks and central nodes, be integrated into 
new developments, and encourage a walkable, urban feel.

II. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR ACCEPTING DONATED WORKS OF ART – In evaluating 
the acceptance of a donated work of art, the following will serve as general 
guidelines:
a.    Residents, businesses, or nonprofits interested in donating a sculpture to the Town 

shall contact the Addison Arbor Foundation regarding donation.
 b.  A citizen or group of citizens, such as the The Addison Arbor Foundation, may bring 

forth an original work of art to be considered for acceptance and public display by the
Town. The Town shall make no financial commitment when acquiring legal ownership
of the work. Prior to accepting a work of art, the Town shall require the Private Donor
to provide recent appraisal documentation, or valuation by the artist. Residents, 
businesses, or nonprofits interested in donating a sculpture to the Town shall 
contact the Addison Arbor Foundation regarding donation.



bc.   Works of art should be accessible and appropriate for viewing by all citizens, and be
of high, enduring quality and reflect the values of the community and the Addison 
Way, inviting visitors and making residents feel at home.

cd. The quality of work and cost of maintenance will be considered by the Town 
when evaluating acceptance of a work of art.

de.   The Town will have discretion in determining whether or not to accept, where to 
locate, how to maintain, and all other matters pertaining to donated works of art. A 
specific location and placement of the work may be proposed along with the 
donation. Donated works of art should visually enhance and complement the area of 
proposed placement, including the relation to other works of art in the space, such as 
a Town park, trail, or gateway into the community.

III. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PURCHASING PUBLIC ART
a.    The Town of Addison may purchase existing works of art or commission new works of 

art through an artist selection process.

b.   Payment for works of art will be in accordance with State and Town purchasing 
guidelines.

c. The same general guidelines for accepting donated works of art apply to purchased or 
commissioned works; however, other guidelines and standards may be applied.

IV. PROCESS 
a. The Addison Arbor Foundation and Parks Department   will review proposals from potential

donors or artists through the selection process. They will work with citizens and groups to 
ensure the proposed work of art is appropriate and aligns with Town goals and guidelines 
for public art. 

b.   The Parks Department and the Addison Arbor Foundation will determine an appropriate 
location for the work. 

c.  The Addison Arbor Foundation will present the proposed public art and location to 
Council.  Council action is required before: accepting works of art; commissioning artists; 
or any other work related to the installation of public art.

d. If both the acceptance of the public art piece and site plan are approved, a contractor 
approved by the Town will install the work. The Parks Department will oversee the 
installation of the art piece, administration and general maintenance once the art piece is 
accessioned and ownership conveyed to the Town of Addison (if applicable).

V. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES
a.    The Addison Arbor Foundation (or other person or entity, pursuant to an agreement with 

the Town) is responsible for the costs associated with the design and installation of the 
public art. This includes all surveys, easements/license agreement requirements, 
structural, electrical, landscape and any other elements associated with the public art.   
Construction documents will be submitted and reviewed by staff prior to the installation of
new public art.  A contractor approved by the Town will install the work. 



b.   The Town shall be responsible for the general administration, maintenance and care of

the public art once installed.
c. The Parks Department shall keep proper records of inventory, including an accession 

ledger (Attached as Exhibit ‘A’).
d.   A sign or plaque may be placed permanently near the work to identify the artist, title,

year made, and materials  (if  known). The identifying sign should not detract from the
work visually and should match the existing sculpture monoliths.

e.   The Parks Department shall conduct an inventory of public art every five years. 
f. The Town of Addison may insure the work.
g. Upon installation of the Public Art and associated elements, the Addison Arbor 

Foundation (or other person or entity, pursuant to an agreement with the Town) 
shall convey ownership of the Public Art to the Town of Addison.

VI. DE-ACCESSION AND STORAGE GUIDELINES
a.    De-accessioning an art piece means removing it from the collection permanently. The 

decision to remove a piece should not be taken lightly. De-accessioning may be 
considered when one or more of the following is true:
1.   The art piece is damaged beyond reasonable repair, destroyed, or stolen.
2.   The art piece is believed to be fraudulent.
3.   The art piece is a safety liability.
4.   The art piece has been in storage for more than two years with no plans to display it in

the future.
b.   The Parks Department may recommend that a work of art be de-accessioned, and shall 

present their recommendations for consideration of approval by the Town Council.
1.   Should de-accession be approved, the artist, if known, may be notified in writing of 

the de-accession and provided an opportunity to acquire the work of art.
2.   The Town may seek professional guidance to sell the art piece, subject to the rules and

regulations for the disposal of property set forth in the Town Purchasing Manual.
c. A work of art on public display may be put into storage by the Parks Department if it requires 

repair or restoration. It may also be moved to storage if the site where it is located must be 
renovated or altered and the renovation or alteration cannot be made without moving the art
piece.
1.   The storage facility must maintain proper standards of security and shelter for the 

art piece.
2.   When an art piece must go into storage, a timeline should be in place for its eventual 

return to public view. An art piece should not go to storage indefinitely; once the art 
piece has reached the maximum time of two years in storage, it is eligible for de-
accession.



   
AI-1679     Item #   5.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present A Proclamation Declaring May 20, 2016 As Put On Purple Day For
Lupus Awareness Month.    

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1678     Item #   6.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present A Proclamation Declaring May As Motorcycle Safety And Awareness
Month.   

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1683     Item #   7.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of The April 26, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.   

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a

Attachments
Minutes



OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY
COUNCIL

WORK SESSION
April 26, 2016
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254
5:30 PM Executive Session
6:00 PM Work Session 
7:30 PM Regular Meeting
 

Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Mayor Meier; Moore; Wilcox 
 

               

Executive Session
 

  1.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney:

(A): to seek advice about (a) pending litigation or contemplated
litigation; or (b) a settlement offer 

Town of Addison v. Ashton Dallas Residential, LLC Cause
No. CC-15-01583-E
Town of Addison v. Ashton Dallas Residential, LLC Cause
No. CC-15-01588-A

(B): on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of
the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov.
Code, pertaining to 

The ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park located within the
vicinity and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and
Ponte Ave., and Farmers Branch Creek
4150 Beltway

Section 551.087: To deliberate commercial or financial information
that was received from a business prospect that seeks to locate, stay
or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body, and with
which the governmental body is conducting economic development
negotiations. 

Addison Grove Development Agreement

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 5:30 pm.

Council recessed out of Executive Session at 5:56 pm.
Councilmember Carpenter moved to settle the claim as discussed
in Executive Session for Town of Addison v Ashton Dallas
Residential, LLC Cause No CC-15-01583-E & Town of Addison v
Ashton Dallas Residential, LLC Cause No. CC-15-01588-A.
Councilmember Arfsten seconded the motion.
The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

Council reconvened into Executive Session at 5:47 pm.
Council recessed out of Executive Session at 7:13 pm.



Council recessed out of Executive Session at 7:13 pm.
 

  2.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter
discussed in Executive Session.
 

  

 

WORK SESSION
 
 

  3.   Present And Discuss Updates On Taste Addison 2016.   

 
  This item was not discussed due to time constraints for the meeting.
 

  4.   Present An Update On The Master Transportation Plan And
Discuss Appointments To The Master Transportation Plan
Advisory Committee.

  

 
  Mayor & Council made their nominations to the Master

Transportation Plan Committee. Staff will reach out to these
members in the next few weeks to inform them of their appointment.

There is a companion item on the agenda creating the committee
and allowing members to be appointed.

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

 Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

 Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 

  6.   Presentation Of Appreciation for City Prosecutor Larry McCallum.   

 

 Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 
  Mayor Pro Tem Moore made a motion to approve Items 7-9 on The



  Mayor Pro Tem Moore made a motion to approve Items 7-9 on The
Consent Agenda. Councilmember Arfsten seconded the motion.

The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.
 

  7.   Consider Approval Of The March 22, 2016 Regular Meeting
Minutes.

  

 

  8.   Consider Approval Of An Ordinance Amending Chapter 46 (Health
and Sanitation) Article II (Food) In Order To Adopt The 2015
Texas Food Establishment Rules With Local Amendments .
 

  

 

  9.   Consider Approval Of Consent To Assignment Of Ground Lease
#0560-1201 (Addison Express II, L.P.) Commonly Known As
4500 Claire Chennault Drive To Cutter Aviation Deer Valley I,
L.P. And Its Creation Of A Leasehold Mortgage.
 

  

 

Regular Items
 

  10.   Consider Approval Of A Resolution For The Appointments To The
Master Transportation Plan Advisory Committee.
 

  

 
  This item was discussed during the Work Session. This item is to

approve the appointment of members to the committee.

Councilmember Hughes made a motion to approve Item #10 as
presented.  Councilmember Carpenter seconded the motion.

The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

 
 

  11.   Discuss, Consider, And Approve A Resolution Approving An
Incentive Agreement With Beltline Beltway Investments, Ltd.
and Urban Intownhomes, LLC For The Addison Grove
Redevelopment Project At 4150 Belt Line Road Commonly
Known As The Former Sam's Wholesale Club Property And
Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Contract..
 

  

 
  Councilmember Wilcox made a motion to approve Item #12 as

submitted and discussed in Executive Session. Councilmember
Hughes seconded the motion.

Councilmember Hughes asked for clarification on the parameters of
this agreement and if everything was in line with the Letter of Intent
presented in January.

City Attorney Brenda McDonald stated that the agreement
formalizes the parameters contained in the Letter of Intent.

Council voted 7-0 in favor of the motion.
 

  12.   Presentation And Acceptance Of The Fiscal Year 2015   



  12.   Presentation And Acceptance Of The Fiscal Year 2015
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

  

 
  Interim CFO, Scott Neils, presented Sara Dempsey from the

auditing firm, Weaver, to present the findings for the report.

Ms. Dempsey presented the report and findings to Council.

Councilmember Carpenter moved to accept the report as
presented. Councilmember Arfsten seconded the motion.

The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.
 

  13.   Presentation And Discussion Of Final Report From Kanter
Forensics, LLC.
 

  

 
  Mr. Larry Kanter, of Kanter Forensics, presented his final report to

Council. He stated that he was pleased with the progress made by
staff and the recommendations that have been implemented.

Mr. Kanter agreed that changes will continue to happen as the
Finance and Municipal Court staff finds the perfect balance of
controls and staffing needs.

Council agreed they were pleased with the outcome of the report
and thanked Mr. Kanter for his service.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any
decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



   
AI-1627     Item #   8.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider A Resolution Adopting A Public Art Policy.

BACKGROUND:
The Public Art Policy was drafted by Staff in 2013, in conjunction with the Addison Arbor
Foundation, and has served as the unofficial policy for accepting, displaying, acquiring
and maintaining works in the Town of Addison. Council action on this item will make the
Public Art Policy an official Town document.

Public Art has been identified and encouraged in the 2013 Town of Addison
Comprehensive Plan and through the long-range vision for the Town in the 2020 and
2030 Strategic Vision Plan. 

The 2030 Vision Project placed public art and design aesthetics in the recommended
"A" list priorities.  The vision states, "recommit Addison to the promotion and installation
of design aesthetics in all public spaces to include landscaping and public art. "Design
matters" is a phrase the 2030 Committee members used repeatedly in this regard."

The 2020 Vision Project 'encourages the development of the Arts and art in public
spaces'  and the 2013 Comprehensive Land Use Plan has a goal of "incorporating public
art into the community in a way that is strategic, selective, and impactful. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  ADOPTING  AND  APPROVING  A  PUBLIC  ART
POLICY  FOR  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON  AND  PROVIDING  AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Addison City Council recognizes the importance of displaying public
art in the community and the cultural impact that public art can have on the Town of Addison’s
identity, economy and community; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the Town
of Addison and its residents to adopt a Public Art Policy for accepting, displaying, acquiring and
maintaining works of art donated to the Town of Addison.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. That  the  Town of  Addison  Policy  on  Public  Art,  a  copy of  which  is
attached hereto as Exhibit A, should be, and is hereby approved and adopted by the City Council
as the Town’s Policy on Public Art. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 24th day of May, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



TOWN OF ADDISON POLICY ON PUBLIC ART 
 

The Town of Addison recognizes the cultural importance of public art and its impact on our Town’s 

identity, economy, and community. The Town will continue to maintain a policy of encouraging 

donated works for public display. Policies and guidelines included in this document provide a general 

direction when the Town is making decisions about public art; however, the policies and guidelines are 

intended to be flexible, are not absolute, and may be changed or modified by the City Council as 

deemed appropriate. 

 

PUBLIC ART POLICY OUTLINE  

I. PUBLIC ART PURPOSE AND GOALS 

II. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR ACCEPTING DONATED WORKS OF ART 

III. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PURCHASING PUBLIC ART 

IV. PROCESS 

V. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES 
VI. DE-ACCESSION AND STORAGE GUIDELINES 

 
 
 

I. PUBLIC ART PURPOSE AND GOALS 

a.    The goal of this public art policy is to update our current standards of conservation 

and bring public art back to its original intent of: 

I. Making art accessible to the citizens of the Town 

II. Visually improving public spaces in Addison 

III. Supporting the arts community  

b.   In keeping with the long-range vision for the Town, as set forth by the 2020 and 2030 

Vision Plans, public art will improve our parks and central nodes, be integrated into 

new developments, and encourage a walkable, urban feel. 
 
 

II. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR ACCEPTING DONATED WORKS OF ART – In evaluating 

the acceptance of a donated work of art, the following will serve as general 

guidelines: 

a.    Residents, businesses, or nonprofits interested in donating a sculpture to the Town 

shall contact the Addison Arbor Foundation regarding donation. 

b.  The Addison Arbor Foundation, may bring forth an original work of art to be 

considered for acceptance and public display by the Town. The Town shall make no 

financial commitment when acquiring legal ownership of the work. Prior to accepting 

a work of art, the Town shall require the Private Donor to provide recent appraisal 

documentation, or valuation by the artist.  

c.   Works of art should be accessible and appropriate for viewing by all citizens, and be 

of high, enduring quality and reflect the values of the community and the Addison 

Way, inviting visitors and making residents feel at home. 

d. The quality of work and cost of maintenance will be considered by the Town 



when evaluating acceptance of a work of art. 

e.   The Town will have discretion in determining whether or not to accept, where to 

locate, how to maintain, and all other matters pertaining to donated works of art. A 

specific location and placement of the work may be proposed along with the donation. 

Donated works of art should visually enhance and complement the area of proposed 

placement, including the relation to other works of art in the space, such as a Town 

park, trail, or gateway into the community. 
 
 

III. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PURCHASING PUBLIC ART 

a.    The Town of Addison may purchase existing works of art or commission new works of 

art through an artist selection process. 

b.   Payment for works of art will be in accordance with State and Town purchasing 

guidelines. 

c. The same general guidelines for accepting donated works of art apply to purchased or 

commissioned works; however, other guidelines and standards may be applied. 

 
IV. PROCESS  

a.  The Addison Arbor Foundation and Parks Department will review proposals from potential 

donors or artists through the selection process. They will work with citizens and groups to 

ensure the proposed work of art is appropriate and aligns with Town goals and guidelines 

for public art.  

b.   The Parks Department and the Addison Arbor Foundation will determine an appropriate 

location for the work.  

c.   The Addison Arbor Foundation will present the proposed public art and location to 

Council.  Council action is required before: accepting works of art; commissioning artists; 

or any other work related to the installation of public art. 

d. If both the acceptance of the public art piece and site plan are approved, a contractor 
approved by the Town will install the work. The Parks Department will oversee the 
installation of the art piece, administration and general maintenance once the art piece is 
accessioned and ownership conveyed to the Town of Addison (if applicable). 

 
 

V. INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES 

a.    The Addison Arbor Foundation (or other person or entity, pursuant to an agreement with 

the Town) is responsible for the costs associated with the design and installation of the 

public art. This includes all surveys, easements/license agreement requirements, 

structural, electrical, landscape and any other elements associated with the public art.   

Construction documents will be submitted and reviewed by staff prior to the installation of 

new public art.  A contractor approved by the Town will install the work.  

b.   The Town shall be responsible for the general administration, maintenance and care of 

the public art once installed. 

c. The Parks Department shall keep proper records of inventory, including an accession 

ledger (Attached as Exhibit ‘A’). 



d.   A sign or plaque may be placed permanently near the work to identify the artist, title, 

year made, and materials (if known). The identifying sign should not detract from the 

work visually and should match the existing sculpture monoliths. 

e.   The Parks Department shall conduct an inventory of public art every five years.  

f. The Town of Addison may insure the work. 

g.  Upon installation of the Public Art and associated elements, the Addison Arbor 

Foundation (or other person or entity, pursuant to an agreement with the Town) 

shall convey ownership of the Public Art to the Town of Addison. 
 
 

VI. DE-ACCESSION AND STORAGE GUIDELINES 

a.    De-accessioning an art piece means removing it from the collection permanently. The 

decision to remove a piece should not be taken lightly. De-accessioning may be 

considered when one or more of the following is true: 

1.   The art piece is damaged beyond reasonable repair, destroyed, or stolen. 

2.   The art piece is believed to be fraudulent. 

3.   The art piece is a safety liability. 

4.   The art piece has been in storage for more than two years with no plans to display it in 

the future. 

b.   The Parks Department may recommend that a work of art be de-accessioned, and shall 

present their recommendations for consideration of approval by the Town Council. 

1.   Should de-accession be approved, the artist, if known, may be notified in writing of 

the de-accession and provided an opportunity to acquire the work of art. 

2.   The Town may seek professional guidance to sell the art piece, subject to the rules and 

regulations for the disposal of property set forth in the Town Purchasing Manual. 

c. A work of art on public display may be put into storage by the Parks Department if it requires 

repair or restoration. It may also be moved to storage if the site where it is located must be 

renovated or altered and the renovation or alteration cannot be made without moving the art 

piece. 

1.   The storage facility must maintain proper standards of security and shelter for the 

art piece. 

2.   When an art piece must go into storage, a timeline should be in place for its eventual 

return to public view. An art piece should not go to storage indefinitely; once the art 

piece has reached the maximum time of two years in storage, it is eligible for de-

accession. 
 

 



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1586     Item #   9.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A
Professional Services Agreement With Garver, LLC, To Complete A Detailed
Assessment and Evaluation of the Kellway Sanitary Sewer Lift Station And
To Develop A Capital Improvement Program For The Contract Amount of $81,488.

BACKGROUND:
The Town owns a sanitary sewer lift station located on Kellway Circle.  Since sewer
services are designed to flow on a gravity basis, it is sometimes necessary to install a lift
station that will pump wastewater or sewage from a lower elevation to a higher elevation
so that it can continue to flow by gravity.  The Town's sewer system feeds into the
Kellway Lift Station and is there lifted to a higher elevation so that it can continue to flow
by gravity from there. 

The Kellway Lift Station was built in 1998 to convey wastewater from the northern part of
Town south into a deep sewer tunnel system that is then treated at a Trinity River
Authority (TRA) wastewater treatment plant.  This facility houses very complex
components, such as pumps, motors, intricate piping, complex electrical and control
systems, and detailed structural elements.  Town staff performs routine maintenance of
the facility based on industry best practices and monitors the operations of the pumps
and motors.  These measures help to ensure that the various assets remain viable
components of the lift station throughout their normal service lives.  Although staff can
perform these routine tasks, more in-depth assessments should be performed by
specialized wastewater engineers and contractors. To date, an assessment has never
been performed on this facility. As part of our overall asset management program, we
are currently performing assessments of all the infrastructure facilities to determine their
general state of repair and develop a comprehensive capital improvement
program. Garver, LLC is qualified to perform these services. 

As a part of this assessment, Garver will perform the following services: 

Prepare and perform an asset inventory
Assess each asset and document its condition including structural, electrical
and instrumentation, and process and mechanical sub-fields
Provide improvement recommendations for the Town's computerized
monitoring system Supervisory Controls and Data Acquisition System
(SCADA)
Evaluate and recommend capacity and process control improvements
Evaluate the facilities current compliance with the Texas Administrative Code



Evaluate the facilities current compliance with the Texas Administrative Code
(TAC) Chapter 217
Provide opinion of probable costs for projects
Prepare Capital Improvements Plan (CIP)

A detailed description of each task can be found in the Exhibit A Scope of Services in the
agreement that is attached.

Upon completion of this assessment and evaluation the Town will be able to incorporate
the CIP recommendations into the overall Utility Fund CIP.  This CIP will be the basis for
future funding and rate discussions.

The overall project is expected to take 6 months to complete upon receipt of the notice to
proceed (NTP).  The cost for the project is not expected to exceed $81,488 and is
budgeted for in the Utilities Capital Projects Fund. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution and Professional Engineer Services Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING THE AGREEMENT FOR 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES BETWEEN THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON AND GARVER, LLC FOR ASSESSMENT OF AN 
EXISTING WASTEWATER LIFT STATION, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the Town 
of Addison and Garver, LLC for assessment of an existing Wastewater Lift Station, a copy of 
which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is 
hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this 
the 24th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
       ___________________________  
       Todd Meier, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Laura Bell, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



   
AI-1658     Item #   10.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of Bid #1603-001 From American Landscape Systems, Inc. For 
Landscape Maintenance Of Addison Circle District And Addison Circle Park
In An Amount Not To Exceed $135,000.

BACKGROUND:
Bid #1603-001 is an annual renewable contract that can be extended for four (4)
twelve-month periods under the same terms and conditions as the original contract.  The
scope of work involved under this contract includes turnkey maintenance of all planted
trees, shrubs, turf, groundcover, annuals, perennials, irrigation, mulch and decomposed
granite within the Addison Circle District. 

The bidder's were requested to submit a unit cost for: turnkey maintenance, irrigation
pricing; application of post emergent and pre-emergent herbicides; fertilizer application;
minor tree pruning; manual weeding; hardwood mulch; cedar mulch; mowing; tree
fertilization; supplemental hand watering; pesticide application; irrigation checks and
repairs; emptying trash receptacles; aerifications; seasonal color; overseeding; and,
application of TopChoice.  Heavy tree pruning has been removed from this bid in order
to minimize the cost increase in the bid award.  Any heavy tree pruning will be done
utilizing the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Coppell.

Based on the total of the bid items, American Landscape Services is the low bidder.  In
addition to being the low bidder, American Landscape Services has successfully
maintained the Addison Circle District since the Fall of 2004. The bid amount is $46,800
higher than the previous contract with American.  The increase is based on two
major factors: 1) Labor Costs - the contractor did not receive any consumer price index
(CPI) increases over the course of the 5 year contract, and 2) Material Costs.  Upon
approval, the increase will be included in the Fiscal Year 2017 budget.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No: Yes
Funding Source: General Fund - Parks Department Operating Budget
Amount: $135,000



Attachments
Bid Summary #1603-001
Contract



Line Item Description Unit

American Carruthers Terracare

1 Turnkey Maintenance Lump Sum 121,275.00$      116,000.00$       291,815.00$     

2 Irrigation Pricing Hourly Rate 85.00$                65.00$                 90.00$               

3

Application of Post‐

emergent Herbicides Per Acre 125.00$               175.00$               166.00$              

4

Application of Pre‐

emergent Herbicides Per Acre 85.00$                 225.00$               255.00$              

5 Fertilizer Application Per Acre 165.00$              225.00$               190.00$             

6 Minor Pruning Lump Sum 4,200.00$           3,500.00$            1,381.00$          

7 Manual Weeding Lump Sum 3,600.00$           3,500.00$            863.00$             

8 Hardwood Mulch Per Square Foot 0.55$                   10,000.00$         0.60$                  

9 Cedar Mulch One Application 410.00$              3,500.00$            0.60$                  

10 Mowing Per Acre 70.00$                75.00$                 87.00$               

11 Tree Fertilization Each 11.00$                45.00$                 23.00$               

12

Supplementa Hand

Watering Per Hours 35.00$                 35.00$                 62.00$                

13 Pesticide Application Per Acre 65.00$                225.00$               264.00$             

14

Irrigation Checks & 

Repairs Each 2,500.00$            12,000.00$         2,435.00$           

15 Emptying Trash Cans Lump Sum 55.00$                1,200.00$            220.00$             

16 Aerifications Per Acre 435.60$              81.00$                 166.00$             

17 Seasonal Color Lump Sum 810.00$              2,500.00$            746.00$             

18 Overseeding Lump Sum 370.00$              1,200.00$            466.00$             

19 TopChoice Application Per Acre 285.00$              2,500.00$            591.00$             

TOTALS 134,582.15$   157,051.00$   299,821.20$  

    Pricing

Bid #1603‐001
Landscape Maintenance Addison Circle District and Addison Circle Park







   
AI-1657     Item #   11.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of Change Order 6 To John Burns Construction, Inc. For
The Belt Line Road Underground Utilities Project In An Amount Not To Exceed
$129,950.

BACKGROUND:
Change order 6 proposes a shift of work from Oncor to John Burns Construction for the
installation of concrete pads. This change order will not increase the overall project cost
or add additional time, but will increase the payment to John Burns Construction.

Construction on the Belt Line Road Utility Relocation from Marsh Lane to Midway Road
began in late 2014.  The project includes removing the overhead power and
telecommunication lines and placing them in underground concrete duct structures. 
There are also a number traffic signal, sidewalk, ramp, and Americans with Disabilities
(ADA) improvements in the project as well.

Council has previously approved 4 change orders for this project:

Change Order #1 approved the addition of 180 days (6 months) of construction time and
a $27,972 cost increase for concrete due to the delay from the time of bid award to the
placement of the concrete order.  This was due to the decision to delay the award of
the bid and hold public meetings concerning the overall project budget.

Change Order #2 was never finalized and therefore was voided.

Change Order #3 upgraded the pedestrian crossings along Belt Line Road to
incorporate new ADA regulations.  The new pedestrian buttons will include audible
notifications.  The increase contract amount for Change Order #3 was $31,990 and
added no additional time.

Change Order #4 was for the cost to remove contaminated soils encountered during
excavation operations on the west side of the intersection of Belt Line Road and Marsh
Lane.  The increased contract amount for Change Order #4 was $11,172 and added 10
days to the contract time.

Change Order #5 included several items:  additional duct bank conduit to aid in tying the
north and south sections of telecommunication duct banks together, additional tree
removal and replacement to remove the double row of trees located in several medians
with a single row of high-rise live oaks, installation of updated traffic detection equipment



at the Business Drive and Marsh Lane intersections, and the shifting of the AT&T cable
installation (pulling) effort from AT&T to John Burns Construction.

Change Order #6 proposes to shift some of the installation work from Oncor Electric to
John Burns Construction (JBC).  During the initial bid for the project, the installation of
the concrete pads on which the electrical transformers and switch gears will sit was to be
the responsibility of the successful bidder.  The bid amount to perform this work was
$139,260.  Since only one bid was received in the first bid posting, the project was
re-bid.  In the second bid posting the installation of these concrete pads was shifted
to Oncor to perform as part of the agreement with them.   We do not have bid prices from
Oncor, but they concurred that the bid amount was in line with their costs.  Due to recent
workload demands, Oncor has now indicated that their construction crews are behind
schedule on other projects and they are not available to do the Belt Line work in the
timeframe that we need.  The installation of the concrete pads is critical to being able to
move forward on the rest of the construction activities.  Therefore, we proposed to Oncor
that John Burns Construction do this work instead as was originally intended.  Oncor
has agreed to this change.   This change will allow us to maintain the current schedule
for completion of the civil construction as December 2016.  John Burns has also agreed
to perform this work at cost, with no markup.  The original bid amount for this work was
anticipated to be $139,260.  John Burns will now do the work for $129,950, a savings of
$9,310 from the original bid price. The change also has no impact on the schedule for
completion of the project.

The attached change order has been reviewed by Town staff and the project manager
and it has been found to be fair and reasonable.  Completion of the John Burns
Construction related work is currently set for December 2016.  Once JBC's construction
contract work has been completed, Oncor and the telecom companies will remove their
wires from the overhead poles.  Oncor will then remove the poles after all of the lines
have been taken down.

The overlay of Belt Line will be bid upon the completion of the JBC construction contract
work and is estimated to take 8-10 months for full construction after bids are received.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Change Order Doc
Map







vstigliano
Text Box
6











   
AI-1571     Item #   12.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract
With Kleinfelder, Inc., For Design And Construction Observation Services
For the Surveyor Ground Storage Tank Rehabilitation and Pipeline
Improvements Project In The Amount of $243,969.

BACKGROUND:
In 2012, the Town issued a Request For Qualifications to qualify a pool of professional
engineers that could be utilized for various Town projects. Kleinfelder Inc,. was selected
as one of these firms. In September 2013, Council authorized a contract with Kleinfelder
Inc., to perform an assessment and evaluation of all of the Town's water storage
facilities. The purpose of this assessment and evaluation was to inspect and assess the
external and internal condition of the water storage facilities and to develop a capital
improvement program that would include recommendations for prioritization and an
opinion of probable cost for each of the identified projects.  That report, dated May 14,
2014, identified several projects that were considered important to maintain and
preserve the physical assets that support the Town of Addison's water storage
operations, programs, and services.

All projects identified in the report were entered into a Likelihood of
Failure/Consequence of Failure priority matrix.  The projects were then prioritized based
on the overall risk factor as identified in the matrix.  According to that matrix, the top
priority was the repairs to the Addison Circle Elevated Storage Tank.  Those repairs
were completed in early 2015.  The second highest priority is the repairs to the Surveyor
Ground Storage Tank (GST).
 
  The scope of the Surveyor project will include replacement of the exterior coating on
the roof of the ground storage tank, repairs to several areas of failed concrete on both
the interior and exterior of the ground storage tank, several safety and operational
improvements, and the installation of a secondary pipe that is used to fill the storage
tank. 
 
The Town owns four water storage facilities and listed below are the projects ranked in
priority order: 

Addison Circle Elevated Storage Tank - 1 million gallons- COMPLETE
Surveyor Ground Storage Tank - 2 million gallons
Celestial Ground Storage Tank - 6 million gallons
Surveyor Elevated Storage Tank - 1.5 million gallons



Staff recommends that Kleinfelder design the improvements and provide construction
management for the project.  Below is a list of the services they will perform : 

Preparation of the plans and specifications
Coordination with outside agencies, such as Dallas Water Utilities and the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Opinion of probable construction cost
Design project management
Assistance during the bid phase
Assistance during the construction phase
Construction observation
Construction materials testing

 A detailed description of each task can be found in the Exhibit A Scope of Services in
the agreement that is attached.

The total budget for the design services is $300,000. The design and project
management services will be provided for the amount of $188,400.  The construction
observation services will be charged on a time and materials basis and are not expected
to exceed $55,569.  This amount will not be exceeded without prior approval.  The total
estimated amount of the contract is not expected to exceed $243,969  Funding for this
project was included in the FY2016 Utility Fund CIP budget.
The Surveyor Ground Storage tank is located at Surveyor and Arapaho. 

The design for this project is budgeted in the Utilities Capital Projects Fund and is
expected to take 6 months.  The project will begin in June 2016.

Next steps:  Once design is complete the Town will request bids from contractors to
complete the rehabilitation and pipeline improvements.  Based on the current design
scope, construction is estimated to take 12 months.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution and Professional Engineer Services Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING THE AGREEMENT FOR 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES BETWEEN THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON AND KLEINFELDER, INC FOR DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT OF THE REHABILITATION OF A 
SURVEYOR GROUND STORAGE TANK AND PIPELINE 
IMPROVEMENTS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the Town 
of Addison and Kleinfelder, Inc. for design and construction management of the rehabilitation of 
a surveyor ground storage tank and pipeline improvements, a copy of which is attached to this 
Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute 
the agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this 
the 24th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
       ___________________________  
       Todd Meier, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Laura Bell, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



   
AI-1661     Item #   13.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Conference & Theatre

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider A Resolution For A Proposal For The Naming Rights To The Main
Space Of The Addison Theatre Centre.

BACKGROUND:
At the April 12 Regular Meeting, the City Council approved the Naming Rights Policy for
the Addison Theatre Centre that authorizes the WaterTower Theatre exclusive rights to
the naming of areas within the Theatre in exchange for donations.  The WaterTower
Theatre received a proposal from James and Michael Canterbury and would like to name
the Main Stage "The Canterbury Family Main Stage".  The Canterbury's pledged
$50,000 paid over a five year period in annual installments of $10,000 for the naming
rights. 

Holly Canterbury  was a resident of the Town of Addison for more than 25
years and contributed in many ways to the Addison community.  Holly was one of the
founding members of the Addison Business Association, serving one of the longest
terms in its history as Treasurer and President.  Holly also started the original Carnival at
Addison's Oktoberfest.  Theatre was also one of Holly's passions and she was an
instrumental supporter of WaterTower Theatre’s as one of its original subscribers, a
member its Board of Directors, and a founding member of Women of WaterTower.  Her
belief in the importance of the arts to our community was demonstrated by the impact of
her many years of support to WaterTower Theatre and, especially, by the enduring
legacy of her lead gift to establish WaterTower Theatre’s Endowment Fund in 2012. 
Holly Canterbury passed away on September 1, 2012.  Her two sons, James and
Michael, have pledged to carry on Holly's legacy.  Michael joined the WaterTower
Theatre board in 2013 and has been a leading donor to WaterTower Theatre.  The
Canterbury's are major donors to the company who consistent support for and interest in
our work is an inspiration to all on the board and within the company.

Per the adopted policy, the donor must submit a proposal to WaterTower Theatre. The
WaterTower Theatre Board must approve the donor's proposal before submitting it to the
Town of Addison. Once approved by the Board, the application is reviewed by Town staff
and then placed on the next possible regular agenda of the City Council for final
approval.

For additional information, see the attached Application and Naming Rights Policy.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval. 



Administration recommends approval. 

Attachments
Application
Theatre Naming Rights Policy
Resolution











Addison Theatre Centre 

Naming Rights

POLICY
It is the policy of the Town of Addison that the naming rights to areas within the Addison Theatre Centre
be reserved for donors providing monetary gift  donations to the WaterTower Theatre and that the
naming process comply and adhere to the guidelines and procedures stated in this policy.   



Addison Theatre Centre – Naming Rights Policy – cont’d 

PURPOSE
These policies and procedures are intended to a) establish a consistent and systematic naming rights
policy for the Addison Theatre Centre; b) establish the areas that may be named within the Addison
Theatre Centre; c) provide potential donors, the WaterTower Theatre, and the Town of Addison with the
criteria, standards, and process for 1) approval or denial of proposal; 2) duration of the naming rights; 3)
installation; and 4) removal of the recognition. 

NAMING CRITERIA & STANDARDS
The naming of areas within the Addison Theatre Centre is solely reserved for  donors who have made
substantial  financial  contributions  to  the  WaterTower  Theatre.   The  term  “donors”  comprises
individuals,  corporations  and  other  organizations.   The  following  criteria  and  standards  will  be
incorporated into the process and procedures of this naming rights policy: 

1) The Town will  consider proposals  from the WaterTower Theatre for naming rights,  but it  is
under no obligation to approve a proposal.  

2) The duration of the naming rights is a maximum of five years as agreed upon by the donor and
the WaterTower Theatre.  The duration begins the day of the recognition plaque installation.  

3) Donor  gifts  are  exclusive  to  the  WaterTower  Theatre  and  will  be  restricted  to  either  its
Endowment Fund or Cash Reserves Fund.  

4) Names of the areas within the Addison Theatre Centre will portray a positive image of the Town
of Addison.  

5) Names shall not: 
a. Be associated with a donor that will cast a negative image of the Town of Addison as the

result of their actions or are derogatory or discriminatory in nature.  
b. Improperly diminish the character, integrity of the community or aesthetic quality of the

building, Town of Addison, or unreasonable interference with its enjoyment or use;
c. Have obscene connotations, be, or be perceived to be, of a sexual-oriented nature or

business; 
d. Result in inappropriate abbreviations or acronyms.

ELIGIBLE SPACES FOR THE ADDISON THEATRE CENTRE
1) The exterior of the Addison Theatre Centre building is not eligible for naming rights. 

2) The areas eligible for naming within the building are: 

a. Main Stage Theatre

b. Main Stage Lobby

c. Upper Main Stage Lobby

d. The Box Office

e. The Studio Theatre

f. The Administrative Offices

g. Dressing Rooms

h. The Rehearsal Room/Education Centre

2



Addison Theatre Centre – Naming Rights Policy – cont’d 

i. Individual seats in both the Main Stage and Studio Theatre

NAMING APPLICATION AND APPROVAL PROCESS
1) Donor must submit a proposal to WaterTower Theatre that will include but is not limited to: 

a. Amount donated.

b. Restriction Donation donated to:

b.i. WaterTower Theatre Endowment 

b.ii. WaterTower Theatre Cash Reserves Account

c. Space or area to be named.

d. Individual, corporation or organization after which it will be named. 

e. Duration of the recognition, not to exceed five years.

2) The  WaterTower  Theatre  Board  must  approve  the  donor’s  proposal  before  submitting  an
approval application to the Town of Addison.  

3) WaterTower Theatre will submit the related Addison Theatre Centre - Naming Rights Application
to the Town for review and approval.  

a. Application will be submitted to, and reviewed by, the Addison Conference and Theatre
Centre General Manager and the Assistant Director of General Services. 

b. If approved at the first level, the application will be submitted with a recommendation
to the City Manager’s Office to be placed on the next possible Regular Agenda Meeting
of the City Council for final approval.

b.i. If  an  application is  denied,  WaterTower  Theatre  may  appeal  the  denial  and
request  approval  from the City  Council  at  the next  possible  Regular  Agenda
Meeting.  

POST-APPROVAL INSTALLATION
1) WaterTower Theatre will  submit  the final  specs of  the plaque for  final  review by the ACTC

General Manager and General Services Assistant Director.  

2) The Town will approve the final design, wording, and placement of any permanent signs, 
inscriptions or other recognitions with due consideration for the architectural style of a building 
and for consistency throughout the Addison Theatre Centre.

3) The Town will install the plaque and invoice the WaterTower Theatre to be reimbursed for the
cost of the installation.  

DURATION AND REMOVAL PROCEDURE
1) Recognition is limited to five years from the day it is installed.

2) If WaterTower Theatre is no longer the resident company at the Addison Theatre Centre, the
recognition will be uninstalled the last day of WaterTower Theatre’s lease or the agreed upon
move-out date with the Town.  

3



Addison Theatre Centre – Naming Rights Policy – cont’d 

3) If upon after recognition installation, the name or sponsor is associated with a crime, accused of
a crime, or their actions may reflect negatively on the Town of Addison, the City Council may
consider a temporary or permanent removal of the name at a Work Session and/or Regular City
Council Agenda meeting based on the facts of the case and/or impact it has on the public image
of the Town. 

a. The naming rights  may be reinstated by  the City  Council  at  a  Work  Session and/or
Regular City Council Agenda meeting if the donor is exonerated of the crime of which
they were accused.   

4) Removal of the recognition plaque will be coordinated and paid for by the Town with one of its
preferred vendors and will be reimbursed by the WaterTower Theatre.  

4



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  ACKNOWLEDGING  A  DONATION  IN  THE
AMOUNT  OF  $50,000  TO  THE  WATERTOWER  THEATRE  AND
NAMING  THE  MAIN  STAGE  OF  THE  WATERTOWER  THEATER
“THE CANTERBURY FAMILY MAIN STAGE” AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison City Council, in Resolution R16-020, approved the
Naming Rights Policy for the Addison Theatre Centre (the “Policy”); and 

WHEREAS,  in  accordance  with  the  Policy,  the  WaterTower  Theatre  received  an
application to name the Main Stage of the Addison Theatre Centre as “The Canterbury Family
Main Stage”  to honor Holly Canterbury’s lifetime commitment to the arts, in exchange for a
$50,000 donation; and

WHEREAS,  the  WaterTower  Theatre  Board  has  approved  the  Canterbury  Family’s
application to name the Main Stage on honor of their family.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The  recitals  set  forth  above  are  true  and  correct  and  are  incorporated
herein for all purposes.

Section 2.  The Addison City Council  hereby acknowledges the donation of $50,000
made to the WaterTower Theatre, and the Main Stage of the WaterTower Theatre shall hereafter
be known and referred to as “The Canterbury Family Main Stage.”

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 24th day of May, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



   
AI-1677     Item #   14.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Council

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, Consider, And Take Action Regarding The 
Termination Of The Mayor's Weekly Newsletter.

BACKGROUND:
The Mayor's Newsletter began on July 1, 2011 as a weekly publication from the Mayor
that provides an update to subscribers on activities around Addison. The Mayor authors
the content and sends to staff for distribution to the subscriber list. To date, it has 2,014
subscribers with an average open rate of 40%.

In July 2014, seven separate newsletters, one for each Council Member and Mayor,
were approved so that Council Members could have their own publication sent to the
same subscription list. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council on the continuation or termination of the Mayor's
Weekly Newsletter.

Attachments
Town of Addison Mayor's Newsletter Request to TEC
Response to Notice of Ethics Complaints



DALLAS 

MESSER* ROCKEFELLER~~ FORT 

Sent via E-Mail- ian.steus/o{f@ethics.state.tx.us 

March 1, 2016 

Mr. Ian Steusloff 
General Counsel 
Texas Ethics Commission 
P. 0. Box 12070 
Austin, TX 78711-2070 

Re: Town of Addison- Mayor's Newsletter 

Dear Mr. Steusloff, 

I am writing to follow up on my call to you several weeks ago regarding the 
Town of Addison's (the "Town") practice of assisting in the preparation and distribution 
of the Mayor's Newsletter. The Town has a vocal resident who continually complains that 
the Mayor's Newsletter is illegal and that the Town cannot use its resources to assist in the 
preparation and distribution of the Mayor's Newsletter. Thus, the Town is requesting an 
informal opinion from your office regarding the newsletter. I am including 3 example 
newsletters for your review, the most controversial of which is the January 29111 newsletter 
regarding a hotly contested zoning case. I cettainly understand that every newsletter must 
be evaluated individually because the determination regarding whether the newsletter 
constitutes "political adve1tising" as defined by the Election Code is made on an individual 
basis. 

The Mayor initially drafts the newsletter in rough form and submits it to the Town 
staff for editing, formatting and distribution. As the City Attorney, I have been asked to 
edit the newsletter each week to make sure that the content does not constitute political 
advertising. The Town' s Director of Public Communications usually gathers the photos, 
inserts links to videos and adds the upcoming events to the end of the newsletter. The 
newsletter is distributed by the staff via email and it is also posted on the Town' s website. 

As background to assist your office in its review, the Mayor is cunently serving his 
final term in office and cannot seek re-election because of term limits contained in the 
Town's Charter. In addition, there are no ballot measures planned for the May 2016 
election nor in the future. The three current councilmembers seeking re-election are Mayor 
pro tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor pro tempore David Heape and Councilwoman 
Mary Carpenter. The three other candidates for City Council in the May election are Paul 
Walden, Al Angell, and Jim Duffy. 

6 3 5 1 Pr eston Rd. • Su it e 350 
Frisco, TX 75034 

M ESSER, ROCKEFELLER & FORT, PLLC 

www. txmu nici p a llaw.com 

ABILENE 
4400 Buffalo Gap Rd. • Suite 2800 

Abi lene, TX 796 0 6 
P: 325.701 .7960 • F: 325.70 1.7 96 1 P: 972 .668.640 0 • F: 9 72.668 .641 4 



Mr. Ian Steusloff 
March 1, 2016 
Page 2 

The Town seeks an informal opinion regarding a sampling of the newsletters to 
give us better guidance regarding appropriate edits to the newsletter and to help us insure 
that we are fully compliant with the statutory requirements regarding the use of public 
funds and resources. Thank you in advance for your willingness to provide the Town and 
me, as the City Attorney, with your thoughts regarding the content of the Mayor' s 
Newsletter. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 972-
668-6400 (office) or 972-978-9866 (cell) . 

Attachments 
Mayor' s Newsletter- November 13, 2015 
Mayor's Newsletter - January 29, 2016 
Mayor's Newsletter - February 26, 2016 

Grateful for your assistance, 

Jr.~ M. JU&f~J--
Brenda N. McDonald 
Town of Addison City Attorney 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 1 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Dear Neighbor,      

    

This has been a beautiful fall weather week.  As you may know our City 

Management team has begun a national search for our next permanent Police 

Chief and we would like to have you share your thoughts on what type of person 

would best fill that role.  In order to gather your input, we have created a survey 

that you can reach here – all answers will be kept anonymous.  Your feedback is 

invaluable so don’t miss this opportunity to play a part in this important Town 

decision.  The survey will be available from November 16 - November 30. 

 

Council News 

 

Tuesday evening, November 10, we had a packed agenda!  In an effort to free up 

some time for staff and Council the week of Thanksgiving, we eliminated our 4th 

Tuesday of the month Regular Council Meeting for November this year.  The 

Council packets arrived on Friday evening with over 600 pages of material to 

review before Tuesday’s meeting and, judging from the questions delivered to staff 

by Council before our meeting began, it looked like all of us were well prepared for 

the meeting.  Staff provided answers to those pre-Council meeting questions well 

before we ever began our Tuesday evening, giving us time to review the feedback 

and proceed accordingly.  With the guidance of our city attorney, we were able to 

ask questions of the staff and receive responses all in compliance with the 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=7f78a253f0&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 2 
 

requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  As a result we were able to do the 

work effectively and efficiently.            

       

We began our evening’s work early at 5:30pm with an Executive Session that 

included a review of several pending items. We received staff and legal guidance 

on an issue with Duke’s Roadhouse; the former Sam’s Club property; the 

automotive uses at 15600 Midway Road; Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures 

and Urban Green energy case no. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District Court, Dallas 

County Texas; and the ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park located within the vicinity 

and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and Ponte Ave, and Farmers Branch 

Creek.  

 

For our Work Session, we began at 7pm and covered the good news about the 

costs of the health insurance options for our Town employees for calendar year 

2016 which we plan to adopt next Tuesday at a Special Council Meeting.  Our 

second Work Session item was an update from staff on the status of the 

redevelopment of the former Sam’s Club site, which is an approximately 17.3 acre 

tract at 4150 Belt Line Road.  The site is currently under contract with a developer, 

Lovett Homes, which is proposing a mixed-use development with townhomes, 

apartments and ground level retail.  While there are still many details to be worked 

through, the hope is that the plan will go before our P&Z Commission in December 

and then to Council in January.  This proposed plan is entirely consistent with the 

policy direction Council has given staff based on the study that was done last year. 

 

We began our Regular Council Session on time at 7:30pm with our pledge and a 

recognition of all of our Veterans in honor of Veterans Day.  No one chose to 

speak during our Public Comment Section. 

 

This being Charles Daniels final Regular Council Meeting with us as our interim 

city manager, Charles took time at the beginning of our meeting to make a few 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 3 
 

remarks, thanking all of us for treating him so well and helping him be successful 

with us here in Addison the last seven months.   We presented Charles with a 

standing ovation and an official proclamation naming Tuesday, November 10, 2015 

as Charles Daniels Day in Addison.  It was a very well-deserved honor for Charles.  

  

 

Our consent agenda was very lengthy and included the approval of the following 

items that the staff had fully vetted and presented to Council with supporting 

materials and their recommendations for approval:  

• new contracts with Shiroma Southwest for PR, media publicity and website 

content management services; 

• contract with Rodney Hand Associates for the production of Addison - the 

Magazine of the North Dallas Corridor in an amount not to exceed 

$132,000; 

• new contract with Kimley-Horn to update our Master Transportation Plan in 

an amount not to exceed $76,597; 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 4 
 

• a contract with Harris Corporation for maintenance of all Town-owned 

portable mobile and control station radio equipment for a five year 

agreement; 

• an ordinance amending our investment policy and adoption of an 

investment strategy for 2016 

• a final plat for one lot totaling 6.484 acres at 14675 Dallas Parkway; 

• final payment for our very popular and well received new playground 

equipment at Les Lacs Park for $9,969.70 to Lea Park and Play, Inc.;  

• grant funding and service agreements with Launchability for $2,500, 

Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce for $35,000, Metrocrest Community 

Clinic for $3,000, Metrocrest Services for $61,000 and the Family Place for 

$12,000; 

• an agreement with the WaterTower Theatre for their use of the Addison 

Theatre Center; and 

• an ordinance amending Chapter 10, animals of the Code of Ordinances for 

the Town of Addison, dealing with our duck feeding issue.  

The Council also approved a resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a 

grant to purchase and install in 12 spots in our park system recycling stations that 

are high tech, solar powered and able to let our staff know when they need to be 

serviced!  This is “Addison Cool” and best of all, the North Texas Council of 

Government will be paying for them with this grant! 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 5 
 

 
 

We held four Public Hearings for the evening.  Our first one was to consider an 

ordinance amending the Planned Development of 8 tracts of land totaling 

approximately 40 acres from 3712 to 3910 Belt Line Road in order to grant 

additional allowed uses and amend requirements relating to parking and building 

elevations. This is the Addison Town Center location  near the corner of Belt Line 

Road and Marsh Lane that contains Target and Kroger as anchor tenants.  The 

discussion centered around the suggestion that all of these uses should require a 

special use permit and then eventually the discussion centered around the need to 

require medical and dental office uses to require a special use permit.  One of the 

complicating factors was that certificates of occupancy had previously been 

granted erroneously for a dental office, i.e. Comfort Dental, and for the Crunch 

Fitness Health Club.  Ultimately in a 6-1 vote, Council Members Arfsten, Hughes, 

Carpenter, Wilcox, Heape and Meier voting in favor and Council Member Moore 

voting against, the Council approved a recommendation from staff and our city 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 6 
 

attorney to add medical, dental office, massage and chiropractic office, and health 

club as permitted uses without the need to apply for a special use permit, just like 

we have it in our other centers around town.  A gasoline service center would still 

require a special use permit.   

 

Our very next item concerned the long-awaited remodel and exterior upgrade of 
the Kroger within the same Addison Town Center.  The Council unanimously 

approved the special use permit for the fuel center and incorporated the P&Z 

Commission’s recommendation to tie the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy 

for the fuel center to the beginning of the work on the exterior facade of the 

Kroger.  The interior remodel has already begun and both the exterior facade work 

and fuel center are expected to be completed by the end of the first quarter of 

2016!  Finally!   

                      

Our 26th Regular Council agenda item of the evening was a Public Hearing to 

consider an ordinance approving a special use permit for the sale of alcoholic 

beverages for on-premises consumption only on property located at 15650 

Addison Road, our Addison Conference and Theatre Centre.  This also passed 

unanimously, enabling the WaterTower Theatre to apply to the Texas Alcoholic 

Beverage Commission for a license to sell alcoholic beverages during their 

performances.          

 

The final Public Hearing of the evening was the consideration of an ordinance 

amending Article XXI of our Landscape Regulations by revising the requirements 
relating to the maintenance of irrigation systems and enforcement.  After a 

lengthy discussion the Council decided to revise the proposed language for 

purposes of simplification and clarity.  With that important revision the ordinance 

was passed that will now require commercial and residential property owners 
to insure that their sprinkler systems do not create an unsafe condition on 
sidewalks or roadways.    



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 7 
 

 

Items 28 and 29 were the approval of a lease assignment and lease extension for 

ground leases at Addison Airport and item 30 was a resolution authorizing our City 

Manager to accept a grant from TxDOT Aviation for a Runway Incursion Mitigation 

Study at our airport. 

 

Item 32 was a very clear and well-presented update on the various capital 
improvement projects program that we have going on here in Town.  I have 

attached the chart of the status of each project here for your review. 

 

Our final item of the evening was a report from our Council subcommittee of Ivan 

Hughes, Mary Carpenter and David Heape on our plans to introduce our new 
City Manager Wes Pierson to our community. We will fold his introduction into 

our annual Holiday Open house on December 6, 2015 from 10am to 2pm at the 

Addison Conference Centre.  We will introduce Wes from the stage and he will be 

available to get to know all those who attend.  Our subcommittee will continue their 

work as they explore additional opportunities to familiarize Wes with our 
community and vice versa over the next few months and we will make you aware 

of those opportunities here and in other media.  You can make your reservation 

here to attend the Holiday Open House.    

 

Given the large volume of work and the many things we accomplished, it was a 

very productive and respectful evening.  We adjourned at the very reasonable time 

of about 10:30 pm. 

 

Business Development    
 

On Tuesday morning, November 10, I joined Interim City Manager Charles 
Daniels and Deputy City Manager Cheryl Delaney for our monthly Metroplex 
Mayors Association meeting at our Marriott Quorum Hotel.  I was very pleased to 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=af68f56260&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=8c8fd63ea5&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 8 
 

hear so much positive feedback from our fellow area city mangers on our selection 

of Wes Pierson as our new City Manager.  Wes’ previous service in Allen and 

his work at the International City Managers Association have helped him earn a 
well-deserved, very positive reputation, which of course bodes very well for us 

here in Addison.  The mayors and city mangers spent the entire meeting 

discussing and planning for our feedback and participation in the next Texas 

Legislative Session.  In the past this has generally been a fractured effort often left 

to lobbyists.  I believe the concern level is so high among mayors, councils and city 

managers in our area that you will see a much more effectively coordinated 

personal effort at the next session to ensure the legislature understands the impact 

their efforts have on limiting the ability of local governments to provide services to 

their communities.  I’ll share more on this as we work to develop our upcoming 

legislative agenda.       

 

Later on Tuesday I stopped by our Addison Conference Centre to welcome the 

Network of Executive Women and their Fall Luncheon to Addison and to thank 

them for choosing our Addison Conference Centre as the site for their event. Their 

attendance of almost 125 exceeded their expectations and made the celebration of 

their organization’s 10 year anniversary all the more special. 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 9 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 10 
 

 
 

Around Town   

        

Last Saturday, November 7, the Addison Arbor Foundation held their final 

quarterly educational seminar of 2015. Arbor Foundation President Dr. Jay Ihrig 

began the meeting by welcoming everyone and recognizing his board member 

colleagues.  He then invited me to share a Mayoral Proclamation recognizing Arbor 

Day in Addison! The program “Bulbs for Dallas and Bulbs for the Holidays” was 

presented by Master Gardener C. A. Hiscock.  It was a fun event enjoyed by many, 

including our very own City Attorney Brenda McDonald, and we all appreciated 

the complimentary coffee from Dunn Bros!           
   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 11 
 

 
 

It’s hard to believe that Thanksgiving is just around the corner.  I wanted to make 

sure that all of our Pacesetters have marked Monday, November 23 from 6pm – 

8pm on their calendar for the annual Pacesetters Thanksgiving Dinner at the 

Addison Athletic Club.  As always, the club will provide the turkey and stuffing and 

the attendees provide the sides and desserts.  Reservations are required, so 

please drop by the front desk of Athletic Club and let them know you will be joining 

them. 

 

Our Addison Fire Department is also getting ready for the holidays by again 

collecting new, unwrapped toys for Toys for Tots.  We will be collecting toys at the 

Resident Holiday Open House, but we also have donation boxes available around 

town at the following locations through December 12:  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 12 
 

• Town Hall 

• Central Fire-Station 1-Airport Pkwy 

• Fire Station 2-Beltway Dr. 

• Police Department 

• Finance Building 

• Athletic Club 

• Addison Treehouse-Midway Rd. 

• Service Center 

• Addison Conference Centre 

• Water Tower Theater 

• Addison Airport Office 

The following businesses have also partnered with us:  

• Million Air Dallas-4300 Westgrove Dr. 

• BB&T Bank-3939 Belt Line Rd. 

• The Crowne Plaza-14315 Midway Rd 

• Stadium Café: 4872 Belt Line Rd 

• Vernon’s Gastropub: 5290 Belt Line Rd 

• The Quarter Grill: 15201 Addison Rd 

• First Community Bank: 4135 Belt Line Rd 

• The Hub Sports Grill: 4145 Belt Line Rd 

• Ron's Place:  4145 Belt Line Rd 

Boxes are also available in the following lobbies:  

• 14841 Dallas Pkwy, The Aberdeen Bldg, managed by Sooner Management 

• 16479 Dallas Pkwy, managed by Cushman Wakefield 

• 14800 Landmark Blvd, The Landmark Bldg, managed by Cushman 

Wakefield 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 13 
 

• 14900 Landmark Blvd, Emerald Plaza Bldg, managed by Cushman 

Wakefield 

One last very important item for our neighbors in Les Lacs.  Next Thursday, 
November 19 and Friday, November 20 around 10am you will be 
experiencing scheduled power outages.  The outages should not last more than 

one hour each.  Oncor will be replacing the electrical gear box located at the 

corner of Beltway in conjunction with the Beltway/Proton Pedestrian Connectivity 

Project.  If you would like to receive regular email updates on the project's progress 

you can register here.  We will use the Beltway/Proton list list to email you when 

the power is going off and when it is restored, so I encourage you to register.  We 

are so sorry for any inconvenience, but wanted to make sure you are aware so you 

can power down computers those days, contact your alarm company and make 

any other necessary arrangements you might need to.  Power to the Athletic Club 

and Fire Station are not on the same circuit so will not be cut.  If you need a place 

to hang out, I’m sure the Athletic Club staff would be happy to help you out. 

 

Coming Events       

 

Tuesday November 17, 6:30pm, Town Hall:  Council Work Session to review our 

debt policy and possible future plans.  We will also consider approval of the new 

health Insurance plans for our employees for calendar year 2015 and we will have 

an Executive Session to consider our options regarding our continued participation 

in DART.            

             

Thursday November 19, 6pm:  Third Thursday of the Month Coffee with the 

Mayor will be hosted by Hector Sandoval at Union Park in Addison Circle at 5076 

Addison Circle.   I hope you will come share your thoughts and enjoy this fairly new 

addition to the Addison Circle community, a fun place!  Here is a bit more 

information about Union Park:  www.unionparkdallas.com. 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5fca8a4a94&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5fca8a4a94&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b79befc1d9&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=fa3dd3d7f4&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=fa3dd3d7f4&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 14 
 

 

 

Friday, November 20, 6:30pm:  2015 Addison Circle Tree Lighting.  Kick off your 

holiday season at the annual Addison Circle Tree Lighting in Beckert Park.  

 

Thank you again for the honor of being your Mayor.   See you soon . . 

.                                                                                                             

Todd 

  
  

 

Copyright © 2015 Town of Addison, All rights reserved. 
You are receiving this email because you opted in to receive the weekly Mayor's Newsletter. 
 
Our mailing address is: 
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001 
 
Add us to your address book 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences  

 

  

 
 
 
 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/vcard?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435&c=593dd26704
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/profile?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 1 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Dear Neighbor,        

 

It was a very busy news week in Addison!  Wow, TV coverage, large crowds, 

cheers and jeers - all a part of local government in action.  I believe in the media 

business that may be called a headline designed to capture your attention, so I do 

hope you will read on.          

   

Council News 

 

The biggest news of the week includes all the pieces of the headline.  Our Regular 

Council Meeting was relocated from our Town Hall to the Addison Conference 

Centre to accommodate a very large crowd of intensely interested and vocal 

residents interested in the next steps the Council would take in our process of 

evaluating the redevelopment of the former Sam’s site. Before we began our 

Regular Council Meeting, we had a brief Executive Session next door at the Stone 

Cottage to have an update on the legal issues around the Farmers Branch creek 

dispute.    

   

After this brief meeting and on the walk over to the Conference Centre, Council 

and staff were met by a group of about 30 very vocal and passionate picketers 
with signs who unfortunately expressed their displeasure in the form 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 2 
 

of insults and threats directed at me, my fellow Council Colleagues and our 
staff as we made our way to the Conference Centre for our Regular Council 
Meeting.  All of this was covered by TV news.  It appeared to me that some of 

those folks forgot that our Council Members are their neighbors giving of their 
time, energy and intellect out of a sense of community service and love for 
Addison and have sworn to do what is best for all of Addison. 
 

We began our Regular Council Meeting with our pledge and receipt of recognition 

from the North Central Texas Council of Governments of the Silver Fleet Award for 

our fleet department. From there we moved right into our Public Comment section. 

The Council agreed to waive the restriction in our Public Comment section that 

limits speakers to comment on items not on our agenda and limits the number of 

speakers to five. Since we closed the Public Hearing on the rezoning of the Sam’s 

site in our January 12 meeting, with the Council’s unanimous support, we were 

able to remove the limitations and proceed with a very long and intense Public 

Comment section where all of the speakers commented on the proposed 

redevelopment of the former Sam’s site.  This was certainly the longest Public 
Comment section in the relatively brief history of this opportunity for our 
community.  Most of the speakers were very polite and civil and shared their 
firmly held opinions with our Council who listened attentively. This Public 
Comment section is captured on video and available for your review on our 
website with a link to the public comment sections here and here. 
 

After the almost two-hour Public Comment section was completed, with everyone 

in the room who had not already spoken on this case given every opportunity to 

share their opinion with the Council, we resumed our discussion and consideration 

of an ordinance rezoning approximately 17.4 acre property located at 4150 Belt 

Line Road, case 1725/Addison Groves with Mr. Frank Liu as the applicant. Frank 

Liu resumed his presentation with an updated presentation that included a clear 
graphic showing the actual breakout of the proposed redevelopment by land 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=29fda77316&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=29fda77316&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=84c7b75501&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=6c75922408&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 3 
 

use.  The land uses include approximately 17% for the apartment project, 
which is limited to no more than 350 units, would include retail on the first 
floor and would wrap around the building’s parking garage.  The balance of 

the land use would be for necessary infrastructure, green space and parks, and 
180 fee simple townhomes, projected to be valued at an average of $400,000 
each.  I encourage you to take a look at this visual, I believe it will answer some of 

your potential questions.  After his presentation Mr. Liu and his partner David Foor 

answered questions from the Council concerning their flexibility on certain aspects 

of the project.  Both were open to revisions of the project. 

 

After Mr. Liu and Mr. Foor spoke, the developer's traffic engineer, from the well-

respected engineering firm Kimley-Horn, spoke.  (Incidentally, Kimley-Horn has 
served as the Town's engineering firm for more than a decade.) He responded 

to questions from the Council and referenced his 200-plus page report which had 

been validated by Cobb Fendley & Associates, another well-respected firm that 

has served as the Town's review engineers for many years. This visiting 

professional endured several rude interruptions from a few in the audience. 

 

Charles Goff, our Assistant Director of Development Services, returned to the 

podium to answer Council questions, reaffirm the staff recommendation for 
approval of this project and review the process for this redevelopment that actually 

began back in 2006.  Since then the process has proceeded through the many 

meetings and iterations of the plan including the Council’s conceptual approval 
of this specific plan in an open and public work session in 2015, which 
included the approximate use mix and numbers of apartments, retail and fee 
simple housing reflected in this proposal.                   
 

Next up with his report and recommendation for approval of the project was our 

Director of Economic Development Orlando Campos.  Orlando reviewed the 

project’s economic impact on Addison and confirmed his support of this 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=3ccaa20c5d&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=a76e796e5c&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 4 
 

redevelopment.  His excellent report is attached here for you review.         

                                       

City Manager Wes Pierson added his comments and reiterated his support for 
staff's recommentation that Council approve the project. 
                   

Now very deep into the evening after our entire Addison professional team 

expressed their recommendation for approval of the proposed redevelopment of 

the Sam’s site, it was time for the Council to finally consider a motion.  Mayor Pro 
Tempore Janelle Moore made the below described motion and Deputy Mayor 
Pro Tempore David Heape seconded the motion and the discussion that 
followed is linked here (comments begin at 105:32) for your review. 
 

The motion and second were as follows -  to approve the project as recommended 

by staff with the following changes and conditions:       

1.  The private drive commonly referred to as Runyon Road between the western 

property line and the intersection of Belt Line Road shall be upgraded to Town 

standards and become public right of way. 

 

2.  The townhouses and live/work units within Block A (as shown on the concept 

plan) shall be constructed using noise mitigation methods so that outside noise 

levels, measured within the habitable space of the units, do not exceed 45 DNL. A 

certified acoustical engineer shall approve the construction plans for these units to 

assure they will provide a 45 DNL noise level, and a certified acoustical engineer 

shall inspect the units, once constructed, and verify that the required noise level 

has been attained. 

 

3.  The sanitary sewer line servicing this development shall be increased to a 

minimum 10’ line in accordance with Town standards. This includes approximately 

an additional 230 linear feet of line than is being proposed in the applicant’s 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=9d25c17884&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=21b3ebee09&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 5 
 

wastewater study. 

 

4.  The driveway access to the property adjacent to this site (4180 Belt Line Road) 

shall be reconstructed to align with the entrance/exit of the parking structure being 

proposed on the site. The applicant shall make any improvements necessary on 

the adjacent property (4180 Belt Line Road) to accommodate the driveway 

relocation. 

 

5.  Medical and health related uses shall be permitted upon approval of a Special 

Use Permit. 

 

6.  All construction traffic shall access the site from Runyon Road and Belt Line 

Road only. 

 

7.  The existing screening wall along the southern property line shall not be 

removed until construction has commenced on the townhome units along the wall. 

(the wall will be replaced with $400,000+ townhomes facing Beltway) 

 

8.  A short, wrought iron or decorative fence or wall shall be installed to delineate 

the front yards of the townhomes facing Beltway from the public green space/park. 

 

9.  At least 25 live/work and/or townhome units must be under construction prior to 

the issuance of a building permit for the multifamily units or the garage building. 

 

10.  A maximum of 330 multifamily units shall be allowed. (a reduction from the 

previous ceiling of 350 units) 

 

11.  The proposed street shown on the east side of the development shall be 

constructed with retractable bollards at Beltway Drive to provide for public safety 

access only.  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 6 
 

 

12.  The proposed street shown on that east side shall also be constructed with 

speed/traffic calming devices. 

 

13.  The multifamily units shall be constructed as follows:  

• The entire multifamily building and parking garage shall be LEED certified; 

• There will be no linoleum or Formica surfaces in the units; 

• All units shall be equipped with energy efficient appliances; 

• All countertops must be granite, stone or better material. 

14. Courtyards shown on the Concept Plan will be designed and constructed with 

enhanced architectural and landscaping features including such elements as water 

features, landscaping and art features.  

 

I added my clarifying comments in the parentheses on conditions #7, and #10. 

 

After thoughtful and respectful comments and discussion among the Council, I 

called the vote on the motion.  I encourage you once again to watch the 
video (comments begin at 105:32) of the Council Member comments on this 

motion. While it was very late in the evening, actually early morning, each Council 

Member shared their rationale for their intended vote.  The motion to approve the 

redevelopment project with the 14 conditions listed above passed 5-2.  Voting in 
favor of the motion were Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor 
Pro Tempore David Heape, Council Member Mary Carpenter, Council Member 
Dale Wilcox and Mayor Todd Meier.  Voting against the motion were Council 
Members Ivan Hughes and Bruce Arfsten.   
 

After the approval of the project, the Council entered Executive Session with our 

staff to discuss and consider an economic development incentive for 
infrastructure reimbursement.  Following the Executive Session, the Council 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=4ed6ea1911&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 7 
 

returned to the Conference Centre to openly discuss and consider a motion to 

approve the terms of a staff-negotiated Letter of Intent for an economic 

development incentive.  The following economic development incentive for 
reimbursement of infrastructure funds was approved by the Council 6-
1.  Council Members Dale Wilcox, Mary Carpenter, Ivan Hughes, Deputy 
Mayor Pro Tempore David Heape, Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore and 
Mayor Todd Meier all voting in favor of the motion and Council Member 
Bruce Arfsten voting against.  Staff will use the Letter of Intent to create an 

economic development incentive agreement that will be brought back for Council 

approval. 

 

The basic elements of the agreement are outlined below:  

1. The Redevelopment Project (generally as depicted and described in the 

DRAFT ordinance)( the “Project”)  

• Total estimated project cost - $86,663,450 

• Total estimated ad valorem value - $121,200,000 

• Demolition of existing Sam’s Club building 

• Mixed Use development consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of 

retail, 17 live/work units, 161 townhomes and not more than 330 multi-

family units 

2. The Economic Development Incentives 

• Maximum Incentive of $6,500,000 as a reimbursement for the construction 

of public infrastructure to facilitate the Project.  

o Infrastructure eligible for reimbursement will be agreed upon by the 

parties. 

o Infrastructure reimbursement will be controlled by the following:  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 8 
 

 Maximum of $250,000 of the total Incentive will be given in 

the nature of permit/development fee waivers 

 Maximum of $1,000,000 for infrastructure qualifying for utility 

fund funding 

 Maximum of $1,000,000 for infrastructure qualifying for 

stormwater fund funding 

 Maximum of $4,250,000 to provide funding for street and park 

development 

o Incentive Payment terms  

 1/3 of total potential award upon successful completion of 

public infrastructure and acceptance by the Town of Addison 

 1/3 of the total potential award upon completion of 40 percent 

of the townhomes/live-work units 

 1/3 of the total potential award upon completion of 75 percent 

of the townhomes/live-work units 

• The Town of Addison will support the process to acquire the right-of-way for 

Runyan Road.  Any acquisition costs will be the responsibility of the 

Developer.  

3. Incentive Conditions 

• Developer has offered to deed restrict the multi-family property and garage 

building to prohibit the use of government subsidies to construct, operate or 

rent the multi-family units.  The developer shall present a recorded copy of 

the deed restrictions prior to Incentive Payment by the Town. 

• Developer will provide to the Town for its review and approval any 

infrastructure/quality/amenity removals from the Project that the Developer 

makes to reconcile the difference between the $8.463 million in economic 

development assistance requested by the Developer and the $6.5 million 

Incentive provided by the Town. 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 9 
 

• The apartment developer/operator will be subject to reasonable approval by 

the City Council.  If the developer chooses an apartment developer not 

approved by the City Council, the Incentive Payment will be forfeited and 

the Town will have no obligation to make any Incentive Payment. 

While at times during the evening I was deeply disappointed by some of my 

Addison neighbors' very rude and disrespectful behavior, I was very proud of the 
diligence, thought and respectfulness of our entire Council throughout this 
challenging process.  In the end, I believe we completed this almost two-year 

long process by producing a very exciting result that incorporated in true 
collaborative fashion the recommendations of our entire professional staff; the 

recommendations of our P&Z Commissioners; our proposed Addison investor and 

home builder; and the concerns and opinions of many of our neighbors.        

    

I realize change is very difficult, even frightening at times.  As I get older I 
realize that even more, I have also come to know that change is 
inevitable.   We had a choice here; we could fight change or we could 
embrace change and shape it.  I am very pleased that a majority of the 
Council chose to embrace change and shape it.  In fact 10 of the 14, or 71%, 
of the elected Council members and appointed P&Z Commissioners voted in 
favor of approving this redevelopment project.  Interestingly enough our two 
youngest Council Members, with the most future ahead and the greatest risk, 
showed the way with their courage to make the motion and the second and 
lead the conversation and collaboration to arrive at a point that bridged 
many of the gaps.  
 

I know it may be difficult for some at this moment to realize, but given time and the 

staff and Council’s commitment to hold our new Addison Groves developer 

accountable, I believe this redevelopment project will make us all very proud.    

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 10 
 

Around Town 

 

What a fun way to start a week and a Monday.  Channel 8 met us at Addison 

Circle bright and early to do a story about the return of Taste Addison on May 13-

15 and the uniqueness of Addison Circle.  As you know about two years ago our 

previous City Manager recommended to Council that we drop Taste Addison and 

bring in a new concept called Fork and Cork.  Now we are going to take the best 

pieces of Fork and Cork, weave in more food, and much better music to elevate 

the entire profile of the event and bring back lots of fun. It was fun to share the 

exciting news about the return of Taste Addison, as well as one of the important 

lessons we have learned with Addison Circle, density brings us retail 

success.  Thanks to Nicole Margulies at Mad Batter Baker and Chef Antonio at 
Antonio’s for helping us make this such a fun media event, as well as 
publicizing the return of Taste Addison! 
 

With a crowd of over 200 family, friends, residents, Council Members, coworkers 

and well-wishers, the positive energy and enthusiasm for the swearing in 

ceremony of our new Police Chief Paul Spencer felt great! City Manager Wes 

Pierson began the formal part of the event with a greeting and voiced his pride and 

confidence in Paul as his first hire as our new City Manager, indicating that Chief 

Spencer and City Manager Pierson would forever be linked together. Wes then 

gave me a few moments to thank Paul’s family for their support and dedication and 

to recognize the sacrifice they all make.  I noted Paul’s 20 years with our Town and 

the fact that I have had the good fortune to know Paul and watch him progress 

through his career that entire time.   It is very gratifying to see a man with such 

high values and strong work ethic succeed and rise to the top leadership position 

in our organization.  It also gave me a chance to acknowledge and recognize all of 

our first responders and their dedication to helping keep us all safe here in 

Addison.  I then had the very special honor of swearing in Paul Spencer as our 

new Town of Addison Police Chief. 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=757005d6b3&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5614d6220c&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=ae7af032da&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=7eafaa3533&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 11 
 

 

After we completed the official oath of office, Paul made an excellent speech that I 

have included here for your enjoyment.  Congratulations, Chief Spencer, we are all 

so very proud of you.   

   

 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=acff00dd85&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 12 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 13 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 14 
 

 

At the Athletic Club open house a couple weeks ago, we unveiled a new 

survey.  I’d like to encourage everyone – member or not – to fill out the 

survey.  The staff is always looking for ways to improve our services and your input 

is critical.       

 

Business Development 
 

On Thursday morning I joined with Erin Carney, president of the Metrocrest 
Chamber of Commerce, to welcome to Addison and cut the ribbon for Methodist 
Hospital for Surgery and Center for Wound Care and Hyperbarics, led by 

Medical Director Dr. J.R.Williams and his team of professionals: Tricia Muse, 

program director; Janna Seddon, clinical nurse manager; Liz Johnson, 

RN;  Jamaar Wright, HBO safety director; and Amanda Heddin, front office 

coordinator.  This unique center, managed by Healogics™, provides specialized 

treatment for chronic or non-healing wounds using clinically proven methods, 

protocols and technologies that facilitate the body's innate ability to heal.  Inside 

the two new hyperbaric oxygen chambers, patients breathe 100% oxygen in a 

pressurized environment, which stimulates new blood vessel growth allowing 

plasma in the blood to carry oxygen, reduce swelling, inactivate toxins of certain 

bacteria and enhance white blood cells’ ability to kill bacteria.  Considering that 

more than 8 million people in the U.S. are affected by chronic wounds, I am sure 

Methodist’s recent addition will be able to help many people across North Texas. 

   

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=e61f0c8fa9&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 15 
 

 
 

Coming Events 

 

Monday, February 1, 11:30am – 1pm:  Monthly Economic Development 

Luncheon at Osteria Panevino, 5000 Belt Line Road   

 

Tuesday, February 2, 4pm - 8pm:  City Council Strategic Planning Session, 

Addison Conference and Theatre Centre, 15650 Addison Road 

 

Wednesday, February 4, 10am: First Wednesday Coffee with the Mayor, Dunn 

Brothers Coffee, 3725 Belt Line Road.      

            

It’s kind of appropriate that I welcomed the folks from the Methodist Hospital 

Wound Care Clinic to Addison yesterday.  There certainly have been some 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=69eb48b86d&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 16 
 

 

wounds in Addison over the last few days and I hope we can all look to the future 

and let those negative feelings subside with time and the recognition that we are all 

neighbors and want the best for our Town of Addison.        

 

See you soon,              

 

 

Todd                            

  

  
  

 

Copyright © 2016 Town of Addison, All rights reserved.  
You are receiving this email because you opted in to receive the weekly Mayor's Newsletter.  
 
Our mailing address is:  
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001 
 
Add us to your address book 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences   

 

  

 
 
 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/vcard?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/unsubscribe?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435&c=dbbafcd099
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/profile?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 1 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Dear Neighbor, 

 

It’s been another exciting week in Addison as we head toward our Special Events 

season with Taste Addison back with us on May 13-15. Preparations are well 

underway with plans for the best one ever! This is the time of year when much of 

the hard work of our Parks team comes to life with the blooming of our Addison 
tulips! Check out this picture of our Service Center and please be sure to send us 

your favorite Addison pics and we will include them in our newsletter next week. 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 2 
 

 
 

Council News 

 

There were a number of very interesting topics for our Regular Council Meeting on 

Tuesday, February 23. During our Work Session we reviewed the staff’s report and 

recommendation for a small increase in our airport fuel flowage fee to be 

effective on April 1 this year. That fee has not been changed since 1994 and is the 

source of important revenue for maintaining our airport at very high standards. As 

mentioned above, our staff presented detailed plans of all the food, music and fun 

headed our way with the return this year of Taste Addison on May 13-
15.                                                                                                  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 3 
 

We also received a staff report on the life cycle cost analysis of our police 
vehicles; there was significant media interest in this topic, which means we are 

still reaping media interest from the innovative use of Volvos as our Addison police 

cars back in the 1980s. After our first ever and very informative life cycle cost 
analysis, the staff recommended that we move forward with the Ford Explorers 

as our choice for this year. The Council will take up that recommendation at our 

first meeting next month. 

 

The Council gave direction to our City Manager to move forward with additional 
work with Mr. Larry Kanter of Kanter Financial Forensic after hearing Mr. 
Kanter’s disconcerting and ultimately encouraging update. After a review of 

his extensive credentials for his work, Mr. Kanter read his remarks to the Council 

and included reference to specific examples of what he found as part of a brief 

PowerPoint presentation. I encourage you to watch the video including the very 
well informed questions from our Council Members. We have attached a link 

to the video here. 

 

A few of the key points that resonated with me include: “In general, when a 
system of internal controls is poor, bad things happen.” In referring to his 

early work in 2014 Mr. Kanter said, “…in fact the Town’s accounting systems 

lacked what are considered to be basic elements of a well-designed accounting 

system. Our work indicated that the Town was at risk of an inability to detect 
and prevent fraud, waste and or misapplication of assets. We observed that 

the Town’s finance department was significantly understaffed and basic accounting 

tasks were simply not being performed. The Town’s basic checks and balances 
were so weak or nonexistent that it will be very difficult or even impossible to 
determine if money and or assets were misappropriated in the past.” 

 

Mr. Kanter’s review of our Special Events and handling of cash led him to observe, 

“…we noted that it was virtually impossible to determine if all of the cash collected 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=a0be719f93&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 4 
 

from the patrons of Oktoberfest was actually deposited in the Town’s bank 

account.” 

 

Last year Mr. Kanter spent time working with our Municipal Court system and he 

revealed these observations: “It became very clear that the Municipal Courts had 

never been subjected to a detailed study of their accounting processes and 

procedures. It was also apparent that the transactions generated by the Municipal 

Courts have never been properly reconciled. The reconciliation of transactions 

helps ensure that the amounts that are collected from the public are properly 

calculated, recorded and deposited into the Town’s bank.” Part of Mr. Kanter’s 

remaining scope of work will be to follow up with our Municipal Courts. The need 
for and value of this transitional audit became abundantly and undeniably 
clear with the conclusion of Mr. Kanter’s prepared comments. We have 

attached a link to the video here. 

 

That is the past. 
 

As Mr. Kanter reported when Interim City Manager Charles Daniels arrived 
last April, everything changed because the tone at the top changed. The staff 

became very cooperative and “requests that previously took days to be 
fulfilled now took minutes.” Mr. Kanter went on to laud the new tone at the top 
with City Manager Wes Pierson and commended our current Finance staff 
and expressed confidence that we are on our way to significant improvement 
in all areas. He suggested that the new software installed at our Municipal Courts 

in February of this year may go a long way in addressing many of his concerns.Mr. 

Kanter hopes to complete the authorized scope of work by the end of March and 

will report back then. 

 

This is finally very good news; we have acknowledged a deficiency and we 
are taking an aggressive open approach to addressing and fixing all that is 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=515f9c3be4&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 5 
 

broken. That begins with the new “tone at the top,” a commitment to 
continuous improvement and doing what is right.  We are definitely headed 
in the right direction here and the path is now clear for success. 
 

Our new Police Chief Paul Spencer delivered a report to Council on past police 

protocols with underperforming hotels when he shared that in the past “over time 

the lack of targeted enforcement, in conjunction with our education efforts, 

facilitated an environment where criminal elements felt free to act with 
impunity and set up permanent roots in our community.” Now? Since Chief 

Spencer has been the leader of our Police Department, the entire department has 

begun targeting these criminal elements: “Recent activity suggests we are 

beginning to accomplish the goal of reversing criminal activity at our targeted 
hotels and sending the message Addison is not the place you want to operate if 

you’re a criminal. Based on recent arrests, we also anticipate a reduction in 

burglaries and property thefts within the residential areas.” 

 

As this new much more proactive approach develops, the Chief and his team will 

be developing data and metrics that will help us determine staffing and 

enforcement priorities in the future. In the short term this new approach may cause 

the actual crime statistics to surge since we are now aggressively looking for 

finding criminal activity and making arrests. This new balanced approach of 

recognizing the problem, confronting it with education, measurement and 

enforcement was met with applause from the entire Council Chambers and thanks 

for the new approach from Chief Spencer and his entire team. You can watch the 

entire uplifting video from Chief Spencer here. Once again the new “tone at the 
top” and good people working hard have us headed in the right direction. 

 

Other items on our agenda for the evening included an Executive Session item 

reviewing past separation agreements, consent approval of a resolution adopting 

a public information act policy update, designation of representatives to the 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5d6423bf58&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 6 
 

TexPool, TexStar and the local government investment pool, a contract with Halff 

Associates to update the bids on the work for the Winnwood pond dredging 
project, and final payment authorization to Pavecon for the rehabilitation of 

Addison Road. The Council also decided to create a liaison position with the 

Cavanaugh Flight Museum with our Communities Partner Bureau in addition to 

authorizing their $50,000 grant request. 

 

Other Regular Council Meeting items included a presentation and introduction of 

our new Crisis Communication team. Public Communications Director Mary 

Rosenbleeth introduced us to the Addison-based firm Gray Hair PR, and their 

principals each spoke and gave us their experience and backgrounds. Their work 

will begin on March 1, 2016. The Council approved a resolution authorizing our 

staff to enter into a contract with the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power to 

provide electricity for the Town for 2018-2022. Based on current prices we could 

expect to receive several hundred thousand dollars of annual savings. 

 

Our new Interim CFO Scott Neils presented the Finance Department Quarterly 

Financial Review of the first quarter of our financial year that ended December 31, 

2015. For the first time in quite a while, all of our funds are in the “green” and 

we are off to a good start for the financial year. The report is linked here for your 

review. 

 

Our Director of IT Hamid Khaleghipour and Police Chief Paul Spencer gave us 

an update on our combined dispatch and radio project. We are actually a bit 

under budget and just a few weeks behind schedule on this very large multi city 

project. Farmers Branch successfully went live with the first phase of the dispatch 

system this week, and Addison is scheduled to transition to the new dispatch 

center on March 3. Our radio system that’s part of the project has hit some 

technical difficulties, so we have taken it off line and gone back to our old system 

until the technical issues are resolved. The Council was effusive in their praise of 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=21995f53de&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 7 
 

our team moving forward on this very important project that is one of the nation’s 

largest and most expressive examples of the new business model called 
“Shared Services.” As our City Manager said, “This is a big story. It is very 
special to see four cities work together to create a system that improves the 
level of service at lower cost. This a new model of how business will be done 
in the future.” 

 

Our final agenda item was the presentation of the annual Town of Addison Police 

department 2015 racial profiling report. For the fifth year in a row we did not 

have any racial profiling complaints in our department. The report concluded that 

there is no systemic racial profiling in our police department, and we are in full 

compliance with state law. As you may recall we have had body cameras for all of 

our officers, as well as video in all of the police vehicles, for quite some time. 

 

We adjourned our Council Meeting before 10:30pm. 

 

More Council News! 
                                                                                                  

We will be having a Council election this spring in Addison. Filing for the May 

7 election closed last Friday at 5pm and current Council Members Mayor Pro 
Tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore David Heape and 
Council Member Mary Carpenter will be standing for reelection. Running 
against them are Al Angel, Jim Duffy and Paul Walden. Early voting ends 

today, February 26, at 7pm. As mentioned above, Election Day is Saturday, May 7 

with results posted soon after the polls close at 7pm. 

 

This time of year with national, statewide and now local election campaigns 

underway, I am often asked if current Council Members are permitted to 
endorse other candidates in national, statewide or local elections. Recent 

guidance provided to Council on this issue from our City Attorney states, “Section 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 8 
 

2-93(11) however, specifically allows each member of the City Council to lend 
his/her name and official city title (Mayor or Councilmember) in connection 

with any election for public office or in connection with any election ordered by 

the Town on a proposition or measure.” 

 

Business Development 
 

On the afternoon of Wednesday, February 24, 2016, I dropped by for the special 

Grand Opening celebration of a new very interesting store here in Addison. 
Dody D Home Decor is located at 4750 Ratliff Lane, just off of Addison Road 
and a couple of blocks north of Keller Springs Road. Open 10am to 6pm each 

day, they have a wide variety of high quality home furnishings and decor items that 

are all brand new and sold at near wholesale prices. They have a one-of-a-kind 

inventory with new merchandise arriving weekly. Co-owner Cheryl Pembleton 

shared with me that their business model is pretty simple: buy low, then sell low. 

They have access to very unique items from all over the world and because of their 

very low rent factor, they are able to pass along great savings to their customers. 

All items are clearly marked, and they even leave the whole price tags on some so 

you can compare! 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 9 
 

 
 

Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore, our Council liaison with the North Dallas 

Chamber of Commerce, Director of Economic Development Orlando Campos, 

Manager of Economic Development Drew Dietrich and I joined Janelle in helping 

to co-host an event here in Addison on Thursday, February 25 at the very fun and 

entertaining Bitter Sisters microbrewery. The reception for members of the North 

Dallas Chamber began at about 5:30pm and ran until about 7pm with lots of good 

folks learning all about the brewery, its unique history and of course enjoying 

Addison hospitality. This is another great way for us to partner with successful 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 10 
 

organizations and build our brand. Many thanks to Janelle for helping to bring this 

event to Addison and her work as our liaison with the North Dallas Chamber of 

Commerce.   

 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 11 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 12 
 

 
 

On the afternoon of Thursday, February 25, Director of Economic Development 

Orlando Campos, manager of Economic Development Drew Dietrich and I 

represented Addison at the ribbon cutting for Abilene Christian University’s 
brand new Addison campus located in the Hanover Building at 16633 Dallas 

Parkway. We met several enthusiastic members of the University staff that are 

very pleased to be with us here in Addison. They have now taken the entire 

8th floor of the Hanover Building with plans to take over most of the 6th floor for 

even greater expansion. The President of the University, Phil Schubert, spoke 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 13 
 

to the large group about the University’s future and the enthusiasm they have for 

expanding beyond their Abilene campus and joining us here in Addison, even 

offering us opportunities to share their space for meetings or events. The addition 

of a well-respected University campus to our Addison portfolio of diverse 
customers is an excellent addition to our community. We are very proud to 

have the Abilene Christian University Wildcats as part of our Addison. 

   

 
 

Around Town 

 

Late Thursday afternoon on February 25, our Addison Legacy Foundation Board 

met at the offices of UDR for the monthly meeting that rotates each month at 

different board members’ offices. This month our host was board member Tom 
Lamberth with UDR. Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore joined our additional 

board members Chic Martin, Tamela Thornton, Debbie Staggs, Bob Kantner, 
Ray Ryland and Board Chair Blake Clemens. In addition to important 

administrative issues, Tamela and Chic gave us an update on our visioning and 

forward-looking goals. Blake gave us an update on our tentatively scheduled 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 14 
 

December 2, 2016 Vitruvian Lights Run. Additionally, the board approved payment 

for the new Celestial Park pet and people water fountain. Chic Martin and Ray 

Ryland shared with us the exciting news that we found a location for the restoration 

work to be performed on our 1930 fire truck! Blake and Ray worked with Scott 
Buzzell, who owns a hangar on Dooley Road that he has graciously loaned to us 

for the restoration project. In fact as you can see from the photo below, the fire 

truck has been moved from its spot in the bays at Fire Station #1 to its new 

location where the work will begin. Now we need your help! If you would like to 

donate your funds or time to this fun project contact Blake Clemens at 

blake.clemens@tx.rr.com. 

   

mailto:blake.clemens@tx.rr.com


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 15 
 

 
 

I will have the honor tonight of presenting our Rising Star of 2016 Award to our 

very deserving Deputy City Manager Cheryl Delaney at the Metrocrest Chamber 

of Commerce annual awards event. Here with us since 2014, Cheryl helped us 

navigate through some very challenging transition times. Thanks to her extensive 

background in finance, she served in the dual roles of Deputy City Manager and 

CFO through our budget season and until recently with the new hire of Interim 

CFO Scott Neils. Cheryl combines her work history with professional service in 

municipal government finance positions in Round Rock Texas and San Antonio 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 16 
 

with work in the private sector at Deloitte Consulting and HEB Grocery. An avid 

and passionate member and supporter of all that we are doing to improve our 

Athletic Club, Cheryl definitely qualifies as an Addison Rising Star! 

Congratulations Cheryl, we are all very proud of you. 
                        

Coming Events                                                                                                           

 

Wednesday, March 2, 10am: First Wednesday Coffee with the Mayor, Dunn 

Brothers Coffee, 3725 Belt Line Road 

 

Monday, March 7, 11:30am – 1pm:  Monthly Economic Development Luncheon, 

The Londoner, 14930 Midway Road 

 

Monday, March 14 and Wednesday, March 16, 6 – 9pm: Community Meeting of 

the Town’s Master Transportation Plan, 15650 Addison 

Road                                                     

 

We continue to be very busy here in Addison, and that is a very good thing. 
Our business environment has never been better. Addison Airport is 
continuing to improve and draw new customers. Our 10 million square feet 
of office space continues to fill with exciting new office products coming 
online. Two new hotels are under construction to add to our impressive 22 
hotel portfolio. New restaurants are opening virtually every month. Addison 
TreeHouse continues to be the hip space for new entrepreneurs to plant the 
seeds of new businesses, and our commercial property valuations are at all-
time highs. With our new “Tone at the Top” in our own organization, we are 
in the best positon ever here in Addison to meet and embrace a very positive 
future. 
 

I am very proud to be your mayor and to work with our outstanding Council 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 17 
 

 

and amazing staff every day to make sure this very positive trend continues. 
                                                     
See you soon, 

                                                                                                                   

Todd  
  

 

Copyright © 2016 Town of Addison, All rights reserved.  
You are receiving this email because you opted in to receive the weekly Mayor's Newsletter.  
 
Our mailing address is:  
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001 
 
Add us to your address book 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences   

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/vcard?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/unsubscribe?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435&c=ce60bf094c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/profile?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435


 
2950 N. Harwood Street, Ste. 2100, Dallas, TX 75201  •  (214) 397-0030 

 
 

polsinelli.com 

Atlanta       Boston       Chicago       Dallas       Denver       Houston       Kansas City       Los Angeles        Nashville        New York        Phoenix 

St. Louis        San Francisco         Washington, D.C.       Wilmington 
Polsinelli PC, Polsinelli LLP in California 

 
53087363.2 

May 11, 2016 
Via Certified Mail 

William B. Mateja 
(214) 754-5751 
(214) 397-0033 Fax 
bmateja@polsinelli.com 
 
 

 
 
Texas Ethics Commission 
c/o Ms. Anitra Abdullah-Levy 
Assistant General Counsel 
P.O. Box 12070, Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711-2070 
 

 

 

Re: Response to Notice of Ethics Complaints SC-3160388 and SC-3160389 

Dear Texas Ethics Commission, 

This letter is submitted for your consideration in response to two Notices of Complaint 
received by Todd Meier, the Mayor of the Town of Addison. The first is Notice of Complaint, 
SC-3160388, which was filed by Mr. James F. Duffy. The second is Notice of Complaint, SC-
3160389, which was filed by Mr. John F. Oliver. Mayor Meier received the first notice and 
corresponding sworn complaint via certified mail on March 24, 2016, and he received the second 
notice and corresponding sworn complaint on April 8, 2016.  

Considering the similarities between these two Notices of Complaint, and with approval 
from TEC Assistant General Counsel Anitra Abdullah-Levy to do so by May 16, 2016, Mayor 
Meier provides this response to both complaints pursuant to Section 571.1242 of the Texas 
Ethics Commission Government Code and Section 12.52(a) of the Texas Ethics Commission 
Rules. 

ALLEGATIONS 

Within their sworn complaints, Complainant Duffy and Complainant Oliver allege that 
Mayor Meier used public funds for political advertising, in violation of the Texas Election Code, 
Section 255.003.1  

                                                
1  The Notice of Complaint for SC-3160389 also notes that Mr. Oliver appears to allege that Mayor Meier violated the Open Records Act, 

Chapter 552 of the Government Code, but that the Texas Ethics Commission has no jurisdiction to administer or enforce this act. As such, this 
response does not address these allegations, though Mayor Meier denies any wrongdoing with regard to this act as well. 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

53087363.2 

Specifically, both Complaints allege that, within the weekly newsletters that his office 
published on February 26, 2016 and March 4, 2016, the Mayor’s characterization of candidates 
running for City Council in the May 7 election constituted “Political Advertising” under Section 
255.003. See SC-3160388 at Section IV, Page 1; SC-3160389 at Section IV, Page 1. The 
Mayor’s characterization is identical in both newsletters and includes the following language: 

We will be having a Council election this spring in Addison. Filing for the May 7 

election closed last Friday at 5:00pm and current Council members Mayor Pro 

Tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore David Heape and Council 

member Mary Carpenter will be standing for reelection. Running against them are 

Al Angel, Jim Duffy and Paul Walden. Early voting ends today, February 26, at 7pm. 

As mentioned above, Election Day is Saturday, May 7 with results posted soon after the 

polls close at 7pm.  
 
Id. (Citing Newsletters, February 26, 2016 and March 4, 2016 (emphasis in original)). 

In addition, Complainant Oliver alleges that “[t]aken individually and as a body of work 
judged over time, the Newsletter written by Meier is clearly self-promotional, and also regularly 
supports and praises sitting councilmembers perceived to be allies.” SC-3160389 at Section IV, 
Page 1. He further states that “[w]hether viewed in detail or from a macro level, … Meier’s one-
sided commentary has the impact of supporting, directly and indirectly, councilmembers and 
candidates for office.” Id. at Section IV, Pages 1-2.  

To support these allegations, Complainant Oliver makes reference to various passages in 
five of Mayor Meier’s newsletters, claiming that they mischaracterize events, are self-
promotional, and/or show support of certain councilmembers over others. He also references 
multiple emails between council members and citizens of Addison to support his claims, though 
the emails appear nowhere in the newsletters. See id. at Section V. 

Complainant Oliver divides his claims into four categories: 

1. Self-promotion/support of councilmembers in Addison’s January 29, 2016 

Newsletter (including three who were then expected to, and have now filed for 

reelection in May 2016). 

2. Improper support of Janelle Moore’s candidacy in 2014. 

3. Attacks on prior management and employees as a way of supporting current 

councilmembers. 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

53087363.2 

4. Number of mentions/photos/photo coverage. 

See id. at Section IV. 

Mayor Meier denies any wrongdoing with regard to the publication of his weekly 
newsletters. For the reasons stated below, Mayor Meier urges this Commission to find that there 
was not a violation of the law and dismiss both Complaints. 

RELEVANT REGULATIONS AND DEFINITIONS 

Section 255.003 of the Texas Election Code provides as follows: 

(a) An officer or employee of a political subdivision may not spend or authorize 
the spending of public funds for political advertising.  

(b) This section does not apply to a communication that factually describes the 
purposes of a measure if the communication does not advocate passage or 
defeat of the measure.  

(c) A person who violates this section commits an offense. An offense under this 
section is a Class A misdemeanor. 

This Commission defines “political advertising,” in relevant part, as “a communication 
supporting or opposing a candidate for nomination or election to a public office or office of a 
political party, a political party, a public officer, or a measure that: … (B) appears: 

(i)  in a pamphlet, circular, flier, billboard or other sign, bumper sticker, or 
similar form of written communication; or 

(ii)  on an Internet website.” Tex. Election Code, §251.001(16). 

This Commission has previously held that “[t]he critical issue in determining whether an 
advertisement is ‘political advertising’ is whether it is a communication supporting or opposing a 
candidate or a public officer. … Whether a particular communication supports or opposes a 
candidate or a public officer is a fact question.” Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 (2007) (internal 
citations omitted). 

The Commission specifically excludes newsletters from this definition under the Ethics 
Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3), so long as the newsletter in question fulfills the following 
requirements: 

 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 

53087363.2 

(1) It includes no more than two pictures of a public officer per page and if the 
total amount of area covered by the pictures is no more than 20 percent of the 
page on which the pictures appear; 

(2) It includes no more than eight personally phrased references (such as the 
public officer’s name, “I”, “me”, “the city council member”) on a page that is 
8 ½” x 11” or larger, with a reasonable reduction in the number of such 
personally phrased references in pages smaller than 8 ½” x 11”; and 

(3) When viewed as a whole and in the proper context: 

 (A) is informational rather than self-promotional; 

 (B) does not advocate passage or defeat of a measure; and 

 (C) does not support or oppose a candidate for nomination or election to a 
public office or office of political party, a political party, or a public 
officer. 

When viewed as a whole and in the proper context, Mayor Meier’s newsletters satisfy the 
requirements under the Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3) and do not constitute “political 
advertising” within the meaning of Texas Election Code Section 255.003. 

ARGUMENTS AND LEGAL SUPPORT 

A. Each newsletter must be viewed individually and not “as a body of work judged 

over time.” 

Complainant Oliver’s contention that Mayor Meier’s newsletters constitute political 
advertising “as a body of work judged over time” and when viewed “from a macro level” is 
misguided and an improper application of the relevant rules. The Texas Election Code and Ethics 
Commission Rules each define political advertisements using references to individual 
communications: 

1. Tex. Election Code, §251.001(16) uses the singular article “a communication” in 

its definition of political advertising. 

2. Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3) uses the singular article “a newsletter” and 

describes the analysis of each newsletter individually, “[w]hen viewed as a whole 

and in the proper context.” 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 5 
 

 

53087363.2 

In addition, all advisory opinions discussing newsletters and other publications as 
potential political advertisements analyze individual documents based on the documents 
themselves and not extraneous evidence. See, e.g., Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994) 
(discussing a brochure); Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 (2007) (discussing a four-page 
newsletter); Ethics Advisory Opinion 506 (2012) (discussing a refrigerator magnet).  

Each of Mayor Meier’s newsletters is produced and distributed individually each week. 
Once a newsletter is emailed to those recipients who have requested to be included on the 
mailing list, it is then published on its own page and linked to the Addison city website for 
archive purposes.2 The Mayor has published hundreds of these weekly newsletters since July 1, 
2011, and each newsletter contains numerous pages of information. Analyzing these newsletters 
as a homogeneous mass is unrealistic and improper under the rules.  

In fact, Complainant Oliver himself does not analyze the hundreds of newsletters “as a 
body of work judged over time.” Instead, he selectively references factual passages from five 
newsletters over a two-year period—combined with emails and other extraneous information 
completely unrelated to the newsletters themselves—to fabricate what can only be described as a 
subliminal political advertising campaign by Mayor Meier. It is clear that Complainant Oliver 
dislikes the way Mayor Meier recounts certain community events, but this does not create 
grounds for classifying any of the newsletters as political advertising. Complainant Oliver’s 
unfounded arguments and “conspiracy theory” analysis methods find no support in the relevant 
rules and should be rejected by this Commission.  

B. The language in question does not constitute political advertising by the plain 

meaning of the applicable regulations. 

When reviewing each of Mayor Meier’s newsletters individually and in their entirety, it is 
nearly impossible to see how they would constitute political advertising under the definitions of 
the Texas Election Code and Ethics Commission Rules. Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(3) 
specifically states that the newsletter must be viewed “as a whole and in the proper context.” Yet 
both Complainants isolate three factual sentences that list the date of an upcoming election and 
the names of the six candidates involved to support the allegation that the entire purpose of the 
newsletters (indeed, the six-year existence of weekly newsletters) is to support three incumbent 
candidates. 

The three sentences in question express no opinion about any of the candidates, either 
positive or negative. They simply reference the fact that three candidates are incumbents, listing 
                                                
2  The archive links may be found here: http://blog-addisontx.info/category/mayor (last accessed on May 5, 2016). 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 6 
 

 

53087363.2 

the titles under which they operate as councilmembers to give context to their incumbency. It is 
unreasonable to consider such factual statements as promoting a campaign, and doing so would 
stifle the ability for public officials to properly inform their community of any local elections in 
the future. 

After repeating almost all of Complainant Duffy’s Complaint verbatim, Complainant 
Oliver attempts to find support of Mayor Meier’s perceived bias using selective passages from 
various newsletters dating back to March 2014. Once again, none of the newsletters containing 
the referenced passages, when viewed in context of the corresponding newsletter as a whole, 
come close to the definition of political advertising under Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3).  

In fact, Complainant Oliver—likely realizing that the three sentences discussed above 
were completely innocuous on their face and insufficient to support an ethics violation claim—
returns to that passage later in his Complaint to bolster the argument. He states that “[b]rief 
background is needed to fully appreciate the nature of the problems with the February 26, 2016 
Newsletter,” and then describes the events of an unrelated council meeting, among other things. 
SC-3160389 at Section IV, Page 9. He argues that these facts show “Meier’s keen awareness of 
the upcoming election” and thus his political purpose in referencing the upcoming election and 
candidates as he did. Id. Once again, this extraneous information is irrelevant to this 
Commission’s analysis and merely emphasizes the fact that the newsletters are not political 
advertising under the rules.  

In another example, Complainant Oliver cites the following two sentences within the 
March 7, 2014 newsletter to claim that the entire fourteen-page document—as well as future 
newsletters—should be considered political advertising: 

Council Member Janelle Moore whose outstanding academic career from Ursuline to 

University of North Texas undergraduate degree and her MBA from UT at Dallas, 12 

years of professional success in the medical sales and business development field and 

remarkable community service work from Africa to Addison, was honored with the 

Chamber’s Rising Star Award. Congratulations Janelle, you make Addison very proud.  
 
SC-3160389 at Section IV, Page 8 (emphasis in original). 

The language in question simply commends a council member for receiving an award, 
listing her accomplishments to give context as to why she received it. It makes no reference to 
any election, is situated unremarkably at the end of a paragraph in the middle of the fourth page 
of text, and is surrounded by acknowledgements of other individuals and descriptions of other 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 7 
 

 

53087363.2 

events and accomplishments within the city over the previous week. Further, it is not 
accompanied by any picture of the council member, nor is it emphasized in any way. 

In this context, it is clear that the purpose of the newsletter is not to promote an electoral 
candidate, but to educate readers on weekly events in Addison and highlight the successes within 
the city by community members, including those in leadership positions. 

Considering the volume of information provided in each of the newsletters, and the 
relevant nature of the information that they provide for subscribers regarding Council activities, 
community economic development, and upcoming events, the Complainants’ argument that they 
each constitute political advertising holds no weight. 

C. The newsletters do not support or oppose a candidate for nomination or election to a 

public office. 

Under the Ethics Commission Rules and Ethics Advisory Opinions, it is clear that Mayor 
Meier’s newsletters do not support or oppose any candidate for public office, as they do not 
reference any candidates in an “unduly conspicuous way.” As previously stated, the newsletter 
must be viewed as a whole and in the proper context, and the determination regarding whether 
each newsletter constitutes “political advertising” as defined by the Election Code is made on an 
individual basis. See Ethics Commission Rule 26.2. 

The three sentences in which Mayor Meier describes the May 2016 election is the only 
language referenced in either Complaint that pertains to an upcoming election and the associated 
candidates. They constitute one paragraph near the end of the text in the two associated 
newsletters, each of which is over a dozen pages long. 

This Commission previously found that a brochure featuring an incumbent candidate’s 
identifying information, including his title and duties, was not political advertising under 
251.001(16): 

The text of the brochure merely describes the duties of the justice of the peace court. The 
name of the incumbent justice of the peace appears only on the letterhead, and this is not 
done in an unduly conspicuous way or in a way that would lead one to believe that the 
purpose of the brochure was to support the incumbent.  

Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994). 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 8 
 

 

53087363.2 

The brochure under consideration in Opinion 211 listed the duties of a justice of the 
peace and included detailed information about a particular incumbent justice of the peace. Even 
though the brochure included the name, current title, specific duties, courthouse address, and 
courthouse phone number of the incumbent, this Commission did not consider it political 
advertising. 

Much like in the brochure analyzed in Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994), Mayor 
Meier’s newsletters did not highlight the names of the committee members in an “unduly 
conspicuous way.”  Indeed, Major Meier’s use of names and titles were less conspicuous than 
that in Opinion 211 in numerous ways:  

1. Although the incumbents’ names are in boldface in the Mayor’s newsletters, so 

too are the other three candidates’ names and all other names he references, along 

with significant portions of other text throughout the newsletters.  

2. The brochure in Opinion 211 did not mention any other candidates, whereas 

Mayor Meier’s newsletters recite all the candidates. 

3. Finally, the brochure in Opinion 211 restricted its topic to information about the 

justice of the peace and his personal information and duties, whereas the section 

at issue in Mayor Meier’s newsletters make up only one informational paragraph 

in over a dozen pages of material covering a wide range of topics. 

See Newsletters, February 26, 2016 and March 4, 2016. 

The newsletters’ references to these candidates are far from “unduly conspicuous,” and 
thus do not show sufficient support or opposition to raise the newsletters to the level of political 
advertising under the rules. 

D. The distribution of the newsletters is not campaign related.  

Mayor Meier’s newsletters should not be considered political advertising because their 
weekly distribution is not related to any campaign. The timing of any publication and the 
targeted nature of its distribution are important considerations for whether the publication 
constitutes political advertising. See Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994). In Opinion 211, the 
Commission noted that an incumbent justice of the peace was featured on a brochure that the 
justice of the peace handed out “when speaking at meetings.” Id. Still, the Commission found 
that “[n]o facts [were] indicated that would lead the commission to believe that distribution of 
the brochure [was] campaign related. Therefore, we do not believe that the brochure provided for 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 9 
 

 

53087363.2 

our inspection constitutes political advertising as that term is defined in section 251.001(16) of 
the Election Code.” Id.  

Mayor Meier’s newsletters have been published almost every week since July 2011 and 
are distributed to all individuals who subscribe to the newsletter mailing list, which currently 
contains approximately 2,500 email addresses. These subscriptions are voluntary and available to 
anyone on the Town of Addison website.3  

When viewed in their entirety, Mayor Meier’s newsletters—much like the brochure in 
Opinion 211—are clearly not campaign related, as they are published regularly regardless of the 
proximity to any election, and distributed to voluntary recipients. Indeed, they are less like 
political advertisements than the brochure in Opinion 211, as they discuss numerous topics 
unrelated to the candidates in the pending election or their leadership roles, and they are sent to 
anyone who signs up to the distribution list online. 

E. The newsletters are informational rather than self-promotional. 

The Complainants’ argument that Mayor Meier’s newsletters are self-promotional under 
Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(3)(A) is unfounded and illogical.4 The Mayor is not up for 
reelection. He is at the end of his third two-year term, and could not run for any other council 
position, as the deadline to file for such positions passed in February. Once he completes this 
term, he does not intend to seek public office, and would not benefit from publishing a self-
promotional political advertisement, much less one that would subject him to scrutiny by this 
Commission. 

Also, the fact that Mayor Meier’s photos are present in the newsletters does not make 
them self-promotional, and Complainant Oliver’s reliance on Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 to 
imply otherwise is misplaced. Even that opinion notes that “[t]he mere fact that the name of a 
public officer or the picture of a public officer appears in a newsletter would not determine 
whether the communication constitutes political advertising.” Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 
(2007). The newsletter under scrutiny in that opinion contained 23 pictures of the public official 
in just four pages of content, making up over 50 percent of the entire newsletter. See id. This 
Commission determined that the use of pictures was excessive in that case and considered the 
newsletter to be political advertising, taking the opportunity to outline the newsletter guidelines 

                                                
3  http://www.addisontexas.net/index.php?section=mayors_newsletter. 
4  Although the Complainants do not argue that Mayor Meier’s newsletters advocate the passage or defeat of any measure under Ethics 

Commission Rule 26.2(3)(B), it is important to note that the newsletters satisfy this requirement as well, as none of the measures that were 
discussed in the referenced newsletters were pending for a vote. 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 10 
 

 

53087363.2 

later codified in Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(2). See id. While photographs of Mayor Meier 
periodically appear in his newsletters, their frequency and size abide by this Rule and are far 
from excessive in the context of the newsletters as a whole. Thus, they should not be considered 
self-promotional. 

On the contrary, as they have been since their inception over five years ago, Mayor 
Meier’s newsletters are informational tools that describe weekly council activities, special 
occasions, local economic development, and upcoming meetings and events, which periodically 
include pending elections. When elections are approaching, the mayor simply provides voting 
location information and the names of the candidates. The fact that he mentions candidates’ 
incumbency is not dispositive, particularly because doing so provides additional information for 
the reader as required under Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(3)(A).  

Indeed, the anti-establishment sentiment permeating much of the political landscape of 
the past few years calls into question the assumption that providing such additional information 
would even benefit an incumbent’s candidacy, especially considering the rise of the Tea Party 
and the state of the current presidential race.  

F. The newsletters are vetted using an extensive internal review process to ensure 

compliance with legal and ethical requirements. 

Mayor Meier takes the ethical requirements of his office very seriously and makes every 
effort to ensure that his newsletters are compliant. He has published the newsletters for over five 
years without a complaint such as these being raised and investigated by this commission. Not 
only that, he and his office helped develop and implement an extensive internal review process 
for the weekly newsletters almost three years ago. 

On September 24, 2013, the Addison City Council held a public hearing to discuss the 
future of the newsletter. After hearing from multiple speakers and debating at length, the council 
established a new process whereby the City Attorney would review and make any necessary 
edits to each newsletter before publication to ensure that it was compliant with any relevant 
ethical requirements. The attending council members, including Neil Resnik, Bruce Arfsten, 
Blake Clemens, Janelle Moore, Chris Defrancisco, and Mayor Meier, voted unanimously in 
favor of the motion.  

Every Thursday evening since that motion was approved, the Mayor has circulated a draft 
newsletter about the events of the previous week to the City Attorney and numerous other city 
officials on Town staff for review. One of the primary goals of the review is to ensure that the 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 11 
 

 

53087363.2 

newsletters do not fall within the definition of “Political Advertising” under section 251.001(16) 
of the Election Code and section 26.2(3)(A) of the Ethics Commission Rules. 

Once the City Attorney and other reviewing officials finish editing Mayor Meier’s 
newsletter, they approve the newsletter’s content for publication the following morning. At that 
point, the City Director of Marketing and Communications reformats the final newsletter, emails 
it to all the mailing list subscribers, and publishes it on its own web page that is linked to the 
Addison City website. The Mayor is restricted from seeing, editing, or giving further input for 
the newsletter from the time he submits the draft on Thursday night until the newsletter is 
published.  

In fact, Mayor Meier and his office sought to remedy any ethical concerns in this instance 
long before the concerns were brought before this Commission. For example, in an abundance of 
caution, the Mayor completely removed any reference to the May election and its candidates 
from his draft for the March 7, 2016 newsletter5 after Complainant Duffy sent him an email on 
March 4, 2016 objecting to the language used therein.6 Then, although the City Attorney and 
other reviewing city officials found nothing objectionable about the language in question, the 
City Attorney requested an advisory opinion regarding the newsletters from this Commission on 
March 1, 2016,7 but did not receive a response before Complainant Duffy filed his Complaint 
with this Commission.  

G. Conclusion 

Based on the facts described above, it is clear that Mayor Meier is committed to the 
ethical requirements set forth by this Commission and applicable regulations, and he has 
published the newsletters for the Town of Addison with diligence and respect for these 
requirements for over five years. His newsletters, when viewed as a whole and in proper context, 
are informational rather than self-promotional, and they do not promote any candidate for public 
office. The Complainants’ arguments to the contrary are based on irrelevant facts and a 
misinterpretation of the law. Mayor Meier urges this Commission to find that there was not a 
violation of the law and dismiss both Complaints so that he and other Texas leadership may 
continue to promulgate informative newsletters for the benefit of their local communities.  

 

                                                
5 Published version is marked as Exhibit F in Complaint SC-3160389. 
6 Marked as Exhibit C in Complaint SC-3160388. 
7 Included as Exhibit A. 





   
AI-1682     Item #   15.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss And Consider Action Needed For Reimbursement Of Legal Expenses For
The Mayor's Defense Of Complaints Filed With The Texas Ethics
Commission That The Mayor's Newsletter Is "Political Advertising."

BACKGROUND:
On March 24, 2016, Mayor Todd Meier received a Notice of Complaint filed by James
Duffy from the Texas Ethics Commission. On April 8, 2016, Mayor Meier received a
second Notice of Complaint filed by John Oliver. Within their sworn complaints,
Complainant Duffy and Complainant Oliver allege that Mayor Meier used public funds for
political advertising, in violation of the Texas Election Code, Section 255.003. 

The complaints and the Mayor's response are attached to this agenda item. This item
is to allow the Council to discuss and consider reimbursement of legal expenses.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks direction from Council.

Attachments
Response to Notice of Ethics Complaints
Town of Addison TEC Opinion Request
Complaint-Duffy
Complaint-Oliver



 
2950 N. Harwood Street, Ste. 2100, Dallas, TX 75201  •  (214) 397-0030 

 
 

polsinelli.com 

Atlanta       Boston       Chicago       Dallas       Denver       Houston       Kansas City       Los Angeles        Nashville        New York        Phoenix 

St. Louis        San Francisco         Washington, D.C.       Wilmington 
Polsinelli PC, Polsinelli LLP in California 

 
53087363.2 

May 11, 2016 
Via Certified Mail 

William B. Mateja 
(214) 754-5751 
(214) 397-0033 Fax 
bmateja@polsinelli.com 
 
 

 
 
Texas Ethics Commission 
c/o Ms. Anitra Abdullah-Levy 
Assistant General Counsel 
P.O. Box 12070, Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711-2070 
 

 

 

Re: Response to Notice of Ethics Complaints SC-3160388 and SC-3160389 

Dear Texas Ethics Commission, 

This letter is submitted for your consideration in response to two Notices of Complaint 
received by Todd Meier, the Mayor of the Town of Addison. The first is Notice of Complaint, 
SC-3160388, which was filed by Mr. James F. Duffy. The second is Notice of Complaint, SC-
3160389, which was filed by Mr. John F. Oliver. Mayor Meier received the first notice and 
corresponding sworn complaint via certified mail on March 24, 2016, and he received the second 
notice and corresponding sworn complaint on April 8, 2016.  

Considering the similarities between these two Notices of Complaint, and with approval 
from TEC Assistant General Counsel Anitra Abdullah-Levy to do so by May 16, 2016, Mayor 
Meier provides this response to both complaints pursuant to Section 571.1242 of the Texas 
Ethics Commission Government Code and Section 12.52(a) of the Texas Ethics Commission 
Rules. 

ALLEGATIONS 

Within their sworn complaints, Complainant Duffy and Complainant Oliver allege that 
Mayor Meier used public funds for political advertising, in violation of the Texas Election Code, 
Section 255.003.1  

                                                
1  The Notice of Complaint for SC-3160389 also notes that Mr. Oliver appears to allege that Mayor Meier violated the Open Records Act, 

Chapter 552 of the Government Code, but that the Texas Ethics Commission has no jurisdiction to administer or enforce this act. As such, this 
response does not address these allegations, though Mayor Meier denies any wrongdoing with regard to this act as well. 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 

53087363.2 

Specifically, both Complaints allege that, within the weekly newsletters that his office 
published on February 26, 2016 and March 4, 2016, the Mayor’s characterization of candidates 
running for City Council in the May 7 election constituted “Political Advertising” under Section 
255.003. See SC-3160388 at Section IV, Page 1; SC-3160389 at Section IV, Page 1. The 
Mayor’s characterization is identical in both newsletters and includes the following language: 

We will be having a Council election this spring in Addison. Filing for the May 7 

election closed last Friday at 5:00pm and current Council members Mayor Pro 

Tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore David Heape and Council 

member Mary Carpenter will be standing for reelection. Running against them are 

Al Angel, Jim Duffy and Paul Walden. Early voting ends today, February 26, at 7pm. 

As mentioned above, Election Day is Saturday, May 7 with results posted soon after the 

polls close at 7pm.  
 
Id. (Citing Newsletters, February 26, 2016 and March 4, 2016 (emphasis in original)). 

In addition, Complainant Oliver alleges that “[t]aken individually and as a body of work 
judged over time, the Newsletter written by Meier is clearly self-promotional, and also regularly 
supports and praises sitting councilmembers perceived to be allies.” SC-3160389 at Section IV, 
Page 1. He further states that “[w]hether viewed in detail or from a macro level, … Meier’s one-
sided commentary has the impact of supporting, directly and indirectly, councilmembers and 
candidates for office.” Id. at Section IV, Pages 1-2.  

To support these allegations, Complainant Oliver makes reference to various passages in 
five of Mayor Meier’s newsletters, claiming that they mischaracterize events, are self-
promotional, and/or show support of certain councilmembers over others. He also references 
multiple emails between council members and citizens of Addison to support his claims, though 
the emails appear nowhere in the newsletters. See id. at Section V. 

Complainant Oliver divides his claims into four categories: 

1. Self-promotion/support of councilmembers in Addison’s January 29, 2016 

Newsletter (including three who were then expected to, and have now filed for 

reelection in May 2016). 

2. Improper support of Janelle Moore’s candidacy in 2014. 

3. Attacks on prior management and employees as a way of supporting current 

councilmembers. 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 

53087363.2 

4. Number of mentions/photos/photo coverage. 

See id. at Section IV. 

Mayor Meier denies any wrongdoing with regard to the publication of his weekly 
newsletters. For the reasons stated below, Mayor Meier urges this Commission to find that there 
was not a violation of the law and dismiss both Complaints. 

RELEVANT REGULATIONS AND DEFINITIONS 

Section 255.003 of the Texas Election Code provides as follows: 

(a) An officer or employee of a political subdivision may not spend or authorize 
the spending of public funds for political advertising.  

(b) This section does not apply to a communication that factually describes the 
purposes of a measure if the communication does not advocate passage or 
defeat of the measure.  

(c) A person who violates this section commits an offense. An offense under this 
section is a Class A misdemeanor. 

This Commission defines “political advertising,” in relevant part, as “a communication 
supporting or opposing a candidate for nomination or election to a public office or office of a 
political party, a political party, a public officer, or a measure that: … (B) appears: 

(i)  in a pamphlet, circular, flier, billboard or other sign, bumper sticker, or 
similar form of written communication; or 

(ii)  on an Internet website.” Tex. Election Code, §251.001(16). 

This Commission has previously held that “[t]he critical issue in determining whether an 
advertisement is ‘political advertising’ is whether it is a communication supporting or opposing a 
candidate or a public officer. … Whether a particular communication supports or opposes a 
candidate or a public officer is a fact question.” Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 (2007) (internal 
citations omitted). 

The Commission specifically excludes newsletters from this definition under the Ethics 
Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3), so long as the newsletter in question fulfills the following 
requirements: 

 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 

53087363.2 

(1) It includes no more than two pictures of a public officer per page and if the 
total amount of area covered by the pictures is no more than 20 percent of the 
page on which the pictures appear; 

(2) It includes no more than eight personally phrased references (such as the 
public officer’s name, “I”, “me”, “the city council member”) on a page that is 
8 ½” x 11” or larger, with a reasonable reduction in the number of such 
personally phrased references in pages smaller than 8 ½” x 11”; and 

(3) When viewed as a whole and in the proper context: 

 (A) is informational rather than self-promotional; 

 (B) does not advocate passage or defeat of a measure; and 

 (C) does not support or oppose a candidate for nomination or election to a 
public office or office of political party, a political party, or a public 
officer. 

When viewed as a whole and in the proper context, Mayor Meier’s newsletters satisfy the 
requirements under the Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3) and do not constitute “political 
advertising” within the meaning of Texas Election Code Section 255.003. 

ARGUMENTS AND LEGAL SUPPORT 

A. Each newsletter must be viewed individually and not “as a body of work judged 

over time.” 

Complainant Oliver’s contention that Mayor Meier’s newsletters constitute political 
advertising “as a body of work judged over time” and when viewed “from a macro level” is 
misguided and an improper application of the relevant rules. The Texas Election Code and Ethics 
Commission Rules each define political advertisements using references to individual 
communications: 

1. Tex. Election Code, §251.001(16) uses the singular article “a communication” in 

its definition of political advertising. 

2. Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3) uses the singular article “a newsletter” and 

describes the analysis of each newsletter individually, “[w]hen viewed as a whole 

and in the proper context.” 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 5 
 

 

53087363.2 

In addition, all advisory opinions discussing newsletters and other publications as 
potential political advertisements analyze individual documents based on the documents 
themselves and not extraneous evidence. See, e.g., Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994) 
(discussing a brochure); Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 (2007) (discussing a four-page 
newsletter); Ethics Advisory Opinion 506 (2012) (discussing a refrigerator magnet).  

Each of Mayor Meier’s newsletters is produced and distributed individually each week. 
Once a newsletter is emailed to those recipients who have requested to be included on the 
mailing list, it is then published on its own page and linked to the Addison city website for 
archive purposes.2 The Mayor has published hundreds of these weekly newsletters since July 1, 
2011, and each newsletter contains numerous pages of information. Analyzing these newsletters 
as a homogeneous mass is unrealistic and improper under the rules.  

In fact, Complainant Oliver himself does not analyze the hundreds of newsletters “as a 
body of work judged over time.” Instead, he selectively references factual passages from five 
newsletters over a two-year period—combined with emails and other extraneous information 
completely unrelated to the newsletters themselves—to fabricate what can only be described as a 
subliminal political advertising campaign by Mayor Meier. It is clear that Complainant Oliver 
dislikes the way Mayor Meier recounts certain community events, but this does not create 
grounds for classifying any of the newsletters as political advertising. Complainant Oliver’s 
unfounded arguments and “conspiracy theory” analysis methods find no support in the relevant 
rules and should be rejected by this Commission.  

B. The language in question does not constitute political advertising by the plain 

meaning of the applicable regulations. 

When reviewing each of Mayor Meier’s newsletters individually and in their entirety, it is 
nearly impossible to see how they would constitute political advertising under the definitions of 
the Texas Election Code and Ethics Commission Rules. Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(3) 
specifically states that the newsletter must be viewed “as a whole and in the proper context.” Yet 
both Complainants isolate three factual sentences that list the date of an upcoming election and 
the names of the six candidates involved to support the allegation that the entire purpose of the 
newsletters (indeed, the six-year existence of weekly newsletters) is to support three incumbent 
candidates. 

The three sentences in question express no opinion about any of the candidates, either 
positive or negative. They simply reference the fact that three candidates are incumbents, listing 
                                                
2  The archive links may be found here: http://blog-addisontx.info/category/mayor (last accessed on May 5, 2016). 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 6 
 

 

53087363.2 

the titles under which they operate as councilmembers to give context to their incumbency. It is 
unreasonable to consider such factual statements as promoting a campaign, and doing so would 
stifle the ability for public officials to properly inform their community of any local elections in 
the future. 

After repeating almost all of Complainant Duffy’s Complaint verbatim, Complainant 
Oliver attempts to find support of Mayor Meier’s perceived bias using selective passages from 
various newsletters dating back to March 2014. Once again, none of the newsletters containing 
the referenced passages, when viewed in context of the corresponding newsletter as a whole, 
come close to the definition of political advertising under Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(1)-(3).  

In fact, Complainant Oliver—likely realizing that the three sentences discussed above 
were completely innocuous on their face and insufficient to support an ethics violation claim—
returns to that passage later in his Complaint to bolster the argument. He states that “[b]rief 
background is needed to fully appreciate the nature of the problems with the February 26, 2016 
Newsletter,” and then describes the events of an unrelated council meeting, among other things. 
SC-3160389 at Section IV, Page 9. He argues that these facts show “Meier’s keen awareness of 
the upcoming election” and thus his political purpose in referencing the upcoming election and 
candidates as he did. Id. Once again, this extraneous information is irrelevant to this 
Commission’s analysis and merely emphasizes the fact that the newsletters are not political 
advertising under the rules.  

In another example, Complainant Oliver cites the following two sentences within the 
March 7, 2014 newsletter to claim that the entire fourteen-page document—as well as future 
newsletters—should be considered political advertising: 

Council Member Janelle Moore whose outstanding academic career from Ursuline to 

University of North Texas undergraduate degree and her MBA from UT at Dallas, 12 

years of professional success in the medical sales and business development field and 

remarkable community service work from Africa to Addison, was honored with the 

Chamber’s Rising Star Award. Congratulations Janelle, you make Addison very proud.  
 
SC-3160389 at Section IV, Page 8 (emphasis in original). 

The language in question simply commends a council member for receiving an award, 
listing her accomplishments to give context as to why she received it. It makes no reference to 
any election, is situated unremarkably at the end of a paragraph in the middle of the fourth page 
of text, and is surrounded by acknowledgements of other individuals and descriptions of other 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 7 
 

 

53087363.2 

events and accomplishments within the city over the previous week. Further, it is not 
accompanied by any picture of the council member, nor is it emphasized in any way. 

In this context, it is clear that the purpose of the newsletter is not to promote an electoral 
candidate, but to educate readers on weekly events in Addison and highlight the successes within 
the city by community members, including those in leadership positions. 

Considering the volume of information provided in each of the newsletters, and the 
relevant nature of the information that they provide for subscribers regarding Council activities, 
community economic development, and upcoming events, the Complainants’ argument that they 
each constitute political advertising holds no weight. 

C. The newsletters do not support or oppose a candidate for nomination or election to a 

public office. 

Under the Ethics Commission Rules and Ethics Advisory Opinions, it is clear that Mayor 
Meier’s newsletters do not support or oppose any candidate for public office, as they do not 
reference any candidates in an “unduly conspicuous way.” As previously stated, the newsletter 
must be viewed as a whole and in the proper context, and the determination regarding whether 
each newsletter constitutes “political advertising” as defined by the Election Code is made on an 
individual basis. See Ethics Commission Rule 26.2. 

The three sentences in which Mayor Meier describes the May 2016 election is the only 
language referenced in either Complaint that pertains to an upcoming election and the associated 
candidates. They constitute one paragraph near the end of the text in the two associated 
newsletters, each of which is over a dozen pages long. 

This Commission previously found that a brochure featuring an incumbent candidate’s 
identifying information, including his title and duties, was not political advertising under 
251.001(16): 

The text of the brochure merely describes the duties of the justice of the peace court. The 
name of the incumbent justice of the peace appears only on the letterhead, and this is not 
done in an unduly conspicuous way or in a way that would lead one to believe that the 
purpose of the brochure was to support the incumbent.  

Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994). 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 8 
 

 

53087363.2 

The brochure under consideration in Opinion 211 listed the duties of a justice of the 
peace and included detailed information about a particular incumbent justice of the peace. Even 
though the brochure included the name, current title, specific duties, courthouse address, and 
courthouse phone number of the incumbent, this Commission did not consider it political 
advertising. 

Much like in the brochure analyzed in Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994), Mayor 
Meier’s newsletters did not highlight the names of the committee members in an “unduly 
conspicuous way.”  Indeed, Major Meier’s use of names and titles were less conspicuous than 
that in Opinion 211 in numerous ways:  

1. Although the incumbents’ names are in boldface in the Mayor’s newsletters, so 

too are the other three candidates’ names and all other names he references, along 

with significant portions of other text throughout the newsletters.  

2. The brochure in Opinion 211 did not mention any other candidates, whereas 

Mayor Meier’s newsletters recite all the candidates. 

3. Finally, the brochure in Opinion 211 restricted its topic to information about the 

justice of the peace and his personal information and duties, whereas the section 

at issue in Mayor Meier’s newsletters make up only one informational paragraph 

in over a dozen pages of material covering a wide range of topics. 

See Newsletters, February 26, 2016 and March 4, 2016. 

The newsletters’ references to these candidates are far from “unduly conspicuous,” and 
thus do not show sufficient support or opposition to raise the newsletters to the level of political 
advertising under the rules. 

D. The distribution of the newsletters is not campaign related.  

Mayor Meier’s newsletters should not be considered political advertising because their 
weekly distribution is not related to any campaign. The timing of any publication and the 
targeted nature of its distribution are important considerations for whether the publication 
constitutes political advertising. See Ethics Advisory Opinion 211 (1994). In Opinion 211, the 
Commission noted that an incumbent justice of the peace was featured on a brochure that the 
justice of the peace handed out “when speaking at meetings.” Id. Still, the Commission found 
that “[n]o facts [were] indicated that would lead the commission to believe that distribution of 
the brochure [was] campaign related. Therefore, we do not believe that the brochure provided for 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 9 
 

 

53087363.2 

our inspection constitutes political advertising as that term is defined in section 251.001(16) of 
the Election Code.” Id.  

Mayor Meier’s newsletters have been published almost every week since July 2011 and 
are distributed to all individuals who subscribe to the newsletter mailing list, which currently 
contains approximately 2,500 email addresses. These subscriptions are voluntary and available to 
anyone on the Town of Addison website.3  

When viewed in their entirety, Mayor Meier’s newsletters—much like the brochure in 
Opinion 211—are clearly not campaign related, as they are published regularly regardless of the 
proximity to any election, and distributed to voluntary recipients. Indeed, they are less like 
political advertisements than the brochure in Opinion 211, as they discuss numerous topics 
unrelated to the candidates in the pending election or their leadership roles, and they are sent to 
anyone who signs up to the distribution list online. 

E. The newsletters are informational rather than self-promotional. 

The Complainants’ argument that Mayor Meier’s newsletters are self-promotional under 
Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(3)(A) is unfounded and illogical.4 The Mayor is not up for 
reelection. He is at the end of his third two-year term, and could not run for any other council 
position, as the deadline to file for such positions passed in February. Once he completes this 
term, he does not intend to seek public office, and would not benefit from publishing a self-
promotional political advertisement, much less one that would subject him to scrutiny by this 
Commission. 

Also, the fact that Mayor Meier’s photos are present in the newsletters does not make 
them self-promotional, and Complainant Oliver’s reliance on Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 to 
imply otherwise is misplaced. Even that opinion notes that “[t]he mere fact that the name of a 
public officer or the picture of a public officer appears in a newsletter would not determine 
whether the communication constitutes political advertising.” Ethics Advisory Opinion 476 
(2007). The newsletter under scrutiny in that opinion contained 23 pictures of the public official 
in just four pages of content, making up over 50 percent of the entire newsletter. See id. This 
Commission determined that the use of pictures was excessive in that case and considered the 
newsletter to be political advertising, taking the opportunity to outline the newsletter guidelines 

                                                
3  http://www.addisontexas.net/index.php?section=mayors_newsletter. 
4  Although the Complainants do not argue that Mayor Meier’s newsletters advocate the passage or defeat of any measure under Ethics 

Commission Rule 26.2(3)(B), it is important to note that the newsletters satisfy this requirement as well, as none of the measures that were 
discussed in the referenced newsletters were pending for a vote. 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 10 
 

 

53087363.2 

later codified in Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(2). See id. While photographs of Mayor Meier 
periodically appear in his newsletters, their frequency and size abide by this Rule and are far 
from excessive in the context of the newsletters as a whole. Thus, they should not be considered 
self-promotional. 

On the contrary, as they have been since their inception over five years ago, Mayor 
Meier’s newsletters are informational tools that describe weekly council activities, special 
occasions, local economic development, and upcoming meetings and events, which periodically 
include pending elections. When elections are approaching, the mayor simply provides voting 
location information and the names of the candidates. The fact that he mentions candidates’ 
incumbency is not dispositive, particularly because doing so provides additional information for 
the reader as required under Ethics Commission Rule 26.2(3)(A).  

Indeed, the anti-establishment sentiment permeating much of the political landscape of 
the past few years calls into question the assumption that providing such additional information 
would even benefit an incumbent’s candidacy, especially considering the rise of the Tea Party 
and the state of the current presidential race.  

F. The newsletters are vetted using an extensive internal review process to ensure 

compliance with legal and ethical requirements. 

Mayor Meier takes the ethical requirements of his office very seriously and makes every 
effort to ensure that his newsletters are compliant. He has published the newsletters for over five 
years without a complaint such as these being raised and investigated by this commission. Not 
only that, he and his office helped develop and implement an extensive internal review process 
for the weekly newsletters almost three years ago. 

On September 24, 2013, the Addison City Council held a public hearing to discuss the 
future of the newsletter. After hearing from multiple speakers and debating at length, the council 
established a new process whereby the City Attorney would review and make any necessary 
edits to each newsletter before publication to ensure that it was compliant with any relevant 
ethical requirements. The attending council members, including Neil Resnik, Bruce Arfsten, 
Blake Clemens, Janelle Moore, Chris Defrancisco, and Mayor Meier, voted unanimously in 
favor of the motion.  

Every Thursday evening since that motion was approved, the Mayor has circulated a draft 
newsletter about the events of the previous week to the City Attorney and numerous other city 
officials on Town staff for review. One of the primary goals of the review is to ensure that the 



 

Texas Ethics Commission 
May 11, 2016 
Page 11 
 

 

53087363.2 

newsletters do not fall within the definition of “Political Advertising” under section 251.001(16) 
of the Election Code and section 26.2(3)(A) of the Ethics Commission Rules. 

Once the City Attorney and other reviewing officials finish editing Mayor Meier’s 
newsletter, they approve the newsletter’s content for publication the following morning. At that 
point, the City Director of Marketing and Communications reformats the final newsletter, emails 
it to all the mailing list subscribers, and publishes it on its own web page that is linked to the 
Addison City website. The Mayor is restricted from seeing, editing, or giving further input for 
the newsletter from the time he submits the draft on Thursday night until the newsletter is 
published.  

In fact, Mayor Meier and his office sought to remedy any ethical concerns in this instance 
long before the concerns were brought before this Commission. For example, in an abundance of 
caution, the Mayor completely removed any reference to the May election and its candidates 
from his draft for the March 7, 2016 newsletter5 after Complainant Duffy sent him an email on 
March 4, 2016 objecting to the language used therein.6 Then, although the City Attorney and 
other reviewing city officials found nothing objectionable about the language in question, the 
City Attorney requested an advisory opinion regarding the newsletters from this Commission on 
March 1, 2016,7 but did not receive a response before Complainant Duffy filed his Complaint 
with this Commission.  

G. Conclusion 

Based on the facts described above, it is clear that Mayor Meier is committed to the 
ethical requirements set forth by this Commission and applicable regulations, and he has 
published the newsletters for the Town of Addison with diligence and respect for these 
requirements for over five years. His newsletters, when viewed as a whole and in proper context, 
are informational rather than self-promotional, and they do not promote any candidate for public 
office. The Complainants’ arguments to the contrary are based on irrelevant facts and a 
misinterpretation of the law. Mayor Meier urges this Commission to find that there was not a 
violation of the law and dismiss both Complaints so that he and other Texas leadership may 
continue to promulgate informative newsletters for the benefit of their local communities.  

 

                                                
5 Published version is marked as Exhibit F in Complaint SC-3160389. 
6 Marked as Exhibit C in Complaint SC-3160388. 
7 Included as Exhibit A. 





DALLAS 

MESSER* ROCKEFELLER~~ FORT 

Sent via E-Mail- ian.steus/o{f@ethics.state.tx.us 

March 1, 2016 

Mr. Ian Steusloff 
General Counsel 
Texas Ethics Commission 
P. 0. Box 12070 
Austin, TX 78711-2070 

Re: Town of Addison- Mayor's Newsletter 

Dear Mr. Steusloff, 

I am writing to follow up on my call to you several weeks ago regarding the 
Town of Addison's (the "Town") practice of assisting in the preparation and distribution 
of the Mayor's Newsletter. The Town has a vocal resident who continually complains that 
the Mayor's Newsletter is illegal and that the Town cannot use its resources to assist in the 
preparation and distribution of the Mayor's Newsletter. Thus, the Town is requesting an 
informal opinion from your office regarding the newsletter. I am including 3 example 
newsletters for your review, the most controversial of which is the January 29111 newsletter 
regarding a hotly contested zoning case. I cettainly understand that every newsletter must 
be evaluated individually because the determination regarding whether the newsletter 
constitutes "political adve1tising" as defined by the Election Code is made on an individual 
basis. 

The Mayor initially drafts the newsletter in rough form and submits it to the Town 
staff for editing, formatting and distribution. As the City Attorney, I have been asked to 
edit the newsletter each week to make sure that the content does not constitute political 
advertising. The Town' s Director of Public Communications usually gathers the photos, 
inserts links to videos and adds the upcoming events to the end of the newsletter. The 
newsletter is distributed by the staff via email and it is also posted on the Town' s website. 

As background to assist your office in its review, the Mayor is cunently serving his 
final term in office and cannot seek re-election because of term limits contained in the 
Town's Charter. In addition, there are no ballot measures planned for the May 2016 
election nor in the future. The three current councilmembers seeking re-election are Mayor 
pro tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor pro tempore David Heape and Councilwoman 
Mary Carpenter. The three other candidates for City Council in the May election are Paul 
Walden, Al Angell, and Jim Duffy. 

6 3 5 1 Pr eston Rd. • Su it e 350 
Frisco, TX 75034 

M ESSER, ROCKEFELLER & FORT, PLLC 

www. txmu nici p a llaw.com 

ABILENE 
4400 Buffalo Gap Rd. • Suite 2800 

Abi lene, TX 796 0 6 
P: 325.701 .7960 • F: 325.70 1.7 96 1 P: 972 .668.640 0 • F: 9 72.668 .641 4 



Mr. Ian Steusloff 
March 1, 2016 
Page 2 

The Town seeks an informal opinion regarding a sampling of the newsletters to 
give us better guidance regarding appropriate edits to the newsletter and to help us insure 
that we are fully compliant with the statutory requirements regarding the use of public 
funds and resources. Thank you in advance for your willingness to provide the Town and 
me, as the City Attorney, with your thoughts regarding the content of the Mayor' s 
Newsletter. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 972-
668-6400 (office) or 972-978-9866 (cell) . 

Attachments 
Mayor' s Newsletter- November 13, 2015 
Mayor's Newsletter - January 29, 2016 
Mayor's Newsletter - February 26, 2016 

Grateful for your assistance, 

Jr.~ M. JU&f~J--
Brenda N. McDonald 
Town of Addison City Attorney 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 1 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Dear Neighbor,      

    

This has been a beautiful fall weather week.  As you may know our City 

Management team has begun a national search for our next permanent Police 

Chief and we would like to have you share your thoughts on what type of person 

would best fill that role.  In order to gather your input, we have created a survey 

that you can reach here – all answers will be kept anonymous.  Your feedback is 

invaluable so don’t miss this opportunity to play a part in this important Town 

decision.  The survey will be available from November 16 - November 30. 

 

Council News 

 

Tuesday evening, November 10, we had a packed agenda!  In an effort to free up 

some time for staff and Council the week of Thanksgiving, we eliminated our 4th 

Tuesday of the month Regular Council Meeting for November this year.  The 

Council packets arrived on Friday evening with over 600 pages of material to 

review before Tuesday’s meeting and, judging from the questions delivered to staff 

by Council before our meeting began, it looked like all of us were well prepared for 

the meeting.  Staff provided answers to those pre-Council meeting questions well 

before we ever began our Tuesday evening, giving us time to review the feedback 

and proceed accordingly.  With the guidance of our city attorney, we were able to 

ask questions of the staff and receive responses all in compliance with the 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=7f78a253f0&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 2 
 

requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  As a result we were able to do the 

work effectively and efficiently.            

       

We began our evening’s work early at 5:30pm with an Executive Session that 

included a review of several pending items. We received staff and legal guidance 

on an issue with Duke’s Roadhouse; the former Sam’s Club property; the 

automotive uses at 15600 Midway Road; Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures 

and Urban Green energy case no. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District Court, Dallas 

County Texas; and the ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park located within the vicinity 

and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and Ponte Ave, and Farmers Branch 

Creek.  

 

For our Work Session, we began at 7pm and covered the good news about the 

costs of the health insurance options for our Town employees for calendar year 

2016 which we plan to adopt next Tuesday at a Special Council Meeting.  Our 

second Work Session item was an update from staff on the status of the 

redevelopment of the former Sam’s Club site, which is an approximately 17.3 acre 

tract at 4150 Belt Line Road.  The site is currently under contract with a developer, 

Lovett Homes, which is proposing a mixed-use development with townhomes, 

apartments and ground level retail.  While there are still many details to be worked 

through, the hope is that the plan will go before our P&Z Commission in December 

and then to Council in January.  This proposed plan is entirely consistent with the 

policy direction Council has given staff based on the study that was done last year. 

 

We began our Regular Council Session on time at 7:30pm with our pledge and a 

recognition of all of our Veterans in honor of Veterans Day.  No one chose to 

speak during our Public Comment Section. 

 

This being Charles Daniels final Regular Council Meeting with us as our interim 

city manager, Charles took time at the beginning of our meeting to make a few 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 3 
 

remarks, thanking all of us for treating him so well and helping him be successful 

with us here in Addison the last seven months.   We presented Charles with a 

standing ovation and an official proclamation naming Tuesday, November 10, 2015 

as Charles Daniels Day in Addison.  It was a very well-deserved honor for Charles.  

  

 

Our consent agenda was very lengthy and included the approval of the following 

items that the staff had fully vetted and presented to Council with supporting 

materials and their recommendations for approval:  

• new contracts with Shiroma Southwest for PR, media publicity and website 

content management services; 

• contract with Rodney Hand Associates for the production of Addison - the 

Magazine of the North Dallas Corridor in an amount not to exceed 

$132,000; 

• new contract with Kimley-Horn to update our Master Transportation Plan in 

an amount not to exceed $76,597; 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 4 
 

• a contract with Harris Corporation for maintenance of all Town-owned 

portable mobile and control station radio equipment for a five year 

agreement; 

• an ordinance amending our investment policy and adoption of an 

investment strategy for 2016 

• a final plat for one lot totaling 6.484 acres at 14675 Dallas Parkway; 

• final payment for our very popular and well received new playground 

equipment at Les Lacs Park for $9,969.70 to Lea Park and Play, Inc.;  

• grant funding and service agreements with Launchability for $2,500, 

Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce for $35,000, Metrocrest Community 

Clinic for $3,000, Metrocrest Services for $61,000 and the Family Place for 

$12,000; 

• an agreement with the WaterTower Theatre for their use of the Addison 

Theatre Center; and 

• an ordinance amending Chapter 10, animals of the Code of Ordinances for 

the Town of Addison, dealing with our duck feeding issue.  

The Council also approved a resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a 

grant to purchase and install in 12 spots in our park system recycling stations that 

are high tech, solar powered and able to let our staff know when they need to be 

serviced!  This is “Addison Cool” and best of all, the North Texas Council of 

Government will be paying for them with this grant! 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 5 
 

 
 

We held four Public Hearings for the evening.  Our first one was to consider an 

ordinance amending the Planned Development of 8 tracts of land totaling 

approximately 40 acres from 3712 to 3910 Belt Line Road in order to grant 

additional allowed uses and amend requirements relating to parking and building 

elevations. This is the Addison Town Center location  near the corner of Belt Line 

Road and Marsh Lane that contains Target and Kroger as anchor tenants.  The 

discussion centered around the suggestion that all of these uses should require a 

special use permit and then eventually the discussion centered around the need to 

require medical and dental office uses to require a special use permit.  One of the 

complicating factors was that certificates of occupancy had previously been 

granted erroneously for a dental office, i.e. Comfort Dental, and for the Crunch 

Fitness Health Club.  Ultimately in a 6-1 vote, Council Members Arfsten, Hughes, 

Carpenter, Wilcox, Heape and Meier voting in favor and Council Member Moore 

voting against, the Council approved a recommendation from staff and our city 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 6 
 

attorney to add medical, dental office, massage and chiropractic office, and health 

club as permitted uses without the need to apply for a special use permit, just like 

we have it in our other centers around town.  A gasoline service center would still 

require a special use permit.   

 

Our very next item concerned the long-awaited remodel and exterior upgrade of 
the Kroger within the same Addison Town Center.  The Council unanimously 

approved the special use permit for the fuel center and incorporated the P&Z 

Commission’s recommendation to tie the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy 

for the fuel center to the beginning of the work on the exterior facade of the 

Kroger.  The interior remodel has already begun and both the exterior facade work 

and fuel center are expected to be completed by the end of the first quarter of 

2016!  Finally!   

                      

Our 26th Regular Council agenda item of the evening was a Public Hearing to 

consider an ordinance approving a special use permit for the sale of alcoholic 

beverages for on-premises consumption only on property located at 15650 

Addison Road, our Addison Conference and Theatre Centre.  This also passed 

unanimously, enabling the WaterTower Theatre to apply to the Texas Alcoholic 

Beverage Commission for a license to sell alcoholic beverages during their 

performances.          

 

The final Public Hearing of the evening was the consideration of an ordinance 

amending Article XXI of our Landscape Regulations by revising the requirements 
relating to the maintenance of irrigation systems and enforcement.  After a 

lengthy discussion the Council decided to revise the proposed language for 

purposes of simplification and clarity.  With that important revision the ordinance 

was passed that will now require commercial and residential property owners 
to insure that their sprinkler systems do not create an unsafe condition on 
sidewalks or roadways.    



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 7 
 

 

Items 28 and 29 were the approval of a lease assignment and lease extension for 

ground leases at Addison Airport and item 30 was a resolution authorizing our City 

Manager to accept a grant from TxDOT Aviation for a Runway Incursion Mitigation 

Study at our airport. 

 

Item 32 was a very clear and well-presented update on the various capital 
improvement projects program that we have going on here in Town.  I have 

attached the chart of the status of each project here for your review. 

 

Our final item of the evening was a report from our Council subcommittee of Ivan 

Hughes, Mary Carpenter and David Heape on our plans to introduce our new 
City Manager Wes Pierson to our community. We will fold his introduction into 

our annual Holiday Open house on December 6, 2015 from 10am to 2pm at the 

Addison Conference Centre.  We will introduce Wes from the stage and he will be 

available to get to know all those who attend.  Our subcommittee will continue their 

work as they explore additional opportunities to familiarize Wes with our 
community and vice versa over the next few months and we will make you aware 

of those opportunities here and in other media.  You can make your reservation 

here to attend the Holiday Open House.    

 

Given the large volume of work and the many things we accomplished, it was a 

very productive and respectful evening.  We adjourned at the very reasonable time 

of about 10:30 pm. 

 

Business Development    
 

On Tuesday morning, November 10, I joined Interim City Manager Charles 
Daniels and Deputy City Manager Cheryl Delaney for our monthly Metroplex 
Mayors Association meeting at our Marriott Quorum Hotel.  I was very pleased to 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=af68f56260&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=8c8fd63ea5&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 8 
 

hear so much positive feedback from our fellow area city mangers on our selection 

of Wes Pierson as our new City Manager.  Wes’ previous service in Allen and 

his work at the International City Managers Association have helped him earn a 
well-deserved, very positive reputation, which of course bodes very well for us 

here in Addison.  The mayors and city mangers spent the entire meeting 

discussing and planning for our feedback and participation in the next Texas 

Legislative Session.  In the past this has generally been a fractured effort often left 

to lobbyists.  I believe the concern level is so high among mayors, councils and city 

managers in our area that you will see a much more effectively coordinated 

personal effort at the next session to ensure the legislature understands the impact 

their efforts have on limiting the ability of local governments to provide services to 

their communities.  I’ll share more on this as we work to develop our upcoming 

legislative agenda.       

 

Later on Tuesday I stopped by our Addison Conference Centre to welcome the 

Network of Executive Women and their Fall Luncheon to Addison and to thank 

them for choosing our Addison Conference Centre as the site for their event. Their 

attendance of almost 125 exceeded their expectations and made the celebration of 

their organization’s 10 year anniversary all the more special. 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 9 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 10 
 

 
 

Around Town   

        

Last Saturday, November 7, the Addison Arbor Foundation held their final 

quarterly educational seminar of 2015. Arbor Foundation President Dr. Jay Ihrig 

began the meeting by welcoming everyone and recognizing his board member 

colleagues.  He then invited me to share a Mayoral Proclamation recognizing Arbor 

Day in Addison! The program “Bulbs for Dallas and Bulbs for the Holidays” was 

presented by Master Gardener C. A. Hiscock.  It was a fun event enjoyed by many, 

including our very own City Attorney Brenda McDonald, and we all appreciated 

the complimentary coffee from Dunn Bros!           
   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 11 
 

 
 

It’s hard to believe that Thanksgiving is just around the corner.  I wanted to make 

sure that all of our Pacesetters have marked Monday, November 23 from 6pm – 

8pm on their calendar for the annual Pacesetters Thanksgiving Dinner at the 

Addison Athletic Club.  As always, the club will provide the turkey and stuffing and 

the attendees provide the sides and desserts.  Reservations are required, so 

please drop by the front desk of Athletic Club and let them know you will be joining 

them. 

 

Our Addison Fire Department is also getting ready for the holidays by again 

collecting new, unwrapped toys for Toys for Tots.  We will be collecting toys at the 

Resident Holiday Open House, but we also have donation boxes available around 

town at the following locations through December 12:  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 12 
 

• Town Hall 

• Central Fire-Station 1-Airport Pkwy 

• Fire Station 2-Beltway Dr. 

• Police Department 

• Finance Building 

• Athletic Club 

• Addison Treehouse-Midway Rd. 

• Service Center 

• Addison Conference Centre 

• Water Tower Theater 

• Addison Airport Office 

The following businesses have also partnered with us:  

• Million Air Dallas-4300 Westgrove Dr. 

• BB&T Bank-3939 Belt Line Rd. 

• The Crowne Plaza-14315 Midway Rd 

• Stadium Café: 4872 Belt Line Rd 

• Vernon’s Gastropub: 5290 Belt Line Rd 

• The Quarter Grill: 15201 Addison Rd 

• First Community Bank: 4135 Belt Line Rd 

• The Hub Sports Grill: 4145 Belt Line Rd 

• Ron's Place:  4145 Belt Line Rd 

Boxes are also available in the following lobbies:  

• 14841 Dallas Pkwy, The Aberdeen Bldg, managed by Sooner Management 

• 16479 Dallas Pkwy, managed by Cushman Wakefield 

• 14800 Landmark Blvd, The Landmark Bldg, managed by Cushman 

Wakefield 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 13 
 

• 14900 Landmark Blvd, Emerald Plaza Bldg, managed by Cushman 

Wakefield 

One last very important item for our neighbors in Les Lacs.  Next Thursday, 
November 19 and Friday, November 20 around 10am you will be 
experiencing scheduled power outages.  The outages should not last more than 

one hour each.  Oncor will be replacing the electrical gear box located at the 

corner of Beltway in conjunction with the Beltway/Proton Pedestrian Connectivity 

Project.  If you would like to receive regular email updates on the project's progress 

you can register here.  We will use the Beltway/Proton list list to email you when 

the power is going off and when it is restored, so I encourage you to register.  We 

are so sorry for any inconvenience, but wanted to make sure you are aware so you 

can power down computers those days, contact your alarm company and make 

any other necessary arrangements you might need to.  Power to the Athletic Club 

and Fire Station are not on the same circuit so will not be cut.  If you need a place 

to hang out, I’m sure the Athletic Club staff would be happy to help you out. 

 

Coming Events       

 

Tuesday November 17, 6:30pm, Town Hall:  Council Work Session to review our 

debt policy and possible future plans.  We will also consider approval of the new 

health Insurance plans for our employees for calendar year 2015 and we will have 

an Executive Session to consider our options regarding our continued participation 

in DART.            

             

Thursday November 19, 6pm:  Third Thursday of the Month Coffee with the 

Mayor will be hosted by Hector Sandoval at Union Park in Addison Circle at 5076 

Addison Circle.   I hope you will come share your thoughts and enjoy this fairly new 

addition to the Addison Circle community, a fun place!  Here is a bit more 

information about Union Park:  www.unionparkdallas.com. 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5fca8a4a94&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5fca8a4a94&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b79befc1d9&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=fa3dd3d7f4&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=fa3dd3d7f4&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – NOVEMBER 13, 2015 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – November 13, 2015 – Page 14 
 

 

 

Friday, November 20, 6:30pm:  2015 Addison Circle Tree Lighting.  Kick off your 

holiday season at the annual Addison Circle Tree Lighting in Beckert Park.  

 

Thank you again for the honor of being your Mayor.   See you soon . . 

.                                                                                                             

Todd 

  
  

 

Copyright © 2015 Town of Addison, All rights reserved. 
You are receiving this email because you opted in to receive the weekly Mayor's Newsletter. 
 
Our mailing address is: 
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001 
 
Add us to your address book 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences  

 

  

 
 
 
 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/vcard?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435&c=593dd26704
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/profile?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 1 
 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Dear Neighbor,        

 

It was a very busy news week in Addison!  Wow, TV coverage, large crowds, 

cheers and jeers - all a part of local government in action.  I believe in the media 

business that may be called a headline designed to capture your attention, so I do 

hope you will read on.          

   

Council News 

 

The biggest news of the week includes all the pieces of the headline.  Our Regular 

Council Meeting was relocated from our Town Hall to the Addison Conference 

Centre to accommodate a very large crowd of intensely interested and vocal 

residents interested in the next steps the Council would take in our process of 

evaluating the redevelopment of the former Sam’s site. Before we began our 

Regular Council Meeting, we had a brief Executive Session next door at the Stone 

Cottage to have an update on the legal issues around the Farmers Branch creek 

dispute.    

   

After this brief meeting and on the walk over to the Conference Centre, Council 

and staff were met by a group of about 30 very vocal and passionate picketers 
with signs who unfortunately expressed their displeasure in the form 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 2 
 

of insults and threats directed at me, my fellow Council Colleagues and our 
staff as we made our way to the Conference Centre for our Regular Council 
Meeting.  All of this was covered by TV news.  It appeared to me that some of 

those folks forgot that our Council Members are their neighbors giving of their 
time, energy and intellect out of a sense of community service and love for 
Addison and have sworn to do what is best for all of Addison. 
 

We began our Regular Council Meeting with our pledge and receipt of recognition 

from the North Central Texas Council of Governments of the Silver Fleet Award for 

our fleet department. From there we moved right into our Public Comment section. 

The Council agreed to waive the restriction in our Public Comment section that 

limits speakers to comment on items not on our agenda and limits the number of 

speakers to five. Since we closed the Public Hearing on the rezoning of the Sam’s 

site in our January 12 meeting, with the Council’s unanimous support, we were 

able to remove the limitations and proceed with a very long and intense Public 

Comment section where all of the speakers commented on the proposed 

redevelopment of the former Sam’s site.  This was certainly the longest Public 
Comment section in the relatively brief history of this opportunity for our 
community.  Most of the speakers were very polite and civil and shared their 
firmly held opinions with our Council who listened attentively. This Public 
Comment section is captured on video and available for your review on our 
website with a link to the public comment sections here and here. 
 

After the almost two-hour Public Comment section was completed, with everyone 

in the room who had not already spoken on this case given every opportunity to 

share their opinion with the Council, we resumed our discussion and consideration 

of an ordinance rezoning approximately 17.4 acre property located at 4150 Belt 

Line Road, case 1725/Addison Groves with Mr. Frank Liu as the applicant. Frank 

Liu resumed his presentation with an updated presentation that included a clear 
graphic showing the actual breakout of the proposed redevelopment by land 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=29fda77316&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=29fda77316&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage2.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=84c7b75501&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=6c75922408&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 3 
 

use.  The land uses include approximately 17% for the apartment project, 
which is limited to no more than 350 units, would include retail on the first 
floor and would wrap around the building’s parking garage.  The balance of 

the land use would be for necessary infrastructure, green space and parks, and 
180 fee simple townhomes, projected to be valued at an average of $400,000 
each.  I encourage you to take a look at this visual, I believe it will answer some of 

your potential questions.  After his presentation Mr. Liu and his partner David Foor 

answered questions from the Council concerning their flexibility on certain aspects 

of the project.  Both were open to revisions of the project. 

 

After Mr. Liu and Mr. Foor spoke, the developer's traffic engineer, from the well-

respected engineering firm Kimley-Horn, spoke.  (Incidentally, Kimley-Horn has 
served as the Town's engineering firm for more than a decade.) He responded 

to questions from the Council and referenced his 200-plus page report which had 

been validated by Cobb Fendley & Associates, another well-respected firm that 

has served as the Town's review engineers for many years. This visiting 

professional endured several rude interruptions from a few in the audience. 

 

Charles Goff, our Assistant Director of Development Services, returned to the 

podium to answer Council questions, reaffirm the staff recommendation for 
approval of this project and review the process for this redevelopment that actually 

began back in 2006.  Since then the process has proceeded through the many 

meetings and iterations of the plan including the Council’s conceptual approval 
of this specific plan in an open and public work session in 2015, which 
included the approximate use mix and numbers of apartments, retail and fee 
simple housing reflected in this proposal.                   
 

Next up with his report and recommendation for approval of the project was our 

Director of Economic Development Orlando Campos.  Orlando reviewed the 

project’s economic impact on Addison and confirmed his support of this 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=3ccaa20c5d&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=a76e796e5c&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 4 
 

redevelopment.  His excellent report is attached here for you review.         

                                       

City Manager Wes Pierson added his comments and reiterated his support for 
staff's recommentation that Council approve the project. 
                   

Now very deep into the evening after our entire Addison professional team 

expressed their recommendation for approval of the proposed redevelopment of 

the Sam’s site, it was time for the Council to finally consider a motion.  Mayor Pro 
Tempore Janelle Moore made the below described motion and Deputy Mayor 
Pro Tempore David Heape seconded the motion and the discussion that 
followed is linked here (comments begin at 105:32) for your review. 
 

The motion and second were as follows -  to approve the project as recommended 

by staff with the following changes and conditions:       

1.  The private drive commonly referred to as Runyon Road between the western 

property line and the intersection of Belt Line Road shall be upgraded to Town 

standards and become public right of way. 

 

2.  The townhouses and live/work units within Block A (as shown on the concept 

plan) shall be constructed using noise mitigation methods so that outside noise 

levels, measured within the habitable space of the units, do not exceed 45 DNL. A 

certified acoustical engineer shall approve the construction plans for these units to 

assure they will provide a 45 DNL noise level, and a certified acoustical engineer 

shall inspect the units, once constructed, and verify that the required noise level 

has been attained. 

 

3.  The sanitary sewer line servicing this development shall be increased to a 

minimum 10’ line in accordance with Town standards. This includes approximately 

an additional 230 linear feet of line than is being proposed in the applicant’s 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=9d25c17884&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=21b3ebee09&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 5 
 

wastewater study. 

 

4.  The driveway access to the property adjacent to this site (4180 Belt Line Road) 

shall be reconstructed to align with the entrance/exit of the parking structure being 

proposed on the site. The applicant shall make any improvements necessary on 

the adjacent property (4180 Belt Line Road) to accommodate the driveway 

relocation. 

 

5.  Medical and health related uses shall be permitted upon approval of a Special 

Use Permit. 

 

6.  All construction traffic shall access the site from Runyon Road and Belt Line 

Road only. 

 

7.  The existing screening wall along the southern property line shall not be 

removed until construction has commenced on the townhome units along the wall. 

(the wall will be replaced with $400,000+ townhomes facing Beltway) 

 

8.  A short, wrought iron or decorative fence or wall shall be installed to delineate 

the front yards of the townhomes facing Beltway from the public green space/park. 

 

9.  At least 25 live/work and/or townhome units must be under construction prior to 

the issuance of a building permit for the multifamily units or the garage building. 

 

10.  A maximum of 330 multifamily units shall be allowed. (a reduction from the 

previous ceiling of 350 units) 

 

11.  The proposed street shown on the east side of the development shall be 

constructed with retractable bollards at Beltway Drive to provide for public safety 

access only.  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 6 
 

 

12.  The proposed street shown on that east side shall also be constructed with 

speed/traffic calming devices. 

 

13.  The multifamily units shall be constructed as follows:  

• The entire multifamily building and parking garage shall be LEED certified; 

• There will be no linoleum or Formica surfaces in the units; 

• All units shall be equipped with energy efficient appliances; 

• All countertops must be granite, stone or better material. 

14. Courtyards shown on the Concept Plan will be designed and constructed with 

enhanced architectural and landscaping features including such elements as water 

features, landscaping and art features.  

 

I added my clarifying comments in the parentheses on conditions #7, and #10. 

 

After thoughtful and respectful comments and discussion among the Council, I 

called the vote on the motion.  I encourage you once again to watch the 
video (comments begin at 105:32) of the Council Member comments on this 

motion. While it was very late in the evening, actually early morning, each Council 

Member shared their rationale for their intended vote.  The motion to approve the 

redevelopment project with the 14 conditions listed above passed 5-2.  Voting in 
favor of the motion were Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor 
Pro Tempore David Heape, Council Member Mary Carpenter, Council Member 
Dale Wilcox and Mayor Todd Meier.  Voting against the motion were Council 
Members Ivan Hughes and Bruce Arfsten.   
 

After the approval of the project, the Council entered Executive Session with our 

staff to discuss and consider an economic development incentive for 
infrastructure reimbursement.  Following the Executive Session, the Council 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=4ed6ea1911&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 7 
 

returned to the Conference Centre to openly discuss and consider a motion to 

approve the terms of a staff-negotiated Letter of Intent for an economic 

development incentive.  The following economic development incentive for 
reimbursement of infrastructure funds was approved by the Council 6-
1.  Council Members Dale Wilcox, Mary Carpenter, Ivan Hughes, Deputy 
Mayor Pro Tempore David Heape, Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore and 
Mayor Todd Meier all voting in favor of the motion and Council Member 
Bruce Arfsten voting against.  Staff will use the Letter of Intent to create an 

economic development incentive agreement that will be brought back for Council 

approval. 

 

The basic elements of the agreement are outlined below:  

1. The Redevelopment Project (generally as depicted and described in the 

DRAFT ordinance)( the “Project”)  

• Total estimated project cost - $86,663,450 

• Total estimated ad valorem value - $121,200,000 

• Demolition of existing Sam’s Club building 

• Mixed Use development consisting of approximately 20,000 square feet of 

retail, 17 live/work units, 161 townhomes and not more than 330 multi-

family units 

2. The Economic Development Incentives 

• Maximum Incentive of $6,500,000 as a reimbursement for the construction 

of public infrastructure to facilitate the Project.  

o Infrastructure eligible for reimbursement will be agreed upon by the 

parties. 

o Infrastructure reimbursement will be controlled by the following:  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 8 
 

 Maximum of $250,000 of the total Incentive will be given in 

the nature of permit/development fee waivers 

 Maximum of $1,000,000 for infrastructure qualifying for utility 

fund funding 

 Maximum of $1,000,000 for infrastructure qualifying for 

stormwater fund funding 

 Maximum of $4,250,000 to provide funding for street and park 

development 

o Incentive Payment terms  

 1/3 of total potential award upon successful completion of 

public infrastructure and acceptance by the Town of Addison 

 1/3 of the total potential award upon completion of 40 percent 

of the townhomes/live-work units 

 1/3 of the total potential award upon completion of 75 percent 

of the townhomes/live-work units 

• The Town of Addison will support the process to acquire the right-of-way for 

Runyan Road.  Any acquisition costs will be the responsibility of the 

Developer.  

3. Incentive Conditions 

• Developer has offered to deed restrict the multi-family property and garage 

building to prohibit the use of government subsidies to construct, operate or 

rent the multi-family units.  The developer shall present a recorded copy of 

the deed restrictions prior to Incentive Payment by the Town. 

• Developer will provide to the Town for its review and approval any 

infrastructure/quality/amenity removals from the Project that the Developer 

makes to reconcile the difference between the $8.463 million in economic 

development assistance requested by the Developer and the $6.5 million 

Incentive provided by the Town. 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 9 
 

• The apartment developer/operator will be subject to reasonable approval by 

the City Council.  If the developer chooses an apartment developer not 

approved by the City Council, the Incentive Payment will be forfeited and 

the Town will have no obligation to make any Incentive Payment. 

While at times during the evening I was deeply disappointed by some of my 

Addison neighbors' very rude and disrespectful behavior, I was very proud of the 
diligence, thought and respectfulness of our entire Council throughout this 
challenging process.  In the end, I believe we completed this almost two-year 

long process by producing a very exciting result that incorporated in true 
collaborative fashion the recommendations of our entire professional staff; the 

recommendations of our P&Z Commissioners; our proposed Addison investor and 

home builder; and the concerns and opinions of many of our neighbors.        

    

I realize change is very difficult, even frightening at times.  As I get older I 
realize that even more, I have also come to know that change is 
inevitable.   We had a choice here; we could fight change or we could 
embrace change and shape it.  I am very pleased that a majority of the 
Council chose to embrace change and shape it.  In fact 10 of the 14, or 71%, 
of the elected Council members and appointed P&Z Commissioners voted in 
favor of approving this redevelopment project.  Interestingly enough our two 
youngest Council Members, with the most future ahead and the greatest risk, 
showed the way with their courage to make the motion and the second and 
lead the conversation and collaboration to arrive at a point that bridged 
many of the gaps.  
 

I know it may be difficult for some at this moment to realize, but given time and the 

staff and Council’s commitment to hold our new Addison Groves developer 

accountable, I believe this redevelopment project will make us all very proud.    

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 10 
 

Around Town 

 

What a fun way to start a week and a Monday.  Channel 8 met us at Addison 

Circle bright and early to do a story about the return of Taste Addison on May 13-

15 and the uniqueness of Addison Circle.  As you know about two years ago our 

previous City Manager recommended to Council that we drop Taste Addison and 

bring in a new concept called Fork and Cork.  Now we are going to take the best 

pieces of Fork and Cork, weave in more food, and much better music to elevate 

the entire profile of the event and bring back lots of fun. It was fun to share the 

exciting news about the return of Taste Addison, as well as one of the important 

lessons we have learned with Addison Circle, density brings us retail 

success.  Thanks to Nicole Margulies at Mad Batter Baker and Chef Antonio at 
Antonio’s for helping us make this such a fun media event, as well as 
publicizing the return of Taste Addison! 
 

With a crowd of over 200 family, friends, residents, Council Members, coworkers 

and well-wishers, the positive energy and enthusiasm for the swearing in 

ceremony of our new Police Chief Paul Spencer felt great! City Manager Wes 

Pierson began the formal part of the event with a greeting and voiced his pride and 

confidence in Paul as his first hire as our new City Manager, indicating that Chief 

Spencer and City Manager Pierson would forever be linked together. Wes then 

gave me a few moments to thank Paul’s family for their support and dedication and 

to recognize the sacrifice they all make.  I noted Paul’s 20 years with our Town and 

the fact that I have had the good fortune to know Paul and watch him progress 

through his career that entire time.   It is very gratifying to see a man with such 

high values and strong work ethic succeed and rise to the top leadership position 

in our organization.  It also gave me a chance to acknowledge and recognize all of 

our first responders and their dedication to helping keep us all safe here in 

Addison.  I then had the very special honor of swearing in Paul Spencer as our 

new Town of Addison Police Chief. 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=757005d6b3&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5614d6220c&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=ae7af032da&e=407b4ef435
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=7eafaa3533&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 11 
 

 

After we completed the official oath of office, Paul made an excellent speech that I 

have included here for your enjoyment.  Congratulations, Chief Spencer, we are all 

so very proud of you.   

   

 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=acff00dd85&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 12 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 13 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 14 
 

 

At the Athletic Club open house a couple weeks ago, we unveiled a new 

survey.  I’d like to encourage everyone – member or not – to fill out the 

survey.  The staff is always looking for ways to improve our services and your input 

is critical.       

 

Business Development 
 

On Thursday morning I joined with Erin Carney, president of the Metrocrest 
Chamber of Commerce, to welcome to Addison and cut the ribbon for Methodist 
Hospital for Surgery and Center for Wound Care and Hyperbarics, led by 

Medical Director Dr. J.R.Williams and his team of professionals: Tricia Muse, 

program director; Janna Seddon, clinical nurse manager; Liz Johnson, 

RN;  Jamaar Wright, HBO safety director; and Amanda Heddin, front office 

coordinator.  This unique center, managed by Healogics™, provides specialized 

treatment for chronic or non-healing wounds using clinically proven methods, 

protocols and technologies that facilitate the body's innate ability to heal.  Inside 

the two new hyperbaric oxygen chambers, patients breathe 100% oxygen in a 

pressurized environment, which stimulates new blood vessel growth allowing 

plasma in the blood to carry oxygen, reduce swelling, inactivate toxins of certain 

bacteria and enhance white blood cells’ ability to kill bacteria.  Considering that 

more than 8 million people in the U.S. are affected by chronic wounds, I am sure 

Methodist’s recent addition will be able to help many people across North Texas. 

   

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=e61f0c8fa9&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 15 
 

 
 

Coming Events 

 

Monday, February 1, 11:30am – 1pm:  Monthly Economic Development 

Luncheon at Osteria Panevino, 5000 Belt Line Road   

 

Tuesday, February 2, 4pm - 8pm:  City Council Strategic Planning Session, 

Addison Conference and Theatre Centre, 15650 Addison Road 

 

Wednesday, February 4, 10am: First Wednesday Coffee with the Mayor, Dunn 

Brothers Coffee, 3725 Belt Line Road.      

            

It’s kind of appropriate that I welcomed the folks from the Methodist Hospital 

Wound Care Clinic to Addison yesterday.  There certainly have been some 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=69eb48b86d&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – JANUARY 29, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – January 29, 2016 – Page 16 
 

 

wounds in Addison over the last few days and I hope we can all look to the future 

and let those negative feelings subside with time and the recognition that we are all 

neighbors and want the best for our Town of Addison.        

 

See you soon,              

 

 

Todd                            

  

  
  

 

Copyright © 2016 Town of Addison, All rights reserved.  
You are receiving this email because you opted in to receive the weekly Mayor's Newsletter.  
 
Our mailing address is:  
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001 
 
Add us to your address book 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences   

 

  

 
 
 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/vcard?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/unsubscribe?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435&c=dbbafcd099
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/profile?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 1 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Dear Neighbor, 

 

It’s been another exciting week in Addison as we head toward our Special Events 

season with Taste Addison back with us on May 13-15. Preparations are well 

underway with plans for the best one ever! This is the time of year when much of 

the hard work of our Parks team comes to life with the blooming of our Addison 
tulips! Check out this picture of our Service Center and please be sure to send us 

your favorite Addison pics and we will include them in our newsletter next week. 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 2 
 

 
 

Council News 

 

There were a number of very interesting topics for our Regular Council Meeting on 

Tuesday, February 23. During our Work Session we reviewed the staff’s report and 

recommendation for a small increase in our airport fuel flowage fee to be 

effective on April 1 this year. That fee has not been changed since 1994 and is the 

source of important revenue for maintaining our airport at very high standards. As 

mentioned above, our staff presented detailed plans of all the food, music and fun 

headed our way with the return this year of Taste Addison on May 13-
15.                                                                                                  



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 3 
 

We also received a staff report on the life cycle cost analysis of our police 
vehicles; there was significant media interest in this topic, which means we are 

still reaping media interest from the innovative use of Volvos as our Addison police 

cars back in the 1980s. After our first ever and very informative life cycle cost 
analysis, the staff recommended that we move forward with the Ford Explorers 

as our choice for this year. The Council will take up that recommendation at our 

first meeting next month. 

 

The Council gave direction to our City Manager to move forward with additional 
work with Mr. Larry Kanter of Kanter Financial Forensic after hearing Mr. 
Kanter’s disconcerting and ultimately encouraging update. After a review of 

his extensive credentials for his work, Mr. Kanter read his remarks to the Council 

and included reference to specific examples of what he found as part of a brief 

PowerPoint presentation. I encourage you to watch the video including the very 
well informed questions from our Council Members. We have attached a link 

to the video here. 

 

A few of the key points that resonated with me include: “In general, when a 
system of internal controls is poor, bad things happen.” In referring to his 

early work in 2014 Mr. Kanter said, “…in fact the Town’s accounting systems 

lacked what are considered to be basic elements of a well-designed accounting 

system. Our work indicated that the Town was at risk of an inability to detect 
and prevent fraud, waste and or misapplication of assets. We observed that 

the Town’s finance department was significantly understaffed and basic accounting 

tasks were simply not being performed. The Town’s basic checks and balances 
were so weak or nonexistent that it will be very difficult or even impossible to 
determine if money and or assets were misappropriated in the past.” 

 

Mr. Kanter’s review of our Special Events and handling of cash led him to observe, 

“…we noted that it was virtually impossible to determine if all of the cash collected 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=a0be719f93&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 4 
 

from the patrons of Oktoberfest was actually deposited in the Town’s bank 

account.” 

 

Last year Mr. Kanter spent time working with our Municipal Court system and he 

revealed these observations: “It became very clear that the Municipal Courts had 

never been subjected to a detailed study of their accounting processes and 

procedures. It was also apparent that the transactions generated by the Municipal 

Courts have never been properly reconciled. The reconciliation of transactions 

helps ensure that the amounts that are collected from the public are properly 

calculated, recorded and deposited into the Town’s bank.” Part of Mr. Kanter’s 

remaining scope of work will be to follow up with our Municipal Courts. The need 
for and value of this transitional audit became abundantly and undeniably 
clear with the conclusion of Mr. Kanter’s prepared comments. We have 

attached a link to the video here. 

 

That is the past. 
 

As Mr. Kanter reported when Interim City Manager Charles Daniels arrived 
last April, everything changed because the tone at the top changed. The staff 

became very cooperative and “requests that previously took days to be 
fulfilled now took minutes.” Mr. Kanter went on to laud the new tone at the top 
with City Manager Wes Pierson and commended our current Finance staff 
and expressed confidence that we are on our way to significant improvement 
in all areas. He suggested that the new software installed at our Municipal Courts 

in February of this year may go a long way in addressing many of his concerns.Mr. 

Kanter hopes to complete the authorized scope of work by the end of March and 

will report back then. 

 

This is finally very good news; we have acknowledged a deficiency and we 
are taking an aggressive open approach to addressing and fixing all that is 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=515f9c3be4&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 5 
 

broken. That begins with the new “tone at the top,” a commitment to 
continuous improvement and doing what is right.  We are definitely headed 
in the right direction here and the path is now clear for success. 
 

Our new Police Chief Paul Spencer delivered a report to Council on past police 

protocols with underperforming hotels when he shared that in the past “over time 

the lack of targeted enforcement, in conjunction with our education efforts, 

facilitated an environment where criminal elements felt free to act with 
impunity and set up permanent roots in our community.” Now? Since Chief 

Spencer has been the leader of our Police Department, the entire department has 

begun targeting these criminal elements: “Recent activity suggests we are 

beginning to accomplish the goal of reversing criminal activity at our targeted 
hotels and sending the message Addison is not the place you want to operate if 

you’re a criminal. Based on recent arrests, we also anticipate a reduction in 

burglaries and property thefts within the residential areas.” 

 

As this new much more proactive approach develops, the Chief and his team will 

be developing data and metrics that will help us determine staffing and 

enforcement priorities in the future. In the short term this new approach may cause 

the actual crime statistics to surge since we are now aggressively looking for 

finding criminal activity and making arrests. This new balanced approach of 

recognizing the problem, confronting it with education, measurement and 

enforcement was met with applause from the entire Council Chambers and thanks 

for the new approach from Chief Spencer and his entire team. You can watch the 

entire uplifting video from Chief Spencer here. Once again the new “tone at the 
top” and good people working hard have us headed in the right direction. 

 

Other items on our agenda for the evening included an Executive Session item 

reviewing past separation agreements, consent approval of a resolution adopting 

a public information act policy update, designation of representatives to the 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=5d6423bf58&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 6 
 

TexPool, TexStar and the local government investment pool, a contract with Halff 

Associates to update the bids on the work for the Winnwood pond dredging 
project, and final payment authorization to Pavecon for the rehabilitation of 

Addison Road. The Council also decided to create a liaison position with the 

Cavanaugh Flight Museum with our Communities Partner Bureau in addition to 

authorizing their $50,000 grant request. 

 

Other Regular Council Meeting items included a presentation and introduction of 

our new Crisis Communication team. Public Communications Director Mary 

Rosenbleeth introduced us to the Addison-based firm Gray Hair PR, and their 

principals each spoke and gave us their experience and backgrounds. Their work 

will begin on March 1, 2016. The Council approved a resolution authorizing our 

staff to enter into a contract with the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power to 

provide electricity for the Town for 2018-2022. Based on current prices we could 

expect to receive several hundred thousand dollars of annual savings. 

 

Our new Interim CFO Scott Neils presented the Finance Department Quarterly 

Financial Review of the first quarter of our financial year that ended December 31, 

2015. For the first time in quite a while, all of our funds are in the “green” and 

we are off to a good start for the financial year. The report is linked here for your 

review. 

 

Our Director of IT Hamid Khaleghipour and Police Chief Paul Spencer gave us 

an update on our combined dispatch and radio project. We are actually a bit 

under budget and just a few weeks behind schedule on this very large multi city 

project. Farmers Branch successfully went live with the first phase of the dispatch 

system this week, and Addison is scheduled to transition to the new dispatch 

center on March 3. Our radio system that’s part of the project has hit some 

technical difficulties, so we have taken it off line and gone back to our old system 

until the technical issues are resolved. The Council was effusive in their praise of 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=21995f53de&e=407b4ef435


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 7 
 

our team moving forward on this very important project that is one of the nation’s 

largest and most expressive examples of the new business model called 
“Shared Services.” As our City Manager said, “This is a big story. It is very 
special to see four cities work together to create a system that improves the 
level of service at lower cost. This a new model of how business will be done 
in the future.” 

 

Our final agenda item was the presentation of the annual Town of Addison Police 

department 2015 racial profiling report. For the fifth year in a row we did not 

have any racial profiling complaints in our department. The report concluded that 

there is no systemic racial profiling in our police department, and we are in full 

compliance with state law. As you may recall we have had body cameras for all of 

our officers, as well as video in all of the police vehicles, for quite some time. 

 

We adjourned our Council Meeting before 10:30pm. 

 

More Council News! 
                                                                                                  

We will be having a Council election this spring in Addison. Filing for the May 

7 election closed last Friday at 5pm and current Council Members Mayor Pro 
Tempore Janelle Moore, Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore David Heape and 
Council Member Mary Carpenter will be standing for reelection. Running 
against them are Al Angel, Jim Duffy and Paul Walden. Early voting ends 

today, February 26, at 7pm. As mentioned above, Election Day is Saturday, May 7 

with results posted soon after the polls close at 7pm. 

 

This time of year with national, statewide and now local election campaigns 

underway, I am often asked if current Council Members are permitted to 
endorse other candidates in national, statewide or local elections. Recent 

guidance provided to Council on this issue from our City Attorney states, “Section 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 8 
 

2-93(11) however, specifically allows each member of the City Council to lend 
his/her name and official city title (Mayor or Councilmember) in connection 

with any election for public office or in connection with any election ordered by 

the Town on a proposition or measure.” 

 

Business Development 
 

On the afternoon of Wednesday, February 24, 2016, I dropped by for the special 

Grand Opening celebration of a new very interesting store here in Addison. 
Dody D Home Decor is located at 4750 Ratliff Lane, just off of Addison Road 
and a couple of blocks north of Keller Springs Road. Open 10am to 6pm each 

day, they have a wide variety of high quality home furnishings and decor items that 

are all brand new and sold at near wholesale prices. They have a one-of-a-kind 

inventory with new merchandise arriving weekly. Co-owner Cheryl Pembleton 

shared with me that their business model is pretty simple: buy low, then sell low. 

They have access to very unique items from all over the world and because of their 

very low rent factor, they are able to pass along great savings to their customers. 

All items are clearly marked, and they even leave the whole price tags on some so 

you can compare! 

   



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 9 
 

 
 

Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore, our Council liaison with the North Dallas 

Chamber of Commerce, Director of Economic Development Orlando Campos, 

Manager of Economic Development Drew Dietrich and I joined Janelle in helping 

to co-host an event here in Addison on Thursday, February 25 at the very fun and 

entertaining Bitter Sisters microbrewery. The reception for members of the North 

Dallas Chamber began at about 5:30pm and ran until about 7pm with lots of good 

folks learning all about the brewery, its unique history and of course enjoying 

Addison hospitality. This is another great way for us to partner with successful 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 10 
 

organizations and build our brand. Many thanks to Janelle for helping to bring this 

event to Addison and her work as our liaison with the North Dallas Chamber of 

Commerce.   

 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 11 
 

 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 12 
 

 
 

On the afternoon of Thursday, February 25, Director of Economic Development 

Orlando Campos, manager of Economic Development Drew Dietrich and I 

represented Addison at the ribbon cutting for Abilene Christian University’s 
brand new Addison campus located in the Hanover Building at 16633 Dallas 

Parkway. We met several enthusiastic members of the University staff that are 

very pleased to be with us here in Addison. They have now taken the entire 

8th floor of the Hanover Building with plans to take over most of the 6th floor for 

even greater expansion. The President of the University, Phil Schubert, spoke 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 13 
 

to the large group about the University’s future and the enthusiasm they have for 

expanding beyond their Abilene campus and joining us here in Addison, even 

offering us opportunities to share their space for meetings or events. The addition 

of a well-respected University campus to our Addison portfolio of diverse 
customers is an excellent addition to our community. We are very proud to 

have the Abilene Christian University Wildcats as part of our Addison. 

   

 
 

Around Town 

 

Late Thursday afternoon on February 25, our Addison Legacy Foundation Board 

met at the offices of UDR for the monthly meeting that rotates each month at 

different board members’ offices. This month our host was board member Tom 
Lamberth with UDR. Mayor Pro Tempore Janelle Moore joined our additional 

board members Chic Martin, Tamela Thornton, Debbie Staggs, Bob Kantner, 
Ray Ryland and Board Chair Blake Clemens. In addition to important 

administrative issues, Tamela and Chic gave us an update on our visioning and 

forward-looking goals. Blake gave us an update on our tentatively scheduled 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 14 
 

December 2, 2016 Vitruvian Lights Run. Additionally, the board approved payment 

for the new Celestial Park pet and people water fountain. Chic Martin and Ray 

Ryland shared with us the exciting news that we found a location for the restoration 

work to be performed on our 1930 fire truck! Blake and Ray worked with Scott 
Buzzell, who owns a hangar on Dooley Road that he has graciously loaned to us 

for the restoration project. In fact as you can see from the photo below, the fire 

truck has been moved from its spot in the bays at Fire Station #1 to its new 

location where the work will begin. Now we need your help! If you would like to 

donate your funds or time to this fun project contact Blake Clemens at 

blake.clemens@tx.rr.com. 

   

mailto:blake.clemens@tx.rr.com


MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 15 
 

 
 

I will have the honor tonight of presenting our Rising Star of 2016 Award to our 

very deserving Deputy City Manager Cheryl Delaney at the Metrocrest Chamber 

of Commerce annual awards event. Here with us since 2014, Cheryl helped us 

navigate through some very challenging transition times. Thanks to her extensive 

background in finance, she served in the dual roles of Deputy City Manager and 

CFO through our budget season and until recently with the new hire of Interim 

CFO Scott Neils. Cheryl combines her work history with professional service in 

municipal government finance positions in Round Rock Texas and San Antonio 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 16 
 

with work in the private sector at Deloitte Consulting and HEB Grocery. An avid 

and passionate member and supporter of all that we are doing to improve our 

Athletic Club, Cheryl definitely qualifies as an Addison Rising Star! 

Congratulations Cheryl, we are all very proud of you. 
                        

Coming Events                                                                                                           

 

Wednesday, March 2, 10am: First Wednesday Coffee with the Mayor, Dunn 

Brothers Coffee, 3725 Belt Line Road 

 

Monday, March 7, 11:30am – 1pm:  Monthly Economic Development Luncheon, 

The Londoner, 14930 Midway Road 

 

Monday, March 14 and Wednesday, March 16, 6 – 9pm: Community Meeting of 

the Town’s Master Transportation Plan, 15650 Addison 

Road                                                     

 

We continue to be very busy here in Addison, and that is a very good thing. 
Our business environment has never been better. Addison Airport is 
continuing to improve and draw new customers. Our 10 million square feet 
of office space continues to fill with exciting new office products coming 
online. Two new hotels are under construction to add to our impressive 22 
hotel portfolio. New restaurants are opening virtually every month. Addison 
TreeHouse continues to be the hip space for new entrepreneurs to plant the 
seeds of new businesses, and our commercial property valuations are at all-
time highs. With our new “Tone at the Top” in our own organization, we are 
in the best positon ever here in Addison to meet and embrace a very positive 
future. 
 

I am very proud to be your mayor and to work with our outstanding Council 



MAYOR’S NEWSLETTER – FEBRUARY 26, 2016 
 

Mayor’s Newsletter – February 26, 2016 – Page 17 
 

 

and amazing staff every day to make sure this very positive trend continues. 
                                                     
See you soon, 

                                                                                                                   

Todd  
  

 

Copyright © 2016 Town of Addison, All rights reserved.  
You are receiving this email because you opted in to receive the weekly Mayor's Newsletter.  
 
Our mailing address is:  
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001 
 
Add us to your address book 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences   

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/vcard?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage1.com/unsubscribe?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435&c=ce60bf094c
http://addisontexas.us8.list-manage.com/profile?u=6ea5c69f0a496eb8079198fdf&id=b1e86a413c&e=407b4ef435














































































































































































































































































































   
AI-1624     Item #   16.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss And Consider A Resolution For Installation Of The "Lost In Wisconsin"
Public Art Piece At The Southeast Corner of Beltway and Proton Drives.

BACKGROUND:
The 'Lost In Wisconsin' art piece was donated to the Addison Arbor Foundation by artist
Nic Noblique. The art piece had been an outdoor installation and so the Arbor
Foundation agreed to pay the cost to have the piece powder-coated in preparation for
the installation.  The piece was delivered to the Town of Addison on 8/27/2013 by the
artist.

The placement of 'Lost in Wisconsin' was taken to Council on July 9th, 2013 (Item #R4)
for approval along with two other pieces ('Cut One Plant One' by Nic Noblique and the
'untitled' plane sculpture for the Wright Brother and Wiley Post median).  The
approved location for the 'Lost In Wisconsin' was the southeast corner of Beltway and
Proton Drives. Instead of being a stand-alone installation, the art piece was incorporated
into the Beltway/Proton Pedestrian Connectivity Project as the central design
feature.  During a Council work session on 10/13/2015 (Recognition Garden at the
corner of Beltway/Proton), the Council directed staff to delay installation of the art piece. 

With the connectivity project now complete, Staff is seeking direction on how to
proceed. Staff recommends installation of 'Lost in Wisconsin' at this location.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Map
Picture of Entry
Resolution







TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  THE  INSTALLATION  OF  THE
PUBLIC  ART  PIECE  KNOWN  AS  “LOST  IN  WISCONSIN”  AT  THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF BELTWAY DRIVE AND PROTON DRIVE,
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS,  the  Addison  Arbor  Foundation  received  for  the  Town of  Addison,  the
donation of a public art piece known as “Lost in Wisconsin;” and 

WHEREAS,  at  its  July  9,  2013,  City  Council  meeting,  the  Council  approved  the
placement of the sculpture at the southeast corner of Beltway Drive and Proton Drive; and

WHEREAS, the Town staff has recommended installation of the public art piece at the
southeast corner of Beltway Drive and Proton Drive.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The  recitals  set  forth  above  are  true  and  correct  and  are  incorporated
herein for all purposes.

Section 2.  The Addison City Council hereby approves installation of the public art piece
known as “Lost in Wisconsin” at the southeast corner of Beltway Drive and Proton Drive.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 24th day of May, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



   
AI-1660     Item #   17.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Athletic Club

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, Consider And Approve An Ordinance Establishing
Standards Of Care For Youth Recreation Programs Conducted By The Town
For Elementary Age Children Ages 5 Through 13; Providing For Compliance
With Section 42.041(b)(14) Of The Texas Human Resources Code.

BACKGROUND:
Municipalities that operate youth programs are required by state law to develop a
standards of care document for youth camps, hold a public hearing, and have the
standards approved by ordinance on an annual basis. This document serves as a guide
for staff to operate the camp, including but not limited to staff ratios, hiring practices,
training, facility requirements, programming, healthy, safety, and discipline. Once
approved, the ordinance is posted to the website and copies are available for parents
when they sign up their kids for camp.

Attached is the ordinance adopted last year, with no changes, that is intended to provide
minimum standards for youth programs as required by Section 42.041 of the Texas
Human Resources Code. The Standards of Care attached as Exhibit A cover guidelines
for operating youth programs by the Town of Addison Recreation Department.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO. _________

AN  ORDINANCE  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON,  TEXAS
ESTABLISHING  STANDARDS  OF  CARE  FOR  YOUTH
RECREATION PROGRAMS CONDUCTED BY THE CITY FOR
ELEMENTARY  AGE  CHILDREN  AGES  5  THROUGH  13;
PROVIDING  FOR  COMPLIANCE  WITH  STATE  LAW;
PROVIDING  A  SAVINGS  CLAUSE;  PROVIDING  A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS,  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas  (the  “City”)  is  a  home  rule
municipality pursuant to article 11, section 5 of the Texas Constitution and its Home Rule
Charter; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  operates  recreation  programs  for  children,  including
elementary age children (ages 5 through 13); and

WHEREAS, Section 42.041 of the Texas Human Resources Code provides that
no person may operate a child-care facility or a child-placing agency without a license
issued  by the  Texas  Department  of  Family  and Protective  Services,  but  provides  an
exception  from  that  requirement  in  Section  42.041(b)(14)  of  the  said  Code  for  an
elementary-age  (ages  5  through  13)  recreation  program  operated  by  a  municipality,
provided the governing body of the municipality annually adopts standards of care by
ordinance after a public hearing for such programs; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on May 12, 2015 regarding
standards of care for its recreation program for elementary age children (ages 5 through
13)  and  thereafter  passed  and  approved  Ordinance  No.  015-012   that  adopted  such
standards of care; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 42.041(b)(14) of the Human Resources
Code, on May 24, 2016 the City Council conducted an annual public hearing regarding
the adoption of standards of care for its recreation programs for elementary age children
(ages  5  through  13)  as  set  forth  herein,  and  following  such public  hearing  the  City
Council desires by this Ordinance to adopt such standards of care.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The standards of care set forth in  Exhibit A attached hereto and
made a part  of  this  Ordinance  for  all  purposes (the “Standards  of  Care”)  are  hereby
adopted as the standards of care for all elementary age (ages 5 through 13) recreation
programs operated by the Town of Addison, Texas (collectively “Programs” and each a
“Program”),  including,  without  limitation,  any summer  camp  program or  any  spring
break program.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 1 of 13



Section 2. All  Programs  are  to  be  operated  by  the  City’s  Department
Recreation (“Department”).  The Director of the Department, or the Director’s designee,
(individually or collectively, the “Director”), shall administer the Programs in accordance
with the Standards of Care.   The Director  may adopt  rules in  writing relating  to  the
operation of Programs, which rules may be more restrictive than the Standards of Care.
The Programs shall be operated in accordance with the Standards of Care (or, in the event
the  Director  adopts  rules  that  are  more  restrictive  than  the  Standards  of  Care,  in
accordance with such rules).

Section 3. The Director  Recreation  (“Director”)  for  the  Town of  Addison,
Texas (“City”), or the Director’s designee, shall provide the Standards of Care to the
parents of each Program participant (and, in the event the Director adopts rules that are
more restrictive than the Standards of Care, shall provide such rules to the parents of each
Program participant).  Further, the Director, or the Director’s designee, shall inform the
parents  of  each Program participant  that  the Program is  not  licensed by the State  of
Texas.

Section 4. The Program shall not be advertised as a child-care facility.

Section 5. The Director is authorized to take any and all steps, if any, as may
be necessary to confirm the Program’s exemption from State law as set forth in Section
42.041 of the Texas Human Resources Code.

Section 6. The above and foregoing recitals and premises to this Ordinance
are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.

Section 7. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the
City  and  shall  not  repeal  any of  the  provisions  of  those  ordinances  except  in  those
instances  where  the  provisions  of  those  ordinances  are  in  direct  conflict  with  the
provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 8. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any section
or  provision  of  this  Ordinance  or  the  application  of  any section  or  provision  to  any
person, firm,  corporation,  entity,  situation or circumstance is for any reason adjudged
invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the same shall not
affect the validity of any other section or provision of this Ordinance or the application of
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, entity, situation or
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions
of this Ordinance adopted herein without the invalid or unconstitutional parts and to this
end the provisions of this Ordinance adopted herein shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 9. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas
this the 24th day of May, 2016.

                                                                                  
Todd Meier, Mayor

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 2 of 13



ATTEST:

By:                                                                            
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:                                                                            
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 3 of 13



EXHIBIT A
TO ORDINANCE NO.                      

STANDARDS OF CARE
FOR ELEMENTARY AGE (5 – 13) RECREATION PROGRAMS

The following Standards of Care are adopted in compliance with Section 42.041(b)(14)
of the Texas Human Resources Code.  The Standards of Care herein set forth herein are
intended to be minimum standards applicable to all elementary age (ages 5 through 13)
recreation Programs operated by the Town of Addison Recreation Department, including,
without  limitation,  any summer  camp  program and  any spring  break  program.   The
Programs are not licensed by the State of Texas, and shall not be advertised as a child-
care facility.

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

1. Organization.

A. The governing body of the Youth Programs is the City Council  of the
Town of Addison, Texas.

B. Implementation  of  the  Youth  Programs  Standards  of  Care  is  the
responsibility of the Recreation Department Director or his or her designee
and Department employees.

C. These Standards of Care will apply to all  Programs, including, without
limitation, the Summer Camp Program and Spring Break Program.

D. Each Program Site will have available for public and staff review a current
copy of the Standards of Care.

E. Parents of participants will be provided a current copy of the Standards of
Care during the registration process for a Program.  Further, a copy of the
Standards of Care shall be placed online on the City’s primary website.

F. Criminal  background checks will be conducted on prospective Program
employees.   If  results  of  a  criminal  background  check  indicate  that  a
prospective  Program  employee  has  been  arrested,  charged  with,  or
convicted  of  any  of  the  following  offenses,  the  prospective  Program
employee will not be considered for employment:

(1) a felony or a misdemeanor classified as an offense against a person
or family member;

(2) a felony or misdemeanor classified as public indecency;

(3) any offense  for  which  a  person is  required  to  register  as  a  sex

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 4 of 13



offender under Chapter 62, Texas Code of Criminal Procedure;

(4) a felony or misdemeanor violation of any law intended to control
the possession or distribution of any controlled substance;

(5) any offense involving moral turpitude;

(6) any offense that would, in the Director’s sole opinion, potentially
put youth participants or the City at risk.

2. Definitions.  For purposes of these Standards of Care, the following words shall
have the respective meanings ascribed to them:

A. City means the Town of Addison, Texas.

B. City Council means the City Council of the City.

C. Department means the Recreation Department of the City.

D. Director means the Recreation Department Director of the City or his or
her designee.

E. Employee(s) means people who have been hired to work for the Town of
Addison  and  have  been  assigned  responsibility  for  managing,
administering, or implementing some portion of a Program.

F. Parent(s) means one or both parent(s) or adults who have legal custody
and authority to enroll their child(ren) in a Program.

G. Participant means a youth whose parent(s) have completed all  required
registration procedures and determined to be eligible for a Program.

H. Programs means  all  (and  Program means  any  of  the)  elementary  age
(ages  5  through  13)  recreation  programs  operated  by  the  Department,
including, without limitation, the City Summer Camp Program (Summer
Camp Program) and the City Spring Break Camp Program (Spring Break
Program).

I. Program  Coordinator  or  Coordinator means  a  full-time  Department
employee  who  is  a  recreation  coordinator  and  has  been  assigned
administrative responsibility for the Programs.

J. Program  Manual means  a  notebook  of  policies,  procedures,  required
forms, and organizational and programming information relevant to each
Program.

K. Program Site means area and facilities where a Program is held, consisting

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 5 of 13



of  the  Addison  Athletic  Club,  3900  Beltway  Drive,  Addison,  Texas
75001.

L. Program Summer  Camp Counselor or  Counselor  means  a  Department
part-time or seasonal employee who has been assigned responsibility by
the Recreation Manager to implement the City’s Summer Camp Program.

M. Recreation  Manager means  a  full-time  Department  employee  and who
oversees the Program Coordinator and the operation of all Programs.

3. Inspections/Monitoring/Enforcement.

A. A written inspection report will be prepared by the Program Coordinator
each month to confirm the Standards of Care are being adhered to.

(1) Each  monthly  inspection  report  will  be  sent  by  the  Program
Coordinator  to  the  Recreation  Manager  for  review and kept  on
record in accordance with the City’s records retention policy.

(2) The  Recreation  Manager  will  review  the  report  and  establish
deadlines and criteria for compliance with the Standards of Care
where failure to comply is determined.

 
B. The Recreation  Manager  will  make visual  inspections  of  the Programs

based on the following schedule:

(1) The  Summer  Camp  Program will  be  inspected  a  minimum of  two
times during the Summer Camp Program’s schedule.

(2) The  Spring  Break  Camp  Program  will  be  inspected  at  least  once
during the Spring Break Camp Program schedule.

(3) Each other Program will be inspected at least once each week during
the schedule for the Program.

C. Complaints  regarding  enforcement  of  the  Standards  of  Care  will  be
directed to the Coordinator.  The Coordinator will be responsible to take
the  necessary  steps  to  address  any  complaints  and  to  resolve  the
problem(s), if any.  Complaints regarding enforcement of the Standards of
Care and their resolution will be recorded in writing by the Coordinator.
All complaints regarding enforcement of the Standards of Care where a
deficiency is  determined will  be forwarded to the Recreation Manager,
with the complaint and the resolution noted.

4. Enrollment.  Before a child can be enrolled in a Program, the parents must sign
registration forms that contain the following information about the child:

A. name, address, home telephone number;

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 6 of 13



B. name and address of parent(s) and telephone number(s) during Program 
hours;

C. the names and telephone numbers of people to whom the child can be 
released;

D. a statement of the child's physical health, including a physician’s signed 
statement and current immunization (shot) records, detailing any special problems
or needs of the child;

E. proof of residency within the City when appropriate; and

F. a fully executed liability waiver and release.

5. Suspected Abuse.

Program employees  will report  suspected child abuse or neglect  in accordance
with the Texas Family Code.  In the case where an employee is involved in an
incident with a child that could be construed as child abuse, the incident must be
reported immediately to the Recreation Manager.  The Recreation Manager will
then immediately notify the Director, the City Police Department, and any other
agency as may be appropriate.

Texas state law requires the employees of the Programs to report any suspected
abuse or neglect of a child to the Texas Department of Protective and Regulatory
Services  or  a  law enforcement  agency.   Failure  to  report  suspected  abuse  is
punishable by fines up to $1,000 and/or confinement up to 180 days.  Confidential
reports may be made by calling 1-800-252-5400.

STAFFING - RESPONSIBILITIES AND TRAINING

1. Program Coordinator Qualifications.

A. The  Coordinator  will  be  a  full-time,  professional  employee  of  the
Department.

B. The Coordinator must be at least 21 years old

C. The  Coordinator  must  have  received  a  bachelor's  degree  from  an
accredited college or university.  Acceptable degrees include:

(1) Recreation Administration or General Recreation;

(2) Physical Education; and

(3) Any other comparable degree plan or experience that would lend
itself to working in a public recreation environment.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 7 of 13



D. The Coordinator  must  have at  least  two years  experience  planning and
implementing recreational activities.

E. The  Coordinator  must  pass  a  background  investigation,  including,
including testing for alcohol and illegal and unauthorized drugs.

F. The Coordinator must have successfully completed a course in first aid
and cardio pulmonary resuscitation (CPR) based on either American Heart
Association or American Red Cross standards.

2. Coordinator's Responsibilities.

A. The  Coordinator  is  responsible  to  administer  the  Programs'  daily
operations in compliance with the adopted Standards of Care.

B. The  Coordinator  is  responsible  to  recommend  for  hire,  supervise,  and
evaluate Program seasonal employees.

C. The Coordinator is responsible to plan, implement, and evaluate Programs.

3. Program Summer Camp Counselor Qualifications.

A. Counselors will be part-time or seasonal employees of the Department.

B. Counselors working with children must be age 18 or older.

C. Counselors  must  be  able  to  consistently  exhibit  competency,  good
judgment, and self-control when working with children.

D. Counselors must relate to children with courtesy, respect, tolerance, and
patience.

E. Counselors  must  have successfully  completed  a  course  in  first  aid  and
CPR based on either American Heart Association or American Red Cross
standards.  

F. Counselors  must  pass  a  background investigation,  including testing  for
alcohol and illegal and unauthorized drugs.

4. Counselor Responsibilities.

A. Counselors will be responsible to provide Program participants with an
environment in which they can feel safe, can enjoy wholesome recreation
activities, and can participate in appropriate social opportunities with their
peers.

B. Counselors will be responsible to know and follow all City, Department,

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 8 of 13



and  Program  standards,  policies,  and  procedures  that  apply  to  the
Program.

C. Counselors must ensure that Program participants are released only to a
parent or an adult designated by the parent.  The Program Site will have a
copy of the approved plan to verify the identity of a person authorized to
pick up a Program participant if that person is not known to the Counselor.

5. Training/Orientation.

A. The Department  is responsible for providing training and orientation to
Program  employees  working  with  children  and  for  specific  job
responsibilities.   The  Coordinator  will  provide  each  Counselor  with  a
Program manual specific to the applicable Program.

B. Program  employees  must  be  familiar  with  the  Standards  of  Care  for
Program operation as adopted by the City Council.

C. Program  employees  must  be  familiar  with  the  Program’s  policies,
including  discipline,  guidance,  and  release  of  Program  participants  as
outlined in the Program Manual.

D. Program employees  will  be trained in appropriate  procedures to handle
emergencies.

E. Program employees will be trained in areas including City, Department,
and Program policies  and procedures,  provision of recreation activities,
safety issues, and organization goals.

F. Program employees will be required to sign an acknowledgement that they
received the required training.

OPERATIONS

1. Staff-Participant Ratio.

A. The standard ratio of Program participants to employees will be 15 to 1.
In the event an employee assigned to a Program is unable to report to the
Program Site, a replacement will be assigned.

B. Each participant shall have a Program employee who is responsible for the
participant and who is aware of the participant's habits, interests, and any
special  problems  as  identified  by  the  participant's  parent(s)  during  the
registration process.

2. Discipline.

A. Program employees will implement discipline and guidance in a consistent

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 9 of 13



manner based on the best interests of Program participants.

B. There must be no cruel, harsh or corporal punishment or treatment used a
method of discipline.

C. Program employees may use brief, supervised separation from the group if
necessary.

D. As necessary,  Program employees  will  initiate  discipline  reports  to  the
parent(s) of participants.  Parents will be asked to sign discipline reports to
indicate they have been advised about specific problems or incidents.

E. A sufficient number and/or severe nature of discipline reports as detailed
in the Program Manual  may result  in  a participant  being suspended or
removed from the Program or all Programs.

F. In  instances  where  there  is  a  danger  to  participants  or  employees,
offending participants will be removed from the Program Site as soon as
possible.

3. Programming.

A. Program employees  will  attempt to provide activities  for each Program
group according  to  the  participants’  ages,  interests,  and abilities.   The
activities  must  be  appropriate  to  participants’  health,  safety,  and  well-
being.  The activities also must be flexible and promote the participants’
emotional, social, and mental growth.

B. Program  employees  will  attempt  to  provide  indoor  and  outdoor  time
periods that include:

(1) alternating active and passive activities;

(2) opportunity for individual and group activities, and

(3) outdoor time each day weather permits.

C. Program employees will be attentive and considerate of participants' safety
on field trips and during any transportation provided by the Program.

(1) During  trips,  Program  employees  supervising  participants  must
have  immediate  access  to  emergency  medical  forms  and
emergency contact information for each participant.

(2) Program employees must have a written list of the participants in
the Program group and must check the roll frequently.

(3) Program employees must have first aid supplies and a guide to first

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 10 of 13



aid and emergency care available on field trips.

4. Communication.

A. The Program Site will have a cell phone to allow the Program employees
to be contacted by Department recreation employees and vice versa.

B. The Coordinator will post the following telephone numbers adjacent to a
telephone accessible to all Program employees:

(1) City ambulance or emergency medical services;

(2) City Police Department

(3) City Fire Department

(4) The Addison Athletic Club front desk; and

(5) Numbers at which parents may be reached.

5. Transportation.

A. Before  a  participant  may  be  transported  to  and  from  City-sponsored
activities,  a  transportation  form,  completed  by  the  parent  of  the
participant, must be filed with the Coordinator.

B. First  aid  supplies  and  a  first  aid  and  emergency  care  guide  will  be
available in all Program vehicles that transport children.

C. Program employees will carry a cell phone at all times.

FACILITY STANDARDS

1. Safety.

A. Program employees will inspect Program Sites daily to detect sanitation
and  safety  concerns  that  might  affect  the  health  and  safety  of  the
participants.

B. Buildings, grounds, and equipment on the Program Site will be inspected,
cleaned, repaired, and maintained to protect the health of the participants.

C. Program equipment and supplies must be safe for the participants’ use.

D. Program employees must have first aid supplies readily available at the
Program Site,  during  transportation  to  an  off-site  activity,  and  for  the
duration of any off-site activity.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 11 of 13



2. Fire.

A. In case of fire,  danger of fire,  explosion,  or other emergency,  Program
employees' first priority is to evacuate the participants to a designated safe
area.

B. The Program Site will  have an annual  fire inspection by the local  Fire
Marshal, and the resulting report will detail any safety concerns observed.
The report will be forwarded to the Recreation Manager who will review
and establish deadlines and criteria for compliance if any deficiencies or
concerns are determined to exist.

C. The Program Site must have at least one fire extinguisher readily available
to all Program employees.  All Program employees will be trained in the
proper use of fire extinguishers.

D. Fire  drills  will  be  initiated  at  Program  Sites  based  on  the  following
schedule:

(1) Summer Camp Program:  A fire drill twice during the session.
(2) Spring Break Camp Program:  A fire drill once during the session.
(3) Other Programs:  A fire drill at least once during the session.

3. Health.

A. Illness or Injury.

(1) A participant who is considered to be a health or safety concern to
other participants or employees will not be admitted to a Program.

(2) Illnesses and injuries will be handled in a manner to protect the
health of all participants and employees.

(3) Program employees will follow plans to provide emergency care
for  injured  participants  with  symptoms  of  an  acute  illness  as
specified in the Program Manual.

(4) Program employees will follow the recommendation of the Texas
Department of Health concerning the admission or readmission of
any participant after a communicable disease.

B. Program  employees  will  administer  medication  (limited  only  to  an
epinephrine pen (auto-injector) and an asthma inhaler) to participants only
if:

(1) Parent(s)  complete  and sign a medication  form provided by the
Town  (to  include,  among  other  things,  an  indemnity  and  hold

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 12 of 13



harmless  provision,  and  a  waiver  and  release  provision)  that
provides  authorization  for  Program  employees  to  dispense  the
medication, with details as to time and dosages.

(2) The  medication  is  in  its  original  container  labeled  with  the
participant’s  name,  a date,  directions,  and the physician’s  name.
Program employees will administer the medication only as stated
on the label.  Program employees will not administer medication
after the medication’s expiration date.

Program employees will not administer any other medication.

C. Toilet Facilities.

(1) The Program Site will have inside toilets located and equipped so
participants can use them independently and Program employees
can supervise as needed.

(2) An  appropriate  and  adequate  number  of  lavatories  will  be
provided.

D. Sanitation.

(1) The Program facilities  will  have adequate light,  ventilation,  and
heat.

(2) The Program will have an adequate supply of water meeting the
standards of the Texas Department  of Health for drinking water
and ensure that it will be supplied to the participants in a safe and
sanitary manner.

(3) Program  employees  will  see  that  garbage  is  removed  from
buildings daily.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                 
Page 13 of 13



   
AI-1616     Item #   18.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance Approving A
Special Use Permit For A Restaurant And A Special Use Permit For The Sale
Of Alcoholic Beverages For On-Premises Consumption Only, On Property
Located At 5290 Belt Line Road, Suite 115 On Application From Gyu
KaKu .Case 1736-SUP/Gyu Kaku.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19,
2016, voted to recommend approval of ordinance changing the zoning on property
located at 5290 Belt Line Road Suite 115 by approving a Special Use Permit for a
restaurant and a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises
consumption, subject to the following condition: 

The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions relating to
alcoholic beverages in exterior signage.

Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:          none
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
 
For:              none
On:               none
Against:        none

Additional information regarding this item can be found in the attached staff report.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1736-SUP Plans
1736-SUP Staff Report
Ordinance



Ordinance



SHEET NO.:

TITLE:

REVISIONS:
DATE:
CHECKED BY:
DRAWN BY:

2515 FABENS RD,Dallas TX 75229TEL: 972.484.3500FAX: 972.426.7095

EVER DESIGN & BUILD CORP .

E N G I N E E R I N GC O N S T R U C T I O ND E V E L O P M E N T

JWK ENGINEERING , LLC

1301 E. DEBBIE LN, SUITE102-164 MANSFIELD, TX 76063TEL: 817.308.6243FAX: 972.539.9933

cgoff
Rectangle



SHEET NO.:

PROJECT NO.:

REVISIONS:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

2515 FABENS RD,

Dallas TX 75229

TEL: 972.484.3500

FAX: 972.426.7095

EVER DESIGN & BUILD CORP .

0
2

/
A

2
.
0

0

3

/

A

2

.

0

04/A2.0





G SUH
Snapshot



1736-SUP 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1736-SUP/Gyu-KaKu. Public hearing, discussion, and take 
action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on property 
located at 5290 Belt Line Road, Suite 115, which property is currently zoned LR, Local 
Retail, by approving a new Special Use Permit for a restaurant and a new Special Use 
Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

   

 

 

 

April 15, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1736-SUP/Gyu-Kaku 

LOCATION:      5290 Belt Line Road Suite 115 

REQUEST: Approval of a new Special Use Permit for a 
restaurant and a new Special Use Permit for the 
sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises 
consumption only 

 
APPLICANT:  Gyu-Kaku represented by Mr. Christian Le 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: This leased space is part of the Prestonwood Place retail center at the corner of Belt 
Line Road and Montfort Drive and is zoned Local Retail. This suite first received SUP approval in 
1996 for a restaurant named Mattito’s Café Mexicano. Most recently, this space was occupied by 
India West, which closed about a year ago. The previous tenant occupied approximately 5,825 square 
feet, including a small patio. 
 
Proposed Plan: The property owner is planning to subdivide the large existing space into two 
restaurant spaces. New SUPs are required due to the extent of the renovation. The first to come in for 
SUP approval is a concept called Gyu-Kaku (Gew-Kah-Koo). This is a Japanese barbeque concept 
with 35 other locations around the United States and Canada. This would be their first location in 
Dallas and second in Texas. Gyu-Kaku is Japanese for “Horn of the Bull.” The concept includes a 
small grill at each table for patrons to cook their own meat, similar to the Melting Pot concept. 
 
Gyu-KaKu is proposing to occupy 2,900 square feet of interior space and the existing 525 square foot 
patio with total seating for 136. 
 
Facades: The applicant is proposing a minor change to the exterior of the building by adding an entry 
feature around their door.  
 
Parking: As this restaurant is occupying a previous restaurant space, compliance with required 
parking ratios will not be impacted. 
 
Landscaping: The Parks Department will assess the condition of the landscaping during the 
construction process. Any deficiencies will need to be corrected prior to the issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy. 
 



2 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITION 
 
Gyu-KaKu appears to be a quality restaurant and is a new concept to Addison. This should be a good 
fit for the center. Staff recommends approval subject to the following condition: 
 

 The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic beverages 
in any exterior signage. 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

This is a competitive corner and this concept has a suc-
cessful tract record. 

  

 Safe This development is safe. 

  

 Functional The floor plan is a good design and appears functional. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The entryway feature will add visual interest to the façade 
of the space. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The site is a good location for restaurants, retail, and oth-
er support services.  

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

Reoccupying a vacant space is an environmentally re-
sponsible development pattern. 

  

 Walkable 
The sidewalks adjacent to this property are narrow and 
immediately back of curb with no good connections 
through the parking lot. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

This new concept that will add a unique restaurant to 
the Town. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Gyu-KaKu, 5290 Belt Line Road, Suite 115 1735-SUP 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1736-SUP/Gyu-KaKu 
April 19, 2016 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19, 
2016, voted to recommend approval of ordinance changing the zoning on property 
located at 5290 Belt Line Road Suite 115 by approving a Special Use Permit for a 
restaurant and a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises 
consumption, subject to the following condition: 
 

 The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions relating to 
alcoholic beverages in exterior signage.  

 
Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent: none 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:  none 
On:  none 
Against: none 
 



Case No. 1736-SUP/Gyu-Kaku 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 

O96-058 AND TO GRANT SPECIAL USE PERMITS FOR A RESTAURANT AND 

THE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR ON-PREMISES 

CONSUMPTION, ON APPLICATION FROM GYU-KAKU, FOR PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 5290 BELT LINE ROAD SUITE 115; PROVIDING A PENALTY 

NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 

EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED 

COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS 

OR CONTINUES; SAVINGS, NO SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 5290 Belt Line Road is part of the Prestonwood Place 

retail center and is zoned LR - Local Retail; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2. That Ordinance No. O96-058 is repealed. 

 

 Section 3.   That a Special Use Permit authorizing a restaurant and a Special Use Permit 

authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only, on the property 

located at 5290 Belt Line Road Suite 115, are hereby granted subject to the following conditions: 

 

(a) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, said Property shall be improved in 

accordance with the site plan, floor plan, and the elevation drawings, which are attached 

hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 

(b) The Special Use Permit granted herein for a restaurant with the sale of alcoholic 

beverages for on-premises consumption only shall be limited to that particular area 

designated on the final site plan as encompassing a total area not to exceed 3,425 square 

feet. 

 

(c) No signs advertising sale of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted other than those 

authorized under the Liquor Control Act of the State of Texas, and any sign ordinance 

of the Town of Addison, Texas. 



Case No. 1736-SUP/Gyu-Kaku 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 

(d) The sale of alcoholic beverages under this Special Use Permit shall be permitted in 

restaurants.  Restaurants are hereby defined as establishments which receive at least 

sixty percent (60%) of their gross revenues from the sale of food. 

 

(e) Said establishment shall make available to the city or its agents, during reasonable hours 

its bookkeeping records for inspection, if required, by the city to insure that the 

conditions of subparagraph (d) above are being met. 

 

(f) Any use of property considered as a nonconforming use under the Comprehensive 

Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Addison shall not be permitted to receive a license or 

permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 

(g) If the property for which these Special Use Permits are granted is not used for the 

purposes for which said permits were granted within one (1) year after the adoption of 

this ordinance, the City Council may authorize hearings to be held for the purpose of 

considering a change of zoning and repeal of the Special Use Permits granted herein. 

 

(h) If a license or permit to sell alcoholic beverages on property covered by this Special Use 

Permit is revoked, terminated or cancelled by proper authorities, the City Council may 

authorize hearings to be held for the purpose of considering a change of zoning repeal 

of the Special Use Permits granted herein. 

 

(i) The establishment shall not use the term “bar”, “tavern”, or any other terms or graphic 

depictions that relate to the sale of alcoholic beverages on any signs visible from the 

exterior of the premises.    

 

 Section 4.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 

of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

 Section 5.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in 

its entirety, as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not 

have adopted said ordinance if any part or portion of said ordinance should be held to be 

unconstitutional or void. 

 

 Section 6.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 7.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 



Case No. 1736-SUP/Gyu-Kaku 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 24th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

                                                              ______________________________ 

                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1736-SUP/Gyu-Kaku 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 



Case No. 1715-SUP/Public School 972 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 



Case No. 1715-SUP/Public School 972 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 



Case No. 1715-SUP/Public School 972 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 



Case No. 1715-SUP/Public School 972 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 



   
AI-1613     Item #   19.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance Amending
Ordinance No. O07-034 As Amended By Ordinance No. O13-026 That Zones
That Area Of The Town Known As Vitruvian Park And Containing
Approximately 121 Acres Of Land Generally Located At The Southeast
Corner Of Marsh Lane And Spring Valley Road In Order To Adopt A New
Concept Plan, Add Additional Permitted Uses, And Revise Various
Development Standards, On Application From UDR . Case 1735-Z/UDR.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19,
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance amending Ordinance O07-034 as
amended by Ordinance No. O13-026 that zones the area of Town known as Vitruvian
Park in order to adopt a new concept plan, add additional permitted uses, and revise
various development standards.
 
Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:         none
 
 SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
 
For:        none
On:         none
Against: Abdul Hadwani – 14330 Marsh Lane

Additional information regarding this item can be found in the attached staff report.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1735-Z Concept Plan
1735-Z Staff Report





VITRUVIAN PARK MASTER PLANAPRIL 8, 2016

BLOCK 101

Residential 392 Units

Retail 13,000 SF

BLOCK 102

Residential 347 Units

Retail 17,000 SF

Office 17,000 SF

BLOCK 103

Residential 391 Units

BLOCK 201

Residential 383 Units

BLOCK 202

Residential 300 Units

BLOCK 203

Residential 340 Units

BLOCK 204

Office 130,000 SF

Retail (Below) 18000 SF

BLOCK 205

Retail (Below) 40,000 SF

Office (Above) 18,000 SF

Residential 31 Units

BLOCK 206

Hotel (Above) 200 Keys

Retail (Below) 14,000 SF

BLOCK 207

Residential 310 Units

BLOCK 208

Residential 146 Units

BLOCK 209

Office (Above) 24,000 SF

Retail (Below) 25,000 SF

Entertainment 45,000 SF

BLOCK 210

Office (Above) 152,000 SF

Retail (Below) 35,000 SF

BLOCK 211

Retail 87,000 SF

BLOCK 213

Residential 298 Units

BLOCK 214

Residential 338 Units

BLOCK 215

Residential 265 Units

BLOCK 216

Residential 382 Units

BLOCK 217

Residential 396 Units

BLOCK 301

Residential 411 Units

BLOCK 302

Residential 541 Units

BLOCK 303

Residential 290 Units

TOTAL

Residential 5561 Units

Retail 300,000 SF

Office 350,000 SF

0 20050



1735-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1735-Z/UDR. Public hearing, discussion, and take action on a 
recommendation regarding an ordinance amending Ordinance No. O07-034 as amended 
by Ordinance No. O13-026 that zones that area of the Town known as Vitruvian Park and 
containing approximately 121 acres of land generally located at the southeast corner of 
Marsh Lane and Spring Valley Road in order to adopt a new concept plan, add additional 
permitted uses, and revise various development standards. 

 

LOCATION MAP  

 



 

 

 

 

April 15, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1735-Z/UDR 

LOCATION: Approximately 121 acres of land located generally 
at the southeast corner of Marsh Lane and Spring 
Valley Road 

REQUEST: To amend the Planned Development regulations 
established by Ordinance No. O07-034 as 
previously amended by Ordinance No. O13-026. 

 
APPLICANT:  UDR, represented by Mr. Tom Lamberth 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: On October 9, 2007, UDR obtained approval to rezone a 99-acre neighborhood, which is 
bordered by Spring Valley Road on the north, The City of Farmers Branch on the east, Farmers 
Branch and Brookhaven College on the south, and Marsh Lane on the west, from the A (Apartment) 
and PD-CC (Planned Development – Condominium Conversion) zoning districts to a Planned 
Development District.  The planned development district zoning established development standards 
and a concept plan.  

The first development plan for Savoye was approved in 2008. The development plan for the second 
building, Savoye 2, was approved in 2009. The development plan for the third phase, Fiori, was 
approved in 2011.  

Following the original zoning approval, UDR purchased four additional tracts totaling 21.7 acres. This 
integrated the Brookhaven Village Shopping Center into the project, as well as an office tract on the 
corner of Spring Valley Road and Vitruvian Way. To accommodate this, a new concept plan was 
approved by the City Council on July 9, 2013. Additionally, the PD ordinance was amended to 
establish development standards for the shopping center and add permitted uses in the district, 
including pet grooming and overnight boarding. 
 
The PD anticipated a primarily residential, mixed use development, which entitles UDR to unlimited 
residential density as well as 500,000 square feet each of office and retail space. 
 
Proposed Conceptual Plan: To date, the focus of the development has been on residential use. UDR 
has spent several years studying options on how to implement both the retail and office components. 
They believe that there is a market for more office space within the development than originally 
contemplated in the current concept plan. In an attempt to capture this demand for office, four office 



2 
 

 

buildings are being proposed totaling 350,000 square feet. This could be scaled up to a maximum of 
500,000 square feet as permitted by the PD, if demand warrants. Additionally, UDR has established a 
more definitive orientation for the retail corridor (Ponte Avenue). Instead of a diagonal orientation 
shown in the current concept plan, Ponte would curve west and intersect with Marsh Lane. This will 
increase the visibility of retail along that street.  
 
The other main difference between the current and proposed concept plan is the treatment of public 
park space. Previously, the additional public open space was shown in a very geometric 4 acre park 
bounded and bisected by public streets. Under the proposed concept plan, these streets have been 
eliminated, and the park flows more organically between buildings. This change will allow direct park 
access from the adjacent multi-family buildings and eliminate vehicular traffic from the park area. It 
also results in a slightly larger park space of about 4.5 acres. 
 
Proposed Planned Development Text Amendments: In addition to the new concept plan, a few 
revisions to the text of the Planned Development ordinance are being proposed. Some of these are 
intended to better accommodate the direction established by the revised concept plan and others are 
merely intended to clean up some interpretation and drafting issues in the existing ordinance.  
 

Special Uses: Three uses are being added to the list of permitted uses that require a special 
use permit. These are movie picture theater, gasoline service stations (in Block 211 only), and 
restaurants with drive through facilities (in Block 211 only). 

 
General Conditions for Retail: Currently, the ordinance only allows retail outside of Block 
211 in mixed use buildings with a residential component. Under the new concept plan, there 
would be a retail ground floor in office buildings and parking garages. To allow this, the 
ordinance would be adjusted to allow retail in a mixed use building with other non-residential 
uses. 

 
The intent of this provision originally was to maintain an urban, mixed use character to the 
development. Allowing retail below commercial uses as well as residential uses not only 
maintains the original intent, but also promotes the continuation of mixed use in the 
commercial areas of the plan as well as the residential. 

 
Development Standards – Street Build-to Line: When the development standards were 
revised in 2013, the section related to the street build-to line was amended to read as follows: 

 
Within all blocks shown on the Concept Plan, except Blocks 209, 210, and 211, all 
primary buildings, structures, walls, fences, and other improvements shall be 
constructed, located, placed, and erected along and continuous to the applicable build-
to line; provided, however that not more than 30 percent of any street frontage may 
vary from the build-to line. Not more than 50 percent of any street frontage may vary 
from the build-to line. 

 



3 
 

 

This appears to establish conflicting regulations stating in one sentence that not more than 30 
percent can vary and then that no more than 50 percent may vary. In the original document, it 
stated that not more than 30% of the building could deviate from the build-to line, except for an 
area identified as “Subarea 1” (Savoye 2), which allowed up to 50% to deviate. When the new 
concept plan was adopted, a new block number scheme was established and “Subarea 1” 
became Block 102. It appears that the drafters struck the mention of “Subarea 1,” but 
neglected to replace it with Block 102.  Staff proposes to revise the ordinance accordingly to 
clear up any potential confusion going forward. 
 
Parking Standards: The ordinance does not currently provide a standard for restaurant 
parking. Typically, the Town requires a ratio of 1 space per 100 square feet in mixed use 
centers and staff proposes to do the same here. Also, the movie picture theater requirement of 
1 space per 4 seats needs to be included since this is being added as a permitted use. 
 
Parking Garage Requirements: The ordinance currently limits exposed parking garages to a 
maximum length along a street to 200 feet. Wrapping parking structures works well with 
apartment buildings, but is not feasible for commercial garages. Staff is proposing to add 
language to allow garages for non-residential buildings to be exposed only if there are 
enhanced façade elements to the garage such as living walls or unique articulation and design 
of an artistic nature. 

 
Traffic Impact Analysis: A traffic impact analysis was conducted at the time of the original zoning 
approval in 2007. The analysis determined that the adjacent roadway network could accommodate 
the additional traffic caused by the Vitruvian Development with minimal negative impacts. The plan 
currently being proposed will likely result in less of an impact on traffic than previous iterations of the 
plan. Retail square footage has roughly stayed the same between the two plans. Residential unit 
count has decreased, while office square footage has increased. Instead of residential traffic that 
would likely be headed out of the development together and back in together, the additional office 
traffic will have an opposite flow from residential. Although the total number of vehicles on the road 
would not change much, they would be dispersed in opposite directions.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
Given the time horizon of this project, the Concept Plan was always intended to be an evolving 
document that would adapt to market demand. This is the third iteration of the concept plan with more 
iterations likely to follow in the years ahead. Additional office space presents a positive opportunity. 
This will diversify the development and establish a daytime population that will be valuable to the 
current and future retail in the area. The text changes are important to clarify current requirements as 
well as to accommodate the revised direction. Staff recommends approval of the request with no 
conditions. 
 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

Vitruvian Park is a very desirable location. The adjust-
ments will help the developer attract future office and re-
tail users. 

  

 Safe 
Vitruvian Park is a very safe development. Staff is working 
with UDR to finalize a police store front to establish a per-
manent police presence in the area. 

  

 Functional 
The concept plan integrated the various elements well 
and will be functional. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The high quality standards and landscaping requirements 
will continue to make Vitruvian Park a visually appealing 
development. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The Vitruvian Park development is a high quality mixed 
use self-contained development with many amenities. 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

This is an infill redevelopment site and represents an en-
vironmentally responsible development pattern. 

  

 Walkable 
This plan reduces the number of streets, improving walka-
bility. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

This is the next evolution in the future of Vitruvian 
Park and sets a very positive direction for the devel-
opment. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Vitruvian Park 1735-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1735-Z/UDR 
April 19, 2016 
  
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19, 
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance amending Ordinance O07-034 as 
amended by Ordinance No. O13-026 that zones the area of Town known as Vitruvian 
Park in order to adopt a new concept plan, add additional permitted uses, and revise 
various development standards. 
 
Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:         none 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:        none 
On:         none 
Against: Abdul Hadwani – 14330 Marsh Lane 
 



Dear City Council of Addison, 
 
I recently had the opportunity to speak at the Planning and Zoning meeting which was 

held on 4/19/16. At the meeting I attempted to speak about the following concern in my three 
minutes, but I was so distraught that it left me at a loss for words.  

 
Our store has been part of the Addison community for 20 years. Over our years here, 

we have seen it transition into a beautiful city and community. Not only that, but we are proud 
to say that we are committed to the well-being of this city. We have stood through good times 
and bad times with our store. There was a time when all the old apartments were closed and 
we were losing money every month, but we continued business by having faith in the new 
developments that would come as a result. Our enthusiasm to serve the community of 
Addison has allowed us to connect with the people, having some of the same returning 
customers to our store since we opened! We truly believe the Vitruvian establishments have 
only enhanced the area, and are willing to work with them, like we have with this city, in order 
to make this community we love even better.  

 
With that being said we’d like to express our concerns with the prospective Tom 

Thumb gas station next to our store. We know that it will take away some of our gasoline 
business. We have the capacity to handle the demand of the new customers coming from all 
the developments in the area. As discussed in the Planning and Zoning meeting, we also 
understand that this gas station is necessary for Tom Thumb-our great 20-year business 
neighbor-to bring the customers inside their store and be competitive with other 
supermarkets. At the end of the meeting, I discovered that they are also planning to put a 
convenience store with the gas station by selling soft drinks, cigarettes, beer, ice bags, 
chips, and candy. By replicating the services of my business, they will be taking away a lot of 
our valued customers, possibly extinguishing our long-standing community store. We 
believe that adding a convenience store aspect to the Tom Thumb will serve the greater 
purpose of attempting to run me out of business. 

 
I am truly proud of the work you’ve done to better our community of Addison and we 

want to continue to be part of this city. If you have any questions, or something you would 
like to discuss in person, feel free to contact me ____________ or by email at 
__________________. Thank you for your time and commitment to this city!  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Abdul Hadwani 
Cell: ______________ 
  
Shell Gas Station 
14330 Marsh Lane 
Addison, Texas 75001 

 



   
AI-1615     Item #   20.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discussion And Consider Action On An Ordinance Approving
A Development Plan For The Construction Of 383 Multi-Family Units And An
Amenity Center, Located on 5.091 Acres On The North East Corner Of
Vitruvian Way And Marsh Lane, On Application From UDR . Case
1734-Z/Vitruvian West Phase I.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19,
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance granting development plan approval
for a development of 383 multi-family units and an amenities center in an existing
Planned Development District (PD O07-036), subject to the following waivers of design
standards:
  

Minimum area per dwelling unit for 1 bedroom units may be 577 square feet,
instead of 600 square feet

1.

Masonry percentage requirement for the northeastern elevation may be 76
percent masonry, instead of 80 percent

2.

Maximum number of building materials may be four, instead of three3.

Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:         none
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
 
For:        none
On:         none
Against:  none

Additional information regarding this item can be found in the attached staff report.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.



Attachments
1734-Z Plans
1734-Z Staff Report
Ordinance



hammocks

on artificial

turf, typ.

accent

paving

string lights,

typ.

fire

trough

accent

wall w
/ t

.v.

atta
ched

string lights,

typ.

accent

paving

bench

bench

retractable

shade structure,

typ.

accent

paving

composite

decking

steel trellis

string lights,

typ.

accent low wall,

typ.

planting pots,

typ.

accent low wall,

typ.

community

table, typ.

barbecue,

typ.

bench

bicycle

rack

accent

paving

table

tennis

entry plaza

courtyard 2

courtyard 1

SCALE: 1" = 40' - 0"

 0'  40'  80'  160'

(24"x36" SHEET)N

PHASE 1 SITEPLAN

ACTION
APPROVED DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

Date Initials

Date Initials

See the Staff Approval Letter or Council Result Memo for
any conditions associated with the approval of the project

OWNER:
TOM LAMBERT

UDR
3875 PONTE AVE. SUITE 400  .  ADDISON,TX 75001

PHONE: 972.774.0552

ZONING: PD

ADDISON, TX
4.68 ACRES
(town of addison
project # 1734-Z

CIVIL:
ICON CONSULTING

ENGINEERS, IN
2840 W.SOUTHLAKE BLVRD.,

SUITE 110
SOUTHLAKE, TX 76092

Phone: 817.552.6210

SHEET CONTENTS:

Issue for Construction

Revisions:

Issue for Permit Application:

Architect of Record:

Drawn by:

Designed by:

Date Plotted: 

#

SHEET NO.

Issue for Pricing / Bidding:

DATE COMMENTS

© 2014 by Humphreys &

Partners Architects, L.P. All

Rights Reserved

These drawings are for
preliminary coordination
only and not to be used

for regulatory approval or
construction.

 4/11/16

#13514

VI
TR

UV
IA

N 
W

ES
T 

1
AD

DI
SO

N,
 T

X
4.6

8 A
CR

ES

MS

AR
C

H
ITE

C
TS

, L
.P

.
53

39
 A

LP
H

A 
RO

AD
   

 S
UI

TE
 3

00
   

 D
AL

LA
S,

 T
EX

AS
 7

52
40

.

(9
72

) 7
01

 -
 9

63
6 

   
   

(9
72

) 7
01

 -
 9

63
9 

FA
X

.

w
w

w
.h

um
p

hr
e

ys
.c

o
m

.

D
AL

LA
S 

   
 IR

VI
N

E 
   

 N
EW

 O
RL

EA
N

S 
   

 O
RL

AN
D

O
  

.

.

.

H
U

M
PH

R
EY

S 
&

 P
AR

TN
ER

S

A202

SITEPLAN



W.I.C.

BATH

W./D.

P.

W.H.
HVAC

NET - 480 SQ. FT.
UNIT E1

JULIET

L.

STUDIO
17'-5" X 11'-6"

KITCHEN

6' WALL

M. BEDROOM
11'-6" X 14'-1"

L.

M. BATHW.I.C.

BALCONY

LIVING/DINING
11'-2" X 11'-1"

KITCHEN

HVAC
W.H.

D.

W.

C.

NET - 635 SQ. FT.
UNIT A1 ALT.1

P.

30
'-1

"

34'-4 1/2"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 301UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



BALCONY

BATH

BEDROOM
12'-1" X 11'-0"

STO.
S.

LIVING/DINING
12'-0" X 13'-9"

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

P.

NET - 618 SQ. FT.
UNIT A2

L.
S.

W.D.

W.H.
HVAC

W./D.

W.H.
HVAC

NET - 650 SQ. FT.
UNIT A3

M.BEDROOM
10'-8" X 11'-8"

C.

JULIET

LIVING
11'-0" X 11'-6"

W.I.C.

KITCHEN
H.K.

P.

BATH

L.
W./D.

W.H.
HVAC

NET - 650 SQ. FT.
UNIT A3 OP02

M.BEDROOM
10'-8" X 11'-4"

C.

JULIET

LIVING
11'-0" X 11'-6"

W.I.C.
KITCHEN

H.K.

P.

BATH

L.

S.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 302UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



NET - 833 SQ. FT.
UNIT B1

W./D.

W.H.
HVAC

M.BEDROOM
11'-4" X 11'-0"

JULIET

LIVING
13'-6" X 12'-6"

KITCHEN

M.BATH

W.I.C

C.

BEDROOM
10'-7" X 10'-8"

W.I.C.

BATH

5S.

S.

NET - 736 SQ. FT.
UNIT A4

M.BEDROOM
11'-6" X 13'-1"

W.I.C.

BALCONY

LIVING
12'-0" X 13'-6"

KITCHEN

C. W.H.
HVAC

W./D.
L.

M.BATH

P.

5S.

5S.

NET - 703 SQ. FT.
UNIT A5

M.BEDROOM
11'-4" X 12'-10"

M.BATH

LIVING
12'-0" X 14'-6"

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

L.

W. D./W.H. HVAC

BALCONY

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 303UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



NET - 1048 SQ. FT.
UNIT B3

D./W.H.

L.

KITCHEN

BEDROOM 2
11'-3'' X 12'-4''

BATH

UTIL.

W.IC.

BALCONY

LIVING
11'-9'' X 14'-6"

M. BEDROOM
11'-3" X 12'-10"

M.BATH

W.I.C.

C.W.

MOVABLE ISLAND

P.

HVAC

L.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 304UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



C.
L.

NET - 1101 SQ. FT.
UNIT B4

W./D.
W.H.

HVAC

BALCONY

M.BEDROOM
11'-8" X 16'-11"

LIVING
12'-0" X 14'

BEDROOM
10'-4" X 11'-10"

W.I.C.

BATH KITCHEN BATH

W.I.C.

P.

L.

NET - 1279 SQ. FT.
UNIT B5

DINING
9'-2" X 10'-8"

BATH

BEDROOM
13'-0" X 11'-6"

BALCONYLIVING
14'-8" X 13'-8"

W.I.C.

W.I.C.5S. P.

L.

KITCHEN

M.BATH

C.

M.BEDROOM
12'-8" X 12'-4"

W.

D./W.H.

HVAC

L.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 305UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



NET - 1232 SQ. FT.
UNIT B6

BALCONY

W.I.C.

H.K.

KITCHEN

W.H.
HVAC

L.

BEDROOM
11'-5" X 13'-8"

BATH

M. BEDROOM
11'-0" X 12'-8"

W.I.C.

LIVING
12'-1" X 12'-9"

DINING/
DEN

8'-0''X9'-0''

W.I.C.

P.

C.

W.

D.

S.

S.

M. BATH

BEDROOM
12'-2" X 12'-9"

L.

NET - 1429 SQ. FT.
UNIT B7 OP01

BATH

W.I.C.

M.BEDROOM
13'-9" X 12'-6"

DINING
9'-0" X 10'-0"

BALCONY

W.I.C.

LIVING
15'-5" X 13'-6"

KITCHEN

C.

HVAC

W.I.C.

M.BATH

W.

D./W.H.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 306UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



W.I.C
.

BATH

KITC
HEN

P.

C.

W.I.C
.

LIV
ING

12'
-6"

 X 12
'-6"

M.BEDROOM

11´
-0"
 X 
13'
-0"

BEDROOM

12'
-0"

 X 11
'-0"

DINING
7'-0

" X
 10

'-9"

L.

W.I.C
.

M.BATH

W.H.
HVAC

W./D
.

BEDROOM

11'
-0"

 X 11
'-0"

5S.

NET - 1468 SQ. FT.
UNIT C2

L.

L.

S.
S.

S.

BALC
ONY

S.

M. BATH

NET - 1415 SQ. FT.
UNIT C1

BALCONY

M.BEDROOM
11'-10" X 17'-1"LIVING

12'-0" X 15'-3"

BEDROOM
 10'-3" X 12'-0"

W.I.C.

W.I.C.

BEDROOM
10'-5" X 12'-0"

W.

S.

D./W.H.

HVAC

C.BATH

UTIL.

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

S.

DINING
8'-0" X 9'-6"

P.

S.

L.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 307UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



NET - 1375 SQ. FT.
UNIT C3

BEDROOM
11'-0" X 11'-6"

BEDROOM
10'-6" X 14'-7"

W.I.C.

W.I.C.

BATH

M.BATH

KITCHEN

FOYER L.

P.

W.I.C.

UTIL.

W.

D./W.H.

C.

LIVING
14'-0" X 13'-0"

DINING
8'-0" X 8'-0"

BALCONY

M.BEDROOM
15'-0" X 12'-3"

S.

L.

S.

S.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

 0'  4'  8'  16'

(24"x36" SHEET)

A 308UNITS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



A3A3A3A3 B2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 B2 A3 A3 A3 A3 C3C3

A2

A2

A2

A2

E1

E1

B1

COURTYARD
EXIT

BIKE
STO.

GARAGE
EXIT

ELEVATOR
LOBBY

COURTYARD 03

COURTYARD 01

COURTYARD 02

GARAGE
EXIT

B3B4

A4

A2

A4

B4 A3 A5

A3 A5A4
A4

A4
A4 B3

B3C3 B3 C3

B7

A4

A4
A4

C2

B6

A4
A4 A4

A4

B2 B2

A2

A2

A2

B3

B3

A3

A3

A3

A3

A3

A1A

CAVE

COURTYARD
EXIT

CAVE C1

MECH.MECH.

MECH.

MECH.

A5COURTYARD
EXIT

LOBBYLOBBY
STO.STO.

UP

TRASH

TRASH

RAMP
UP

LOBBY

LOBBY

ENTRY
LOBBY

STO./MECH.
F.RISER

BUSINESS
CENTER

CONF.ROOM

A3

STO.

B1
38  STACKS

38X9=342 MAIL BOXES

MAIL
ROOM

PARCEL BOXES
DRYCLEAN DROPOFF

10 8 4

9

4

3

VENTILATION SHAFT

502'-6 3/4"

32
9'-

7 3
/4"

A 410BUILDING TYPE I GROUND FLOOR PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20' - 0"

 0'  20'  40'  80'

(24"x36" SHEET)

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514



A3A3A3A3 B2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 E2 B2 A3 A3 A3 A3 C3C3

A2

A2

A2

A2

E1

E1

B1

B1

ELEVATOR
LOBBY

COURTYARD 03

COURTYARD 01

COURTYARD 02

B3B4

A4

A2

A4

B4 A3

A3A4
A4

A4
A4 B3

B3C3 B3 C3

B7

A4

A4
A4

C2

A4
A4 A4

A4

B2 B2

A2

A2

A2

B3

B3

B3

A3

A3

A3

A3

A3

A3

B5

A1A

B3

B3

B1
B2

A1

A3

A3

B3

6.04% RAMP DN

C1

B6

TRASH

TRASH

LOBBY

MECH.

LOBBYLOBBY

UP

MECH.
STO.STO.

MECH.

ME
CH

.

ELEV.

VENTILATION SHAFT

STO.

502'-6 3/4"

32
9'-

8 1
/4"

SCALE: 1" = 20' - 0"

 0'  20'  40'  80'

(24"x36" SHEET)

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

A 411BUILDING TYPE I TYPICAL FLOOR PLAN (2ND-5TH FL.)



COURTYARD 03

COURTYARD 01

COURTYARD 02

1
4 in./ft. slope

STAIR STAIR

ELEVS.

ELEV.

6.04% RAMP DN

VENTILATION SHAFT

ME
CH

.

EDGE OF TOWER
ROOF ABOVE

1
4in./ft. slope 1

4in./ft. slope 1
4in./ft. slope 1

4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope
14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope
14 in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope
14 in./ft. slope

1
4 in./ft. slope

1
4 in./ft. slope

1
4 in./ft. slope

1
4 in./ft. slope

1
4 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

1
4in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

14 in./ft. slope

512'-2"

33
2'-

7 1
/2"

SCALE: 1" = 20' - 0"

 0'  20'  40'  80'

(24"x36" SHEET)

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

A 412BUILDING TYPE I ROOF PLAN & 6TH FLOOR PLAN PKG. STRUCTURE



COURTYARD 03

COURTYARD 01

COURTYARD 02

135'-0"

21

1515

21

9

6.04% RAMP DN

6.04%
 RAMP DN

30'-8"

9

STAIR STAIR

ELEVS.

ELEV.

VENTILATION SHAFT

STAIR

ME
CH

.

TOWER ROOF

1: 
55 8

BLDG. TYPE I ROOF BELOW

BLDG. TYPE I ROOF BELOW

BLDG. TYPE I ROOF BELOW

512'-2"

33
2'-

7 1
/2"

SCALE: 1" = 20' - 0"

 0'  20'  40'  80'

(24"x36" SHEET)

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

A 413PARKING STRUCTURE- 7TH FLOOR PLAN



COURTYARD 03

COURTYARD 01

COURTYARD 02

STAIR STAIR

ELEVS.

ELEV.

VENTILATION SHAFT

ELEV.
STAIR

ELEV.

STAIR

STAIR

TOWER ROOF

BLDG. TYPE I ROOF BELOW

BLDG. TYPE I ROOF BELOW

BLDG. TYPE I ROOF BELOW

512'-2"

33
2'-

7 1
/2"

SCALE: 1" = 20' - 0"

 0'  20'  40'  80'

(24"x36" SHEET)

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

A 414PARKING STRUCTURE- ROOF PLAN



9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

13'-9''

1'-6''
5'-0''

7'-6''7'-6''

1'-6''1'-6'' 1'-6''1'-6''

6'-4 1/2''
STONE VENEER METAL RAILINGSIDING 7''METAL SIDING SIDING 7'' STUCCO STONE VENEERSIDING 7''

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

7'-6''

1'-6''

13'-9''
STONE VENEERSIDING 7''

A 420ELEVATIONS
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

 0'  16'  32'  64'

(24"x36" SHEET)

EAST ELEVATION

NORTHEAST ELEVATION

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN 200 SERIES BLOCK 201

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

GLASS 45%
STONE  20%
STUCCO 20%
METAL 3%
SIDING 12%

GLASS 40%
STONE 16%
STUCCO 20%
METAL 17%
SIDING 7%

ZONING:
VITRUVIAN PD
Town of Addison
project # 1734-Z

NOTES:
1. THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS

REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICED.
2. ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED BY

THE ZONING ORDINANCE.
3. WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED TO

MATCH THE BUILDING.
4. ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.
5. ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED

BY THE CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL.

KEY PLAN N.T.S.

N



9'-
1"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

7'-6''
5'-0''5'-0''

1'-6''2'-11''

PARKING ENTRY

STONE VENEER METAL RAILINGSIDING 7'' STUCCO METAL ROD
SUSPENSION

SIDING 7''SIDING 7'' SIDING 7''

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

9'-61/2''

5'-0''
7'-6''

1'-6''

7'-6''
5'-0''5'-0''

2'-11''1'-6'' 2'-11''

PARKING ENTRY

SIDING 7'' STONE VENEERSTUCCO STUCCO STUCCOSIDING 7'' METAL SIDINGSIDING 7''

9'-
1"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

9'-61/2''

13'-9''

5'-0''
7'-6''

1'-6''

7'-6''7'-6''
5'-0''5'-0''5'-0''

2'-11''1'-6''1'-6''2'-11'' 2'-11''

PARKING ENTRY

STONE VENEER METAL RAILINGSIDING 7'' STUCCO METAL ROD
SUSPENSION

SIDING 7'' STONE VENEERSTUCCO STUCCO STUCCOSIDING 7'' METAL SIDINGSIDING 7'' SIDING 7'' SIDING 7''

41' 27'-8 1/2" 27'-8 1/2" 15'-11 1/2" 127'-0 1/2" 16' 27'-8 1/2" 27'-8 1/2" 41'

478'-11"

A 421ELEVATIONS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2016 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

 0'  16'  32'  64'

(24"x36" SHEET)

NORTH ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION CONTINUED

CONTINUATION LINE

CONTINUATION LINECONTINUATION LINE

CONTINUATION LINE

NORTH ELEVATION  (scale: 116´´=1´)
73% ON BUILD-TO LINE

GLASS 35%
STONE 19%
STUCCO 30%
METAL 5%
SIDING 11%

ZONING:
VITRUVIAN PD
Town of Addison
project # 1734-Z

NOTES:
1. THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS

REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICED.
2. ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED BY

THE ZONING ORDINANCE.
3. WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED TO

MATCH THE BUILDING.
4. ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.
5. ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED

BY THE CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL.

KEY PLAN N.T.S.

N



1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
9'-

1"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

1'-
6 1

/2"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

7'-6''

1'-6''

7'-6''
5'-0''

2'-11''2'-11''

9'-61/2''
7'-6''

2'-11''

12'-2 1/2''

7'-6''

1'-6''

PARKING ENTRY

STONE CLADDINGSIDING 7'' METAL SIDING SIDING 7''METAL RAILING STONE CLADDINGSIDING 7'' METAL RAILINGSTONE CLADDINGSTUCCOSTUCCO

1'-
6 1

/2"
9'-

1"
9'-

1"
9'-

1"
1'-

6 1
/2"

1'-
6 1

/2"
1'-

6 1
/2"

9'-
1"

9'-
1"

2'-
0"

7'-6''

1'-6''

9'-61/2''

1'-6''
5'-0''

1'-6''

7'-6''
SIDING 7''STONE VENEERSTUCCO STUCCO STONE VENEER

CAVE

SIDING 7'' SIDING 7''

A 422ELEVATIONS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2016 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

 0'  16'  32'  64'

(24"x36" SHEET)

SOUTH ELEVATION
NOT SUBJECT TO BUILD-TO LINE

WEST ELEVATION
NOT SUBJECT TO BUILD-TO LINE

GLASS 24%
STONE 38%
STUCCO 22%
METAL 4%
SIDING 12%

GLASS 23%
STONE 15%
STUCCO 42%
METAL 10%
SIDING 10%

ZONING:
VITRUVIAN PD
Town of Addison
project # 1734-Z

NOTES:
1. THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES ONLY. ALL BUILDING PLANS

REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICED.
2. ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED BY

THE ZONING ORDINANCE.
3. WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED TO

MATCH THE BUILDING.
4. ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.
5. ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED

BY THE CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL.

KEY PLAN N.T.S.

N



LEASING

LEASING

DBL HEIGHT LOBBY
(OPEN TO ABOVE)

COFFEE
BAR

LOBBY

Treadmills w/ TV's

Multi-Press

Leg / Calf Press

    ClimbMill

      w/ TV

Total

Body Elliptical

    w/ TV's

M
A

X
 
R

A
C

K

 
 
w

/
 
B

e
n
c
h

Recumbent

Bike w/ TV

Rower

A
b
/
D

e
c
l
i
n
e

 
 
 
B

e
n
c
h

FITNESS / WEIGHTS
 AREA 1

TOTAL
FITNESS CENTER

2,756 SQ.FT.

ROCKING CHAIR PORCH
760 SQ. FT.

LOUNGE

STR 2

TV

KITCHEN

DINING

GYM ACCESS CORRIDOR
RESTROOMS SERVE BOTH FITNESS & CLUB

10' - 0"

20' - 0"

10' - 0"

Deco.
Screen

Deco.
Screen

LOCKERS

OFFICE 1

 OFFICE 2

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

ART
NICHE

HALF WALL/HALF GLASS

DECO WALL

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

9' - 0"

9' - 0"

9' - 0"

TV

UP

AV/ELEC.

SLIDING
DOORS

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

CONFERENCE ROOM

MEDIA CAB.

6,115 SQ. FT.
(INCLUDES RESTROOMS)

PACKAGE AREA
322 SQ.FT. 12345678101112 9

17
18
19
20
21

MIRRORED WALL

STORAGE & A/V
BELOW

UP

FITNESS / YOGA
 AREA 2

20' - 0"

1,272 SQ. FT.

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14
TRASH
UNDER
STAIR

DBL HEIGHT FITNESS
(OPEN TO ABOVE)

16
15
14
13

STOR.

740 SQ.FT.

A
b
/
D

e
c
l
i
n
e

 
 
 
B

e
n
c
h

171615

LARGE
PACKAGE
STORAGE

SHELVES

PRINTER

TV
ABOVE ON

BOTH SIDES

1 23

10

4

11
12
13

2120191817161514

7 
8
9

5
6

A 801CLUBHOUSE FIRST FLOOR PLAN

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

 0'  8'  16'  32'

(24"x36" SHEET)



DBL HEIGHT LOBBY
(OPEN TO BELOW)

WAITING
AREA

FITNESS / CARDIO LOFT
AREA 3

10' - 0"

10' - 0"10' - 0"

10' - 0"

10' - 0"

2,069 SQ.FT.

20' - 0"

5" BASE WALL / 36" GLASS WALL

SHUFFLE BOARD TABLE
12' X 20"

9' X 12'

STOR.
9' - 0"

Treadmills w/ TV's

eSpinners

30
" X

 60
"

STR 3

DN

MIRRORED WALL

20' - 0"

740 SQ.FT.

AV/ELEC.

DN

1 23

10

4

11
12
13

2120191817161514

7 
8
9

5
6

DBL HEIGHT CLUB
(OPEN TO BELOW)

678101112 9

17
18
19
20
21

16
15
14
13

BENCH

BENCH
30

" X
 60

"

SHELVES

30" X 60"

BALCONY

CUBBIES

9' - 0"

9' - 0"

9' - 0"
22

10' - 0"

METAL STRUCTURE FROM LEVEL ONE
FULL HEIGHT TO SECOND LEVEL

CABLE RAILING
ON BOTH SIDES

10' - 0"10' - 0"

CLO.

CABLE RAILING
ON BOTH SIDES

CABLE RAILING
ON BOTH SIDES

DBL HEIGHT CLUB
(OPEN TO BELOW)

20' - 0"

eSpinners

Recumbent

Bike w/ TV

A 802CLUBHOUSE SECOND FLOOR PLAN

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

 0'  8'  16'  32'

(24"x36" SHEET)



10
'-0

"
1'-

6 1
/2"

10
'-0

"

43
'-4

"

1'-
6 1

/2"

STONENICHIHA PANEL

STONE

31
'-7

 1/
2"

A 811CLUBHOUSE ELEVATIONS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

 0'  8'  16'  32'

(24"x36" SHEET)

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION



STONENICHIHA PANEL

10
'-0

"
1'-

6 1
/2"

34
'-5

 1/
2"

1'-
6 1

/2"

STONE NICHIHA PANEL

22
'-1

"

A 812CLUBHOUSE ELEVATIONS

The arrangements depicted herein
are the sole property of Humphreys
& Partners Architects, LP and may
not be reproduced in any form
without its written permission

HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS L.P.
5339 Alpha Road, Suite 300  Dallas, TX  75240  (972) 701-9636  (972) 701-9639

www.humphreys.com  marketing@humphreys.com
DALLAS  CHICAGO  NEW YORK  NEWPORT BEACH  NEW ORLEANS  ORLANDO  SAN RAMON  SCOTTSDALE

TORONTO  EDMONTON  MONTEVIDEO  DUBAI  HANOI
ADDISON, TX

UDR
VITRUVIAN WEST 1

© 2015 by HUMPHREYS & PARTNERS ARCHITECTS, LP
Architectural conceptual site plans are for feasibility purpose
only.  Revisions may occur due to further investigation from
regulatory authorities and building code analysis.  Dimensions
shown are of a strategic intent only.  Refer to surveys and civil
drawings for technical information and measurements.  Apr 11, 2016 HPA#13514

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

 0'  8'  16'  32'

(24"x36" SHEET)

SIDE ELEVATION 1

SIDE ELEVATION 2



1734-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I. Public hearing, discussion, and take 
action on a recommendation regarding a development plan for the development of 383 
multi-family units and an amenities center in an existing Planned Development District 
(PD O07-034) located on approximately 5.2 acres addressed at 3737 Vitruvian Way and 
3801 Vitruvian Way and approving waivers to unit size, construction materials, and 
building setback requirements. 

 

LOCATION MAP  

 



 

 

 

 

April 15, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

LOCATION: Approximately 5.2 acres of land located at 3737 
Vitruvian Way and 3801 Vitruvian Way 

REQUEST: Development Plan Approval in an existing Planned 
Development District (PD O07-034) with a waiver 
regarding limits to the number of building materials. 

 
APPLICANT:   UDR, represented by Mr. Michael Smith of 

Humphreys and Partners 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: On October 9, 2007, UDR obtained approval to rezone a 99-acre neighborhood. Six 
years later in 2013, the zoning for the project was expanded to include 4 additional tracts totaling 21.7 
acres. The planned development district zoning established development standards and a concept 
plan. It also established that prior to the issuance of a building permit for any project within the PD 
district, a development plan for the project must be approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and the City Council. 

This property held some of the oldest apartments that were part of the previous development. These 
were taken down at the outset of the project. The broader site at the northeast corner of Marsh Lane 
and Vitruvian Way will hold three multi-family apartment buildings with a centralized amenity center and 
pool, collectively known as Vitruvian West. 
 
Proposed Plan: Vitruvian West I will sit at the northeast corner of the site. The plan contemplates a five 
story multi-family apartment building with 383 units. The project is 100% residential and does not contain 
any retail or office space. The building itself is almost triangular in shape wrapping a parking garage 
with three interior courtyards. The units in this phase will have an average unit size of 811 square feet 
and will be at a slightly lower price point than the existing phases. The design of the building is intended 
to represent a modern Texas Hill Country esthetic. 
 
The amenities center and pool would also be constructed in conjunction with this building. The amenities 
building is 16,283 square feet and will house the leasing office, game room, and television room for this 
phase as well as a two story 6,115 square foot workout facility. 



2 
 

 

The project is bounded by Vitruvian Way to the southeast and along a new street that will be named 
Westgate Lane to the north. Construction is expected to start within 90 days and be completed in 18 
months. 
 
Staff Review: Development Plan approval differs from a typical zoning case. While zoning is a 
legislative decision with wide latitude given during the consideration process, development plan 
approval is a ministerial function more like plat approval. The purpose of the development plan 
approval process is to review the proposal in the context of the existing zoning requirements for the 
site. If the proposal meets the requirements, then it must be approved.  
 
The remainder of the staff report will address each section of the ordinance and how the proposed 
plan complies. This case is being taken forward in conjunction with various amendments to the 
governing ordinance detailed in case 1735-Z. During the meeting, the Commission will consider case 
1735-Z prior to hearing this case. For the sake of this analysis, staff will include the new requirements 
as if they were approved.  
 
Uses: The applicant is proposing 383 multi-family units.  The proposed uses meet the standards in 
the ordinance. 
 
Development Standards: Development standards regulate the setbacks, building heights, lot sizes, 
and square footages of certain uses. The development plan is in compliance with all development 
standards, except as noted below. 

 
Street Build-to Line: The development standards require that at least 70% of the building be at 
the build-to line along Vitruvian Way. The building is in compliance. Along Westgate Lane, a 
type B street, there is a build-to zone of between 6 and 9 feet. The building complies with the 
requirement. The proposal meets the building to line standard in the ordinance. 
 
Minimum area per dwelling unit. The development standards establish the following minimum 
unit size criteria: 

 Efficiency: 450 square feet 
 One-Bedroom: 600 square feet 
 Two-Bedroom: 850 square feet 
 Three-Bedroom: 1,000 square feet 

 
The development plans show 18 unit types ranging from efficiency up to three bedroom units. 
All comply with the minimum requirements, except for one of the one-bedroom floor plan, A1. 
This unit is 577 square feet, which is 23 square feet below the minimum. There are only 4 of this 
sized unit in the development. The proposal does not meet the minimum area per dwelling 
unit standard in the ordinance. Waiver requested. 

 
Open Space: Open space is required with residential uses and is calculated to require two acres for 
every 1,000 residents up to 2,250 and then 1.5 acres per 1,000 residents above 2,250. The code 
assumes 1.5 persons per unit. With the 383 additional units being proposed, the development will have 



3 
 

 

1,513 units with an assumed resident count of 2,269.5. This requires that 4.53 acres of open space be 
provided. The applicant has already dedicated 12 acres with Vitruvian Park. The proposal exceeds 
the standard for open space dedication at this phase. 
 
Parking: The ordinance requires that one space be provided per bedroom with a maximum of two 
spaces per unit. 

 
Number of units: 383 
Parking required: 521 (766 maximum) 
Parking provided: 599 

 
The proposal meets the parking requirements in the ordinance. 
 
Streets: The proposal anticipates the addition of a new Type B street as well as improvements to 
Vitruvian Way to add on-street parking. The proposal meets the standards for streets in the 
ordinance. 
 
Exterior Appearance:  The amenity center meets all requirements regarding exterior appearance. 
 
The multi-family building is required to have 80% masonry construction on all sides visible from a public 
street and a maximum of three building materials, excluding glass. The building is proposed to include 
four materials: stucco, stone, siding, and metal paneling. The glass, stucco, and stone count towards 
the masonry requirement. While all other elevations comply with the 80% standard, the northeastern 
elevation is at 76% masonry. The metal paneling is being used as an accent material at certain corners 
of the building. There is a main entry feature and architectural element that is especially prevalent in 
the northeastern elevation, which is causing the building to not comply at this corner. The proposal 
does not meet the exterior appearance requirements in the ordinance relating to the masonry 
requirement and the number of building materials. Waivers requested. 
 
Landscape: The landscaping regulations in the ordinance govern the street edge as well as private 
landscaping. The plan has been reviewed by the Parks Department and no issues were identified.  The 
proposal meets the standards for landscape in the ordinance. 
 
Sustainability: The zoning ordinance includes a variety of suggestions for a more environmentally 
conscious development. The applicant has indicated that the building will qualify for LEED certification 
and will incorporate many of the sustainable aspects noted in the ordinance. The proposal meets the 
standards for sustainability in the ordinance. 
 
Screening: The ordinance requires that mechanical equipment as well as loading, service, and trash 
storage areas be screened from view of all public roadways. Staff cannot determine whether screening 
is adequate at this time because equipment has not been designed and located. However, staff will 
check building permit plans to see that all mechanical equipment is screened. The proposal will 
comply prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 



4 
 

 

Flexible standards: The ordinance grants the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council the 
authority to approve waivers from the standards included in the ordinance. The applicant is requesting 
the following waivers 

 Minimum area per dwelling unit for 1 bedroom units 
 Masonry percentage requirement for northeastern elevation 
 Maximum number of building materials 

 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
Vitruvian West I represents the next phase of multi-family units in Vitruvian Park. These will be a slightly 
smaller unit size with a slightly lower price point. This reflects the goals established at the outset of 
Vitruvian Park to establish a variety of unit types and prices. The plan shows a quality and attractive 
building with an abundance of amenities, which is in keeping with the type of development the Town 
has seen in the previous three phases. 
 
Staff is supportive of the waivers requested. The waiver regarding the minimum area per dwelling unit 
only impacts 4 units and does not impact the livability of the unit.  The intent behind the masonry 
requirement is to ensure a certain construction quality. While not included in the definition of masonry, 
the metal paneling being proposed is actually of higher quality and cost than the masonry materials. 
This gives the building an attractive modern look and should age well. Because of this, staff is not 
concerned with the slightly low masonry percentage on the northeastern elevation or the number of 
building materials. 
 
Staff recommends approval subject to no conditions.  



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

Vitruvian Park is a desirable location. These units will be 
at a slightly lower price point, which will hit a broader mar-
ket segment than previous phases. 

  

 Safe 
Vitruvian Park continues to be a safe development. Staff 
is working with UDR to finalize a police store front to es-
tablish a permanent police presence in the area. 

  

 Functional The site plan is functional. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The design of the building is a modern Texas hill country 
esthetic. The site will be well landscaped and the parking 
garage will be mostly hidden. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The Vitruvian Park development is a high quality mixed 
use development with many amenities. 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

The building will be LEED certified and is part of a high 
density, mixed use development. This is an environmen-
tally responsible development pattern. 

  

 Walkable 
The site will be bounded by wide sidewalks with connec-
tions to other areas of the development. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

This project represents a continuation of the high 
quality development seen in previous phases by UDR 
and will serve Vitruvian Park and the Town well. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Vitruvian West I, 3801 Vitruvian Way 1734-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 
April 19, 2016 
  
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19, 
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance granting development plan 
approval for a development of 383 multi-family units and an amenities center in an 
existing Planned Development District (PD O07-036), subject to the following waivers of 
design standards: 
 

1. Minimum area per dwelling unit for 1 bedroom units may be 577 square feet, 
instead of 600 square feet 

2. Masonry percentage requirement for the northeastern elevation may be 76 
percent masonry, instead of 80 percent 

3. Maximum number of building materials may be four, instead of three 
 
Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:         none 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:        none 
On:         none 
Against:  none 
 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR 

APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A MULTI-FAMILY BUILDING AND 

AMENITIES CENTER IN A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT (016-

____) LOCATED ON 5.2 ACRES LOACTED AT 3737 VITRUVIAN WAY AND 3801 

VITRUVIAN WAY, ON APPLICATION FROM UNITED DOMINION REALTY, 

PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL OF A WAIVER TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; 

PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having 

full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 

its Home Rule Charter; and 

 

WHEREAS, the area generally known as Vitruvian Park was zoned PD, Planned 

Development, with development standards and a concept plan governing the entire property 

through Ordinance O07-034 and was amended through Ordinances O13-026 and O16-____; and   

 

WHEREAS, the PD requires development plan approval prior to the issuance of a building 

permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at the public hearing, and other 

relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 

 

Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct 

and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

Section 2. The property shall be improved in accordance with the development plans which are 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and made hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 3. The following waivers to development standards are hereby placed on the property. 

 

1. Minimum area per dwelling unit for 1 bedroom units may be 577 square feet, instead 

of 600 square feet 

2. Masonry percentage requirement for the northeastern elevation may be 76 percent 

masonry, instead of 80 percent 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

3. Maximum number of building materials may be four, instead of three. 

 

Section 4.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 

ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

Section 5.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and should any section, subsection, 

paragraph, sentence,  phrase or word of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be 

unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other 

parts or portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 

such remaining parts or portions of this Ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or 

invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 6.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and 

the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions 

of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 7.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and approval and 

after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 24th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

                                                             ______________________________ 

                                                             Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

  

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS 

 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

                                                                                                                                                                       



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

  



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1734-Z/Vitruvian West I 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 



   
AI-1614     Item #   21.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discussion And Consider Action On An Ordinance Approving
A Development Plan For The Redevelopment Of Approximately 86,310
Square Feet Of Retail Space Within The Brookhaven Village Shopping
Center Located On The South East Corner Of Spring Valley Road And Marsh
Lane, On Application From UDR . Case 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village Shopping
Center.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:

The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19,
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance granting development plan approval
for a development of a retail center of approximately 86,310 square feet or retail and
restaurant space in an existing Planned Development District (PD O07-036), subject to
the following waivers of design standard:
  

Number of building materials on Building B may be 6 materials, instead of 31.

Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:         none
  
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
 
For:        none
On:         none
Against:  none

Additional information regarding this item can be found in the attached staff report.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1727-Z Plans
1727-Z Staff Report



Ordinance



FUTURE R.O.W. 

17,500 S.F.

RET. / REST.

EXISTING GROCER

BANK

EXISTING

PAD

60,000 SF

BLDG A

BLDG B

173'-3"

LOT 1

LOT 2

STATION

GAS

EXISTING

CAR

EXISTING

WASH

1
7
2
'
-
5
"

PAD 2

1
6
2
'
-
1
1
"

PAD 3

PAD 1

01 SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
REST

AutoCAD SHX Text
4150 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REST

AutoCAD SHX Text
4000 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO & WALKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/08/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15-063

AutoCAD SHX Text
UDR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDISON, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VITRUVIAN PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS THEREOF, MAY NOT BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C  2013 GSO ARCHITECTS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5310 Harvest Hill Rd.  Suite 226

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dallas,  Texas  75230

AutoCAD SHX Text
972-385-9651

AutoCAD SHX Text
fax 972-385-3462

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSENT FROM GSO ARCHITECTS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY METHOD, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP27

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" =50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: HANDICAP PARKING IS PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA STANDARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: UDR  3875 PONTE AVENUE SUITE 400 ADDISON, TEXAS 75001 972 716 3560 ARCHITECT / APPLICANT: LISA SWIFT GSO ARCHITECTS 5310 HARVEST HILL ROAD SUITE 226 DALLAS, TEXAS 75230 972 385 9651

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES: 1. ANY REVISION TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS BETWEEN PLANS. 2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED, SHALL BE SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING ORDINANCE. 3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000 SF OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES. ALTERNATIVE FIRE PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE FIRE DEPARTMENT. 4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL. 5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'



















1727-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village. Public hearing, discussion, and 
take action on a recommendation regarding a development plan for the development of 
approximately 86,310 square feet of retail and restaurant space in an existing Planned 
Development District (PD O07-034) located on approximately 11.5 acres located 
generally at the southeast corner of Marsh Lane and Spring Valley Road and approving 
a wavier to construction material requirements. 

 

LOCATION MAP  

 



 

 

 

 

April 15, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

LOCATION: Approximately 11.5 acres of land located 
generally at the southeast corner of Marsh Lane 
and Spring Valley Road. 

REQUEST: Development Plan Approval in an existing 
Planned Development District (PD O07-034) with 
a waiver regarding limits to the number of 
construction materials. 

 
APPLICANT:  UDR, represented by Ms. Amy Sumners of GSO 

Architects  

DISCUSSION:  

Background: On October 9, 2007, UDR obtained approval to rezone a 99-acre neighborhood. Six 
years later in 2013, the zoning for the project was expanded to include 4 additional tracts totaling 21.7 
additional acres including the Tom Thumb-anchored Brookhaven Village shopping center, the Burger 
House site at 14248 Marsh Lane, and the KinderCare site at 3710 Spring Valley Road. The planned 
development district zoning established development standards and a concept plan. It also 
established that prior to the issuance of a building permit for any project within the PD district, a 
development plan for the project must be approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council.  

The shopping center, as it currently exists, sits on 17.893 acres and consists of 176,860 square feet 
of retail. UDR is coming forward with a development plan to reconstitute this as a smaller retail center 
around Tom Thumb. 
 
Proposed Plan: The proposed project requires the demolition of the KinderCare facility as well as two 
of the existing buildings in the northern half of the retail center. The plan is to create a new center with 
a total of 86,310 square feet of retail. This would include the existing 60,000 square foot Tom Thumb 
grocer, a new multi-tenant retail building of 17,500 square feet, and three pad sites for two drive-
through restaurants and one gasoline service station for Tom Thumb. Additional retail would be 
incorporated in future phases of the Vitruvian development. 
 
In addition, Tom Thumb would receive an exterior renovation that would tie it into the new look of the 
center. The site improvements also contemplate upgraded landscaping and pedestrian connections. 
There will be a clear pedestrian connection and entry feature extending from Marsh Lane to Tom 



2 
 

 

Thumb. Additionally, a pedestrian connection has been proposed between the two retail buildings that 
will promote walkability once the residential properties to the east are redeveloped. 
 
Staff Review: Development Plan approval differs from a typical zoning case. While zoning is a 
legislative decision with wide latitude given during the consideration process, development plan 
approval is a ministerial function more like plat approval. The purpose of the development plan 
approval process is to review the proposal in the context of the existing zoning requirements for the 
site. If the proposal meets the requirements, then it must be approved.  
 
The remainder of the staff report will address each section of the ordinance and how the proposed 
plan complies. This case is being taken forward in conjunction with various amendments to the 
governing ordinance detailed in case 1735-Z. During the meeting, the Commission will consider case 
1735-Z prior to hearing this case. For the sake of this analysis, staff will include the new requirements 
as if they were approved.  
 
Uses: Standalone retail is permitted in this section of the Vitruvian development. Grocery stores are a 
permitted use in the ordinance and any future tenant will need to comply with the permitted uses listed 
as well. Staff will determine this at the time a certificate of occupancy is requested. The amendments 
being taken forward in case 1735-Z add restaurants with drive-through service and gasoline service 
stations as permitted uses with approval of an SUP. This is to accommodate the uses shown on the 
three pad sites. The proposed uses meet the standards in the ordinance. 
 
Development Standards: Development standards regulate the setbacks, building heights, lot sizes, 
and square footages of certain uses. Retail and restaurant space is limited to 500,000 square feet 
throughout the entire Vitruvian Park development. Including the proposed improvements to the 
shopping center, the development will have approximately 107,000 square feet. The proposal meets 
the development standards in the ordinance. 
 
Open Space: Open Space is required with residential uses. Since this proposal is entirely retail, no 
additional open space is required. Not applicable. 
 
Parking: The development plan includes a total of 536 parking spaces. Assuming a mixture of retail 
and restaurant tenants, it is anticipated that 447 spaces will be required to meet the necessary 
parking ratios. This includes the proposed 1 space per 100 square foot ratio for restaurants being 
added to the PD ordinance in case 1735-Z. Exact compliance will be assessed and managed as 
certificates of occupancy are requested for future tenants. The proposal meets the parking 
requirements in the ordinance. 
 
Streets: There are no public streets in this area of the development and the center is exempted from 
the block length requirements. Not applicable. 
 
Exterior Appearance: The shopping center is exempted from the masonry requirements applied to 
the other parts of the development. The applicant is proposing to use a variety of materials including 



3 
 

 

glass, brick, stone, and concrete, with small amounts of EIFS, metal, and wood. This wood paneling, 
known as Prodema, is the same used on the exterior of Fiori and is a high quality, resilient material. 
 
The ordinance requires that at least 70% of the ground floor wall of retail uses be transparent glass. 
The proposed retail building has 79.6% glass fronting Spring Valley and 86.6% glass fronting Marsh.  
 
The ordinance stipulates that a building not use more than three materials, excluding glass. The 
applicant is requesting a waiver from this requirement and is proposing to use six on the multi-tenant 
retail building. Typically, a large number of building materials can cause a building to look disjointed. 
However, in a retail setting, there is a competing interest in distinguishing the various retail spaces. In 
this case, staff believes that the number of materials and the specific design of the multi-tenant 
building do not distract from the esthetic and actually help tie in the shopping center to the rest of the 
development. The proposal does not meet the exterior appearance requirements in the 
ordinance relating to the number of building materials. Waiver requested. 
 
Landscape: The shopping center is exempt from the landscaping requirement of the ordinance. That 
being said, the applicant has worked closely with staff to add landscaping in key areas. Additional tree 
islands and plantings are being proposed in the parking lot, at entry points to the center, and along 
pedestrian paths. Landscaping is proposed on the eastern edge of the property along the parking lot 
and behind the Tom Thumb building. This will provide screening and buffering to the current and 
future residential uses adjacent to the site. Not applicable. 
 
Sustainability: The shopping center is exempt from the sustainability requirements of the ordinance. 
Not applicable. 
 
Screening: The ordinance requires that mechanical equipment as well as loading, service, and trash 
storage areas be screened from view of all public roadways. Service and trash storage areas are in 
compliance. Staff cannot determine whether screening is adequate at this time because equipment 
has not been designed and located. However, staff will check building permit plans to see that all 
mechanical equipment is screened. The proposal meets the screening requirements in the 
ordinance or will comply prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 
Flexible standards: The ordinance grants the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council the 
authority to approve waivers from the standards included in the ordinance. The applicant is 
requesting a waiver to the number of building materials permitted in order to have six 
materials on Building B. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
The redevelopment of the Brookhaven Village Shopping Center represents an important step for 
Vitruvian Park. Maintaining a quality grocer is vital to a successful large scale mixed use 
development. Reconstituting the shopping center to accommodate the existing Tom Thumb while 
anticipating future integration into the rest of Vitruvian is a delicate task. It was important to staff that 
while the center needs to stand on its own for the time being, upon full buildout it should not seem 



4 
 

 

disintegrated or unconnected from the rest of the development. Steps were taken architecturally to tie 
the development esthetically into certain design elements of Vitruvian Park as well as through the 
pedestrian connection between the Tom Thumb building and building B that will eventually align with 
a street and sidewalk running to the east. While all retail requires a “backside,” this has been 
mitigated as much as possible through the proposed landscaping and additional architectural 
elements included on eastern façades.  
 
Staff is supportive of the waiver request regarding the number of building materials. Allowing the 
tenant spaces to be differentiated through a mixture of materials adds visual interest to the center. 
This is not unlike the retail fronting Belt Line in Village on the Parkway, which includes five materials. 
 
The three pad sites that are being shown as restaurants and a gasoline service station for Tom 
Thumb will be assessed in more detail during the Special Use Permitting process to determine both 
compliance and appropriateness. 
 
Staff recommends approval subject to no conditions.  



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

The existing configuration of the buildings is not condu-
cive to a competitive shopping center. The proposed 
changes will help reinvigorate the center. Fuel service will 
improve Tom Thumb’s ability to attract customers. 

  

 Safe 
Adding vibrancy to the development will increase custom-
er traffic and promote a safer environment.  

  

 Functional 
The reoriented retail will be more functional than it is now. 
The site has also been designed to integrate well with 
future phases of the redevelopment. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The proposed materials will add visual interest to the 
buildings. Additional landscaping will also help improve 
the visibility of the project. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

This will provide important new retail amenities to the ad-
jacent residential properties and will eventually be incor-
porated into the redevelopment. 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

Redeveloping the center  and creating a mixed use devel-
opment is an environmentally responsible development 
pattern. 

  

 Walkable The new plan improves walkability. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

This will be an important entry point to Vitruvian Park. 
The proposed plan updates and improves the design 
of this center and plans ahead for future integration 
with the broader development.  

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Brookhaven Village, Southeast corner Marsh and Spring Valley 1727-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1727-Z/Vitruvian West I 
April 19, 2016 
  
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19, 
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance granting development plan 
approval for a development of a retail center of approximately 86,310 square feet or 
retail and restaurant space in an existing Planned Development District (PD O07-036), 
subject to the following waivers of design standard: 
 

1. Number of building materials on Building B may be 6 materials, instead of 3 
 
Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:         none 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:        none 
On:         none 
Against:  none 
 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR 

APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RETAIL CENTER IN A PLANNED 

DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT (016-____) LOCATED ON 11.5 ACRES 

LOACTED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF MARSH LANE AND SPRING VALLEY 

ROAD, ON APPLICATION FROM UNITED DOMINION REALTY, PROVIDING FOR 

APPROVAL OF A WAIVER TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; PROVIDING A 

SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 

PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($2,000) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having 

full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 

its Home Rule Charter; and 

 

WHEREAS, the area generally known as Vitruvian Park was zoned PD, Planned 

Development, with development standards and a concept plan governing the entire property 

through Ordinance O07-034 and was amended through Ordinances O13-026 and O16-____; and   

 

WHEREAS, the PD requires development plan approval prior to the issuance of a building 

permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at the public hearing, and other 

relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 

 

Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct 

and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

Section 2. The property shall be improved in accordance with the development plans which are 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and made hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 3. The following waivers to development standards are hereby placed on the property. 

 

1. Number of building materials on Building B may be 6 materials, instead of 3. 

 
Section 4.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 

ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

Section 5.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and should any section, subsection, 

paragraph, sentence,  phrase or word of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be 

unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other 

parts or portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 

such remaining parts or portions of this Ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or 

invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 6.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and 

the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the provisions 

of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 7.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and approval and 

after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 24th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

                                                             ______________________________ 

                                                             Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

  

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 

 

 

 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1727-Z/Brookhaven Village 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 



   
AI-1617     Item #   22.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Action On An Ordinance Approving A
Development Plan For The Development The Addison Grove Project
Including A Site Plan, Landscape Plan And Building Elevations And Floor
Plans For 57 Townhomes In Accordance With The Planned Development
District (PD), Established By Ordinance No. O16-003 On Property Located At
4150 Belt Line Road, On Application From Fenway Development, Inc . Case
1729-Z/Addison Grove Block B

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19,
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance granting development plan approval
for the overall site plan and landscape plan as well as building elevations and floor plans
for 57 Townhomes in an existing Planned Development District (PD o16-003), subject to
the following condition: 

The fences shown on the site plan along Beltway Park be revised to provide
public access between the Townhomes.

Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer
Voting Nay:  Smith
Absent:         none
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
 
For:        none
On:         none
Against:  none

In January 2016, the City Council approved a Planned Development (PD) for this site
through Ordinance No. O16-003. The PD for that site requires the property owner to
request development plan approval prior to beginning construction. During the approval
process, the proposed development plans are compared to the concept plan and
development standards included in the PD. If the development plan conforms with PD
requirements, the Town is obligated to approve the request. Additional information
regarding this item can be found in the attached staff report.



RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1729-Z Conceptual Renderings
1729-Z Site and Landscape Plans 
1729-Z Block B Floor Plans and Building Elevations
1729-Z Staff Report
Ordinance













43

1

4

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

36

35

31

48

47

46

45

44

20

22

23

24

21

25

37

30

53

54

52
29

AA

DD

DD
DD

D
D

6

7

.
6

2

'

1

1

0

.
9

2

'

6
4
.7

4
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

EXT

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

EXT

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

3
0

9
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
6

8
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1799 SQ. FT.

1799 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1799 SQ. FT.

3
3

9
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

6
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

9
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
8

9
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

4
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

7
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

9
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
4

5
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3916 SQ. FT.

3978 SQ. FT.

3946 SQ. FT.

3946 SQ. FT.

3943 SQ. FT.

3
5

4
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
6

3
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
9

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
4

3
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
0

9
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

5
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

5
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

5
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

5
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3274 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

2438 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3154 SQ. FT.

3154 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3796 SQ. FT.

4
8

2
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
8

2
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3147 SQ. FT.

3135 SQ. FT.

3147 SQ. FT.

3066 SQ. FT.

4028 SQ. FT.

3147 SQ. FT.

3135 SQ. FT.

3147 SQ. FT.

3066 SQ. FT.

4028 SQ. FT.

3984 SQ. FT.

3984 SQ. FT.

4073 SQ. FT.

3563 SQ. FT.

3612 SQ. FT.3224 SQ. FT.3224 SQ. FT.4782 SQ. FT.

4
6

3
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
5

4
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
4

.
0

0
'

4
4

.
0

0
'

4
4

.
0

0
'

4
4

.
0

0
'

2
7

5
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

5
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

C

L

27.0' B-B

T
R

E
E

 
L
I
G

H
T

W
A

T
E

R

I
R

R
I
G

A
T

I
O

N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
L
I
G

H
T

S
T

O
R

M

W
A

T
E

R

13.5'13.5'

11.0' SIDEWALK 11.0' SIDEWALK

6.0'

C
L
 
T

R
E

E
 
L
I
G

H
T

I
R

R
I
G

A
T

I
O

N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
L
I
G

H
T

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L

I
N

E

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L

I
N

E

6.0'

B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G
 
L

I
N

E

5.0'

 SETBACK

PROPOSED PUBLIC STREET

6.0'

52.5' R.O.W.

SECTION C-C

3.5'

C

L

43.0' B-B

T
R

E
E

 
L
I
G

H
T

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

W
A

T
E

R

I
R

R
I
G

A
T

I
O

N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
L
I
G

H
T

S
T

O
R

M

W
A

T
E

R

7.0'

15.0'15.0'

12.0' 9.5' PARKING12.0'9.5' PARKING

11.0' SIDEWALK 11.0' SIDEWALK

7.0'

D
U

C
T

 
B

A
N

K

6.0'

G
A

S
 
M

A
I
N

C
L
 
T

R
E

E
 
L
I
G

H
T

I
R

R
I
G

A
T

I
O

N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
L
I
G

H
T

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
L
I
N

E

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

6.0'

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
L
I
N

E

5.0'

 SETBACK

5.0'

 SETBACK

PROPOSED PUBLIC STREET

WATER VALVES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED WITHIN PARKING SPACES

VALVES TO BE ACCESSIBLE AT ALL TIMES

8.0'6.0'

65.0' R.O.W.

6.5'
2.0'

SECTION A-A

PROPOSED PRIVATE DRIVE

24'

C

L

2%
2%

6.0'

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

6.0'

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

W
A

T
E

R

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

S
T

O
R

M
 
W

A
T

E
R

 

SECTION D-D

D
U

C
T

 
B

A
N

K

G
A

S
 
M

A
I
N

4.0'

4.0'

24.00' FIRE LANE ACCESS

AND UTILITY EASEMENT

5.0'

W.M.E.

5.0'

W.M.E.

SECTION B-B

C

L

S
T

O
R

M

W
A

T
E

R

12.0'12.0'

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G

14.0'

PROPOSED PRIVATE STREET

18.0' PARKING 18.0' PARKING

1.5' 0.5'

20.0'

R
.
O

.
W

.
 
L
I
N

E

R

1

0

.

0

0

'

R

1

5

.

0

0

'

R

1

0

.

0

0

'

R

1

5

.

0

0

'

R

1

0

.

0

0

'

R

1

5

.

0

0

'

2
4

.
0

0
'

9
.
5

0
'

9
.
5

0
'

22.50' 22.25'18.33'

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

18.35'

22.50' 22.50' 22.50' 22.25' 18.32'

22.25'

22.50'

5
.
0

0
'

6
.
0

0
'

5
.
0

0
'

6
.
0

0
'

ON-STREET PARKING

DETAIL (TYPICAL)

SCALE: 1" = 40'

SIDEWALK

SIDEWALK

1
8

.
0

0
'

1
8

.
0

0
'

2
4

.
0

0
'

9.00'

9.00'

1
5

.
5

0
'

R

2

.

5

0

'

R

2

.

5

0

'

1
5

.
5

0
'

HEAD-IN PARKING

DETAIL (TYPICAL)

SCALE: 1" = 40'

RETAIL

RETAIL

2246 total

COURTYARD B

COURTYARD A

COURTYARD C

16

58

10

11

12

19

18

17

15

33

32

26

27

28

49

42

41

61 62 63 64

70 71 72 79 80

88

87

85

97

96

60

13

14

34

51

50

82

57

81 8483

59

40

39

38

66 67 68 69 78

95

94

93

92

91

5655

73 74 75 76 77

65

90

89

86

98

AA

AA

AA

CC

A
A

A
A

DD

DD

DD

D
D

DD

B

3
1
.
1
7
'

2
6
.
1
7
'

2
5
.
8
3
'

2
4
.
0
0
'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.

)

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.

)

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.

)

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.

)

6
4
.
0
0
'

6
4
.
0
0
'

64.00'

64.00'

64.00'

64.00'

64.00'

64.00'

3
8
.
0
0
'

4
4
.
0
0
'

R

1

0

.

0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.

)

1799 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1799 SQ. FT.

3
5

5
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
5

9
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3724 SQ. FT.

2699 SQ. FT.

2623 SQ. FT.

2612 SQ. FT.

3
3

5
4

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

1
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

6
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

5
4

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

1
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

6
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3647 SQ. FT.

3166 SQ. FT.

3166 SQ. FT.

3166 SQ. FT.

4379 SQ. FT.

3
7

6
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
6

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
5

0
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1818 SQ. FT.

3450 SQ. FT.

4247 SQ. FT.

4
0

8
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
8

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

5
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
8

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
8

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

5
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
0

8
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3677 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

4750 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

2121 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

2438 SQ. FT.

2438 SQ. FT.

2683 SQ. FT.

2791 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2413 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

4
8

2
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
8

2
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2633 SQ. FT.

2608 SQ. FT.

2606 SQ. FT.

2797 SQ. FT.

8

41 49

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 9 10 11 12 13 14
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

36 37 3834 40 4342 44 45 46 47 48 50

16
3028

1815 17
29 32 3331

5351 5235 39

D

B

67.00' 135.67' 64.73' 154.77' 155.78' 56.29'

6
4
.
0
0
'

±328'

50.00'

3
8

7
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
0

9
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
0

9
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
4

4
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

5
4
.
0
0
'

PROJECT

SITE

VICINITY MAP

ADDISON GROVE

R
:
\
A

u
t
o
C

A
D

-
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
\
z
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
_
P

L
A

N
O

_
F

T
 
W

O
R

T
H

\
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
-
 
B

E
L
T

L
I
N

E
 
(
D

A
L
L
A

S
)
\
0
7
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
0
7
.
5
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
S

i
t
e
 
P

l
a
n
2
.
d
w

g
 
 
A

p
r
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
1
6
 
8
:
1
2
a
m

PROJ. NO.SCALE: 1" = 60'

DRAWN BY: JDS DATE SHEET

CHK'D BY: CDP

APPROVED: CDP

SITE PLAN

0' 60' 120'

SCALE: 1" = 60'

SAWYER

ENGINEERING, LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING & PLANNING

1520 OLIVER STREET, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
(713) 961-3877

TBPE FIRM: F-9171

1 OF 704/08/2016

ACTION

APPROVED              DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

DATE INITIALS

DATE INITIALS

SEE THE STAFF APPROVAL LETTER OR COUNCIL RESULT

MEMO FOR ANY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT.

NO FLOODPLAIN

EXISTS ON THE SITE

BELTLINE ROAD

(R.O.W VARIES)

B

E

L

T

W

A

Y

 
R

O

A

D

(

6

0

'
 
 
R

.
O

.
W

)

RUNYUN ROAD

(30' R.O.W)

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH

DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN

THE TOWN OF ADDISON

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE

WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS,

AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL

TOWN OF ADDISON

PARCEL 100053900A0010100

4090 BELTLINE RD

EQUINOX HOTEL ADDISON LLC

BELTLINE CENTER

BLOCK 1, LOT 24

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'HILTON GARDEN INN'

4080 BELTLINE RD

4080 BLR LTD.

BELTLINE CENTER

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'AZURE RESTAURANT'

4100 BELTLINE RD

NATIONAL RETAIL PROPERTIES

LTD.

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SAM'S CLUB ADDITION

'RAISING CANES'

FAST FOOD RESTAURANT

4180 BELTLINE RD

TRITON ADDISON

BELTLINE LLC.

SAM'S CLUB

BLOCK A, LOT 2

COMMERCIAL

IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SUITE A: SNUFFERS

RESTAURANT & BAR

SUITE B: TAQUERIA LA'

VENTANA

14941 MIDWAY

SPRING CREEK

BARBEQUE

SAM'S CLUB

ADDITION

BLOCK A, LOT 3

'SPRING CREEK

BARBEQUE'

RESTAURANT

4050 BELTLINE RD

WALMART STORES,

INC.

SAM'S CLUB

BLOCK A, LOT 1

COMMERCIAL

IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED

DEVELOPMENT

'TO BE DEDICATED

TO THE TOWN OF

ADDISON'

(1.2393 AC.)

14941 MIDWAY

PIEDMONT MIDWAY PS LP

ADDISON PLAZA COMMERCIAL -

VACANT PLATTED LOTS / TRACTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'NATE'S SEAFOOD AND

STEAKHOUSE' RESTAURANT

1-100

1. ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN

APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY

CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS

BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED SHALL BE

SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING

ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000

SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED

THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES.  ALTERNATIVE FIRE

PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN

ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING

INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1-53

M
I
D

W
A

Y
 
R

O
A

D

F.F.=628.0

F.F.=628.0

F.F.=617.0F.F.=617.0

F.F.=629.0

F.F.=631.0

F.F.=630.0

F.F.=629.0

F.F.=621.0

F.F.=616.0

F.F.=616.0

F.F.=617.0 F.F.=620.0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

6
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

5
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

3
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

3
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

5
.
0

F.F.=616.0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

6
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

6
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F.F.=616.0

F.F.=616.0

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

APARTMENT SITE

AREA: 11.9147 AC.

    519,005 SF.

DENSITY: 15 D.U./AC.

CONCEPTUAL

APARTMENT SITE

NOT INCLUDED

PROPOSED AUTOMATED

RESTRICTED ACCESS

AUTOMATED RESTRICTED ACCESS

CONTROLLER TYPE (TBD) WITH

KNOXBOX OR SIMILAR

WAX MYRTLE

SCREEN WALL

WAX MYRTLE

SCREEN WALL

WAX MYRTLE

SCREEN WALL

WAX MYRTLE

SCREEN WALL

PROPOSED

FENCE

ADDISON GROVE

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A LOTS 1-33, BLOCK B LOTS 1-57,

BLOCK C LOTS 1-34, BLOCK D LOTS 1-56

US SURVEYOR 5213

PREPARATION DATE:  4/08/2016

ADDISON, TEXAS

PROJECT NUMBER

PROPOSED

FENCE

PROPOSED

FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES (PUBLIC STREETS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC R.O.W. (SECTION B-B, C-C & D-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'X6' RCBC STM SWR DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE STREET CONCEPTUAL PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PRIVATE DRIVE-24.00' FIRE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT



6
1

6
616

6

1

6

614

6
1

6

3
8

7
5

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
0

9
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
0

9
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
4

4
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

5
4

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

1
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

6
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

5
4

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

1
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
8

6
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
7

6
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
6

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
5

0
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1818 SQ. FT.

3450 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

3373 SQ. FT.

4750 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

1768 SQ. FT.

2121 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

2438 SQ. FT.

2438 SQ. FT.

2683 SQ. FT.

3
1

.
1

7
'

2
6

.
1

7
'

67.00' 135.67'

64.00'

64.00'

64.00'

50.00'

88

87

5655

86

3P 3P

A

A

DD

D
D

DD

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

2
6

.
1

7
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

1

2

3

4

567

8

9

10 11 12

13

14

15

16

17

18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

64.00'

PROJECT

SITE

VICINITY MAP

R
:
\
A

u
t
o
C

A
D

-
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
\
z
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
_
P

L
A

N
O

_
F

T
 
W

O
R

T
H

\
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
-
 
B

E
L
T

L
I
N

E
 
(
D

A
L
L
A

S
)
\
0
7
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
0
7
.
5
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
s
 
-
 
B

l
o
c
k
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
A

p
r
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
1
6
 
8
:
1
4
a
m

0' 30' 60'

SCALE: 1" = 30'

NO FLOODPLAIN

EXISTS ON THE SITE

RUNYUN ROAD

(30' R.O.W)

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH

DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN

THE TOWN OF ADDISON

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE

WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS,

AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL

4080 BELTLINE RD

4080 BLR LTD.

BELTLINE CENTER

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'AZURE RESTAURANT'

4100 BELTLINE RD

NATIONAL RETAIL PROPERTIES LTD.

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SAM'S CLUB ADDITION

'RAISING CANES'

FAST FOOD RESTAURANT

F.F.=616.0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

6
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

6
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F.F.=616.0

F.F.=616.0

1-98

1-53

ADDISON GROVE

PROJ. NO.SCALE: 1" = 30'

DRAWN BY: JDS DATE SHEET

CHK'D BY: CDP

APPROVED: CDP

SITE PLAN AND

UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A

SAWYER

ENGINEERING, LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING & PLANNING

1520 OLIVER STREET, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
(713) 961-3877

TBPE FIRM: F-9171

2 OF 704/08/2016

ACTION

APPROVED              DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

DATE INITIALS

DATE INITIALS

SEE THE STAFF APPROVAL LETTER OR COUNCIL RESULT

MEMO FOR ANY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN

APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY

CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS

BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED SHALL BE

SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING

ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000

SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED

THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES.  ALTERNATIVE FIRE

PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN

ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING

INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

MATCH SHEET 4

M
A

T
C

H
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
7

LOCATION MAP

BLOCK A

BLOCK B
BLOCK C BLOCK D

BLOCK E

Ex. Right Turn Lane

ADDISON GROVE

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A LOTS 1-33, BLOCK B LOTS 1-57,

BLOCK C LOTS 1-34, BLOCK D LOTS 1-56

US SURVEYOR 5213

PREPARATION DATE:  4/08/2016

ADDISON, TEXAS

PROJECT NUMBER

3P
1P

2
0

.
0

0
'

2
5

.
0

0
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
609

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
609

AutoCAD SHX Text
608

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D25'00" E  171.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D25'00" E  175.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D01'18" E  230.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 54" Rcp Stm Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. San Swr MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MANHOLE AND INLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PRIVATE STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES (PUBLIC STREETS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC R.O.W. (SECTION B-B, C-C & D-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE STREET CONCEPTUAL PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PRIVATE DRIVE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.00' FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE OR 3-PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 20' Drainage Esmt

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Building Setback

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 35'X40' Utility Easement



6
1
6

6
1
6

6
1

6

616

6
1
6

6

1

6

6

1

8

3
0

9
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
6

8
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1799 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1799 SQ. FT.

1799 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1800 SQ. FT.

1799 SQ. FT.

3
3

9
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

6
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

9
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
3

1
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
8

9
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7

4
7

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

7
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

9
3

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
4

5
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

8
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
5

5
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
1

1
1

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
5

9
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3916 SQ. FT.

3978 SQ. FT.

3946 SQ. FT.

3946 SQ. FT.

3943 SQ. FT.

3724 SQ. FT.

2699 SQ. FT.

2623 SQ. FT.

2612 SQ. FT.

3
0

9
8

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4247 SQ. FT.

4
0

8
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
8

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

5
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
8

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
8

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

1
7

5
9

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
0

8
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3677 SQ. FT.

3
1

.
1

7
'

64.00'

43

58

48

47

46

45

44

42

41

57

40

39

38

3P

3P

A

A

DD

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

4
4

.
0

0
'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

2526

27

28

2930313233

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41 42 43 44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51
5253545556

57

64.00'

PROJECT

SITE

VICINITY MAP

R
:
\
A

u
t
o
C

A
D

-
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
\
z
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
_
P

L
A

N
O

_
F

T
 
W

O
R

T
H

\
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
-
 
B

E
L
T

L
I
N

E
 
(
D

A
L
L
A

S
)
\
0
7
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
0
7
.
5
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
s
 
-
 
B

l
o
c
k
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
A

p
r
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
1
6
 
8
:
1
4
a
m

0' 30' 60'

SCALE: 1" = 30'

NO FLOODPLAIN

EXISTS ON THE SITE

RUNYUN ROAD

(30' R.O.W)

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH

DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN

THE TOWN OF ADDISON

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE

WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS,

AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL

4090 BELTLINE RD

EQUINOX HOTEL ADDISON LLC

BELTLINE CENTER

BLOCK 1, LOT 24

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'HILTON GARDEN INN'

F.F.=628.0

F.F.=628.0

F.F.=617.0

F.F.=617.0

F.F.=616.0

F.F.=616.0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

6
.
0

ADDISON GROVE

PROJ. NO.SCALE: 1" = 30'

DRAWN BY: JDS DATE SHEET

CHK'D BY: CDP

APPROVED: CDP

SITE PLAN AND

UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK B

SAWYER

ENGINEERING, LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING & PLANNING

1520 OLIVER STREET, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
(713) 961-3877

TBPE FIRM: F-9171

3 OF 704/08/2016

ACTION

APPROVED              DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

DATE INITIALS

DATE INITIALS

SEE THE STAFF APPROVAL LETTER OR COUNCIL RESULT

MEMO FOR ANY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN

APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY

CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS

BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED SHALL BE

SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING

ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000

SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED

THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES.  ALTERNATIVE FIRE

PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN

ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING

INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

MATCH SHEET 3

M
A

T
C

H
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
5

LOCATION MAP

BLOCK A

BLOCK B
BLOCK C BLOCK D

BLOCK E

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

PROPOSED

FENCE

ADDISON GROVE

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A LOTS 1-33, BLOCK B LOTS 1-57,

BLOCK C LOTS 1-34, BLOCK D LOTS 1-56

US SURVEYOR 5213

PREPARATION DATE:  4/08/2016

ADDISON, TEXAS

PROJECT NUMBER

1-98

1-53

3P1P

PROPOSED

FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
627

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
624

AutoCAD SHX Text
625

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D01'18" E  441.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%D01'18" E  441.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L32

AutoCAD SHX Text
L33

AutoCAD SHX Text
L34

AutoCAD SHX Text
L35

AutoCAD SHX Text
L36

AutoCAD SHX Text
L38

AutoCAD SHX Text
L39

AutoCAD SHX Text
L31

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
L29

AutoCAD SHX Text
L30

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
L37

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L21

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d52'58" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L22

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d50'42" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L23

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d51'34" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L24

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%d13'34" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.78'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L25

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d50'28" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L26

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d03'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L27

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d11'29" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L28

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01%%d57'56" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L29

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88%%d51'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d03'17" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L32

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%d06'11" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L33

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d05'26" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L34

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d17'52" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L35

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d42'08" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L36

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01%%d12'33" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L37

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d42'08" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L38

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d12'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L39

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d32'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.05'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L31

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d59'14" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
90.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex.15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex.15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MANHOLE AND INLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PRIVATE STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES (PUBLIC STREETS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC R.O.W. (SECTION B-B, C-C & D-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE STREET CONCEPTUAL PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PRIVATE DRIVE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.00' FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE OR 3-PHASE



6
2
0

6
1
8

6
1
6

6

1

6

6

1

6

6

1

6

6

1

8

6

2

2

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

EXT

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

EXT

E
X

T

3
5
4
0
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
0
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
0
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
6
3
6
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7
5
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7
5
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7
5
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7
5
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
8
2
7
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
2
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
2
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
2
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
2
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
2
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
2
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

4
8
2
7
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3147 SQ. FT.

3135 SQ. FT.

3147 SQ. FT.

3066 SQ. FT.

4028 SQ. FT.

3147 SQ. FT.

3135 SQ. FT.

3147 SQ. FT.

3066 SQ. FT.

4028 SQ. FT.

3984 SQ. FT.

3984 SQ. FT.

4
6
3
6
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
0
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
2
8
0
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
5
4
0
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

26

27

28

31

49

61 62 63 6460

30

53

54

52

51

50

59

29

65

3P3P

3P 3P

A

A

A

DD
DD

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

6
4
.
0
0
'

6
4
.
0
0
'

4
4
.
0
0
'

4
4
.
0
0
'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

1 2 3

4 5

6 7 8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

1617

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2627

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

2
7
5
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
7
5
5
 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

PROJECT

SITE

VICINITY MAP

R
:
\
A

u
t
o
C

A
D

-
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
\
z
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
_
P

L
A

N
O

_
F

T
 
W

O
R

T
H

\
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
-
 
B

E
L
T

L
I
N

E
 
(
D

A
L
L
A

S
)
\
0
7
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
0
7
.
5
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
s
 
-
 
B

l
o
c
k
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
A

p
r
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
1
6
 
8
:
1
5
a
m

0' 30' 60'

SCALE: 1" = 30'

NO FLOODPLAIN

EXISTS ON THE SITE

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH

DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN

THE TOWN OF ADDISON

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE

WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS,

AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL

TOWN OF ADDISON

PARCEL 100053900A0010100

F.F.=629.0

F.F.=631.0

F.F.=617.0

F.F.=620.0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
1

7
.
0

ADDISON GROVE

PROJ. NO.SCALE: 1" = 30'

DRAWN BY: JDS DATE SHEET

CHK'D BY: CDP

APPROVED: CDP

SITE PLAN AND

UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK C

SAWYER

ENGINEERING, LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING & PLANNING

1520 OLIVER STREET, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
(713) 961-3877

TBPE FIRM: F-9171

4 OF 704/08/2016

ACTION

APPROVED              DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

DATE INITIALS

DATE INITIALS

SEE THE STAFF APPROVAL LETTER OR COUNCIL RESULT

MEMO FOR ANY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN

APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY

CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS

BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED SHALL BE

SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING

ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000

SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED

THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES.  ALTERNATIVE FIRE

PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN

ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING

INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

MATCH SHEET 7

M
A

T
C

H
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
4

M
A

T
C

H
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
6

LOCATION MAP

BLOCK A

BLOCK B
BLOCK C BLOCK D

BLOCK E

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

ADDISON GROVE

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A LOTS 1-33, BLOCK B LOTS 1-57,

BLOCK C LOTS 1-34, BLOCK D LOTS 1-56

US SURVEYOR 5213

PREPARATION DATE:  4/08/2016

ADDISON, TEXAS

PROJECT NUMBER

1-98

1-53

3P1P

PROPOSED

FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
628

AutoCAD SHX Text
629

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
631

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
624

AutoCAD SHX Text
624

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
631

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°53'32" W 102.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d18'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L14

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d29'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L15

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d49'51" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L16

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d21'47" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L17

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d01'17" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L18

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d58'07" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L19

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d43'23" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L20

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d23'00" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MANHOLE AND INLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PRIVATE STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES (PUBLIC STREETS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC R.O.W. (SECTION B-B, C-C & D-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE STREET CONCEPTUAL PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PRIVATE DRIVE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.00' FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE OR 3-PHASE



6

2

4

6

2

4

6

2

2

6

2

0

6

1

8

6
2
2

6

2

6

6

2

8

6

2

8

6

2

4

6

2

2

6

2

6

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

E
X

T

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3
4

0
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
9

2
6

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
3

3
0

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

2
4

3
2

 
S

Q
.
 
F

T
.

3274 SQ. FT.

3647 SQ. FT.

3166 SQ. FT.

3166 SQ. FT.

3166 SQ. FT.

4379 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

2791 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

2438 SQ. FT.

2439 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

2413 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

1746 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3154 SQ. FT.

3154 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3281 SQ. FT.

3796 SQ. FT.

2633 SQ. FT.

4073 SQ. FT.

3563 SQ. FT.

3612 SQ. FT. 3224 SQ. FT. 3224 SQ. FT. 4782 SQ. FT.

2608 SQ. FT.

2606 SQ. FT.

2797 SQ. FT.

6

7

.
6

2

'

1

1

0

.
9

2

'

6
4
.7

4
'

16

1

4

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

19

18

17

15

36

35

33

32

20

13

22

14

23

24

21

25
37

34

3P 3P

A

AA

DD

DD

D
D

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

6
4
.
0
0
'

64.00'

64.00'

6
4
.
0
0
'

4
4
.
0
0
'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9101112

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

54

53

52

51

50

49

48

47

46

45

44

43

42

41

40

39

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

34

36

35

33 37 38

31 32

30

29

PROJECT

SITE

VICINITY MAP

ADDISON GROVE

R
:
\
A

u
t
o
C

A
D

-
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
\
z
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
_
P

L
A

N
O

_
F

T
 
W

O
R

T
H

\
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
-
 
B

E
L
T

L
I
N

E
 
(
D

A
L
L
A

S
)
\
0
7
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
0
7
.
5
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
s
 
-
 
B

l
o
c
k
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
A

p
r
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
1
6
 
8
:
1
5
a
m

PROJ. NO.SCALE: 1" = 30'

DRAWN BY: JDS DATE SHEET

CHK'D BY: CDP

APPROVED: CDP

SITE PLAN AND

UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK D

0' 30' 60'

SCALE: 1" = 30'

SAWYER

ENGINEERING, LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING & PLANNING

1520 OLIVER STREET, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
(713) 961-3877

TBPE FIRM: F-9171

5 OF 704/08/2016

ACTION

APPROVED              DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

DATE INITIALS

DATE INITIALS

SEE THE STAFF APPROVAL LETTER OR COUNCIL RESULT

MEMO FOR ANY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN

APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY

CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS

BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED SHALL BE

SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING

ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000

SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED

THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES.  ALTERNATIVE FIRE

PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN

ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING

INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

NO FLOODPLAIN

EXISTS ON THE SITE

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH

DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN

THE TOWN OF ADDISON

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE

WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS,

AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL

TOWN OF ADDISON

PARCEL 100053900A0010100

B

E

L

T

W

A

Y

 
R

O

A

D

(

6

0

'
 
 
R

.
O

.
W

)

14941 MIDWAY

SPRING CREEK BARBEQUE

SAM'S CLUB ADDITION

BLOCK A, LOT 3

'SPRING CREEK BARBEQUE'

RESTAURANT

4050 BELTLINE RD

WALMART STORES, INC.

SAM'S CLUB

BLOCK A, LOT 1

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'TO BE DEDICATED TO THE

TOWN OF ADDISON'

(1.2393 AC.)

14941 MIDWAY

PIEDMONT MIDWAY PS LP

ADDISON PLAZA COMMERCIAL -

VACANT PLATTED LOTS / TRACTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

'NATE'S SEAFOOD AND

STEAKHOUSE' RESTAURANT

F.F.=630.0

F.F.=629.0

F.F.=621.0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

1
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

5
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

3
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

3
.
0

F
.
F

.
=

6
2

5
.
0

MATCH SHEET 7

M
A

T
C

H
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
5

LOCATION MAP

BLOCK A

BLOCK B
BLOCK C BLOCK D

BLOCK E

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

CONCEPTUAL

PUBLIC PARK

AREA

PROPOSED AUTOMATED

RESTRICTED ACCESS

AUTOMATED RESTRICTED ACCESS

CONTROLLER TYPE (TBD) WITH

KNOXBOX OR SIMILAR

ADDISON GROVE

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A LOTS 1-33, BLOCK B LOTS 1-57,

BLOCK C LOTS 1-34, BLOCK D LOTS 1-56

US SURVEYOR 5213

PREPARATION DATE:  4/08/2016

ADDISON, TEXAS

PROJECT NUMBER

1-98

1-53

3P
1P

PROPOSED

FENCE

PROPOSED

FENCE

PROPOSED

FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
631

AutoCAD SHX Text
628

AutoCAD SHX Text
629

AutoCAD SHX Text
630

AutoCAD SHX Text
627

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
625

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
623

AutoCAD SHX Text
624

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%D00'00" W  429.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" San Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 80%%d25'02" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 81%%d22'03" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 87%%d30'19" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d02'08" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d59'22" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d48'24" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d11'47" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d48'13" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d03'22" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%d56'38" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.19'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L11

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%d26'14" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L12

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%d41'44" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.76'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MANHOLE AND INLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PRIVATE STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES (PUBLIC STREETS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC R.O.W. (SECTION B-B, C-C & D-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE STREET CONCEPTUAL PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PRIVATE DRIVE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.00' FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE OR 3-PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUT AND PLUG EX. 8" WATERLINE AND ABANDON TO NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO APARTMENT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO APARTMENT SITE



RETAIL

RETAIL

2246 total

COURTYARD A

6

2

0

6

1

8

6

2

0

6

1

8

6

2

0

6

1

6

6

2

0

6

1

8

6

1

6

64.73' 154.77' 155.78' 56.29'

2
5
.
8
3
'

2
4

.
0

0
'

±328'

8

41 49

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 9 10 11 12 13 14
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

36 37 3834 40 4342 44 45 46 47 48 50

16
3028

1815 17
29

97

96

32 3331

5351 52

95

94

93

92

91

90

89

98

35 39

A

CC

B
B

R

1

0

.

0

0

'

(

T

Y

P

.

)

2
5
.
8
3
'

2
4

.
0

0
'

6
4

.
0

0
'

3
8

.
0

0
'

4
4

.
0

0
'

5
4

.
0

0
'

COURTYARD B COURTYARD C

70 71 72 79 80 858281 848366 67 68 69 7873 74 75 76 77

98

A

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

R

2

0

.

0

0

'

PROJECT

SITE

VICINITY MAP

R
:
\
A

u
t
o
C

A
D

-
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
\
z
 
D

A
L
L
A

S
_
P

L
A

N
O

_
F

T
 
W

O
R

T
H

\
A

D
D

I
S

O
N

 
-
 
B

E
L
T

L
I
N

E
 
(
D

A
L
L
A

S
)
\
0
7
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
\
0
7
.
5
 
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
D

e
s
i
g
n
\
P

r
e
l
i
m

i
n
a
r
y
 
P

l
a
n
s
 
-
 
B

l
o
c
k
s
.
d
w

g
 
 
A

p
r
 
0
8
,
 
2
0
1
6
 
8
:
1
6
a
m

0' 30' 60'

SCALE: 1" = 30'

NO FLOODPLAIN

EXISTS ON THE SITE

BELTLINE ROAD

(R.O.W VARIES)

THIS PLAN CONFORMS WITH

DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDED IN

THE TOWN OF ADDISON

TRANSPORTATION PLAN, WATER

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS, WASTE

WATER SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS,

AND DRAINAGE CRITERIA MANUAL

4180 BELTLINE RD

TRITON ADDISON BELTLINE LLC.

SAM'S CLUB

BLOCK A, LOT 2

COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SUITE A: SNUFFERS RESTAURANT

& BAR

SUITE B: TAQUERIA LA' VENTANA

M
I
D

W
A

Y
 
R

O
A

D

1. ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN

APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY

CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS

BETWEEN PLANS.

2. OPEN STORAGE, WHERE PERMITTED SHALL BE

SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ZONING

ORDINANCE.

3. BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000

SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE

AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED

THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES.  ALTERNATIVE FIRE

PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE

FIRE DEPARTMENT.

4. ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL.

5. ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN

ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING

INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL.

TOWN OF ADDISON SITE PLAN NOTES:

ADDISON GROVE

PROJ. NO.SCALE: 1" = 30'

DRAWN BY: JDS DATE SHEET

CHK'D BY: CDP

APPROVED: CDP

SITE PLAN AND

UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK E

SAWYER

ENGINEERING, LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING & PLANNING

1520 OLIVER STREET, HOUSTON, TEXAS 77007
(713) 961-3877

TBPE FIRM: F-9171

6 OF 704/08/2016

ACTION

APPROVED              DENIED

STAFF

COUNCIL

DATE INITIALS

DATE INITIALS

SEE THE STAFF APPROVAL LETTER OR COUNCIL RESULT

MEMO FOR ANY CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT.

MATCH SHEET 6

M
A

T
C

H
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
3

LOCATION MAP

BLOCK A

BLOCK B
BLOCK C BLOCK D

BLOCK E

CONCEPTUAL

APARTMENT SITE

Ex. Right Turn Lane

ADDISON GROVE

PRELIMINARY UTILITY PLAN

BLOCK A LOTS 1-33, BLOCK B LOTS 1-57,

BLOCK C LOTS 1-34, BLOCK D LOTS 1-56

US SURVEYOR 5213

PREPARATION DATE:  4/08/2016

ADDISON, TEXAS

PROJECT NUMBER

1-98

1-53

3P
1P

2
5

.
0

0
'

PROPOSED 25' DETENTION EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED TO THE TOWN

1
0

.
0

0
'

PROPOSED 10' ST.S.E. TO BE

DEDICATED TO THE TOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PWP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6)O/HE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUIDLING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
612

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
613

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
614

AutoCAD SHX Text
615

AutoCAD SHX Text
616

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
620

AutoCAD SHX Text
619

AutoCAD SHX Text
618

AutoCAD SHX Text
617

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D25'00" E  202.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89%%D25'00" E  312.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 00%%D01'18" W  352.96'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L65.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R317.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
=11%%d45'03"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C LEN64.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRGAZ 103%%D56'48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L40

AutoCAD SHX Text
621

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
622

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89%%D57'48" E  4.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
42" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 24" Rcp Stm Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 48" Rcp Stm Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. Stm Swr MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. San Swr MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. San Swr MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" San Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT PROP SAN SWR MH ON EX. 8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. DETENTION 710 LF~6'X6' RCBC STM SWR (STORAGE 25,560 CF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" San Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" San Swr

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
42" RCP STM SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SAN SWR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 8" Waterline

AutoCAD SHX Text
L40

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d33'47" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ex. 15' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER AND CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATERLINE WITH GATE VALVE AND BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MANHOLE AND INLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PRIVATE STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TREE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 10' W.L.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING SPACES (PUBLIC STREETS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC R.O.W. (SECTION B-B, C-C & D-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE STREET CONCEPTUAL PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 2 ADA ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 1 ADA VAN PARKING SPACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PRIVATE DRIVE-

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.00' FIRE LANE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE OR 3-PHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOT BARRIER TO BE INSTALLED ON ALL SIDES FOR PROPOSED TREES (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO APARTMENT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO APARTMENT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO APARTMENT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO RETAIL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SAN SWR LEAD TO RETAIL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DOMESTIC WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" FIRE LINE





























































L6
矩形



L6
矩形



L6
矩形



L6
矩形



L6
矩形



L6
矩形



L6
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



L4
矩形



1729-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1729-Z/Addison Grove. Public hearing, discussion, and take 
action on a recommendation regarding a development plan for the development of the 
Addison Grove project including a site plan, landscape plan and building elevations and 
floor plans for 57 Townhomes in an existing Planned Development District (PD O16-003) 
located on approximately 17.4 acres addressed at 4150 Belt Line Road. 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 

 

 

April 15, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

LOCATION:  Approximately 17.4 acres of land located at 4150 
Belt Line Road 

REQUEST: Development Plan Approval in accordance with 
development standards for Planned Development 
O16-003. 

 
APPLICANT:   Fenway Development, Inc., represented by Mr. 

Frank Liu 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: The property located at 4150 Belt Line Road consists of two lots totaling approximately 
17.4 acres. This property was zoned as a Planned Development in 1991 through ordinance O91-066 
to accommodate the development of a Sam’s Wholesale Club, which was constructed the following 
year. In anticipation of Sam’s departure last year, a special area study was conducted, which resulted 
in the adoption of a new Planned Development in January of 2016. This new Planned Development 
established standards for a new primarily residential, mixed use development with townhomes, 
live/work units, multifamily, and retail. 

Since the zoning was approved in January, Fenway Development finalized the purchase of the 
property from Walmart and has continued to work with staff to draft the detailed plans required for 
development plan approval and, ultimately, construction on the site. The applicant is now bringing 
these plans forward for approval. This will allow them to start infrastructure installation across the site 
as well as construction on the first block of townhomes. As the project progresses, the following will all 
come forward at future dates: building elevations and floor plans for the remaining townhome blocks, 
detailed plans for the open space improvements, and the development details for the multi-family site. 

Proposed Plan: The development plans include the site plan and landscape plan for the entire property 
as well as representative building elevations and floor plans for the 57 townhome units in Block B on 
the site. Although not every elevation is shown, all will have similar designs. The site plan and landscape 
plan are in keeping with the concept plan approved as part of the zoning ordinance.  The townhomes 
in Block B are mostly three stories with a few four story units and have a traditional appearance with 
primarily brick and stone façades. Units range in size from two bedroom units of 1,759 square feet up 
to four bedroom units of 4,247 square feet. 



2 
 

 

 
Staff Review: Development Plan approval differs from a typical zoning case. While zoning is a legislative 
decision with wide latitude given during the consideration process, development plan approval is a 
ministerial function more like plat approval. The purpose of the development plan approval process is 
to review the proposal in the context of the existing zoning requirements for the site. If the proposal 
meets the requirements, then it must be approved. 
 
Uses: The applicant is proposing 57 townhomes in Block B.  The proposed use meet the standards 
in the ordinance. 
 
Development Standards: Development standards regulate the setbacks, building heights, lot sizes, 
and square footages of certain uses. The development plan is in compliance with all development 
standards as detailed below. 

 
Street Build-to Line: The development standards require that at least 70% of the building be at 
the build-to line along Type A streets allowing for a five foot front yard. This has been met. 
 
Other setbacks: There are no minimum side yard or rear yard requirements. There is a perimeter 
setback of 10 feet, which has been met. 
 
Building height: The ordinance requires a minimum building height of two stories and a maximum 
height of 60 feet for the townhome units. The townhomes range from three to four stories with 
the tallest unit measuring 57 feet in height. 
 
Minimum area per dwelling unit: The development standards require that townhomes be at least 
1,350 square feet. The 57 townhomes proposed in Block B all exceed this requirement. 

 
Maximum Lot Coverage: The development standards require a maximum lot coverage of 95%, 
meaning that at least five percent of each lot must be landscaped. All lots in the development 
comply. 
 
Landmark Buildings: The development standards require that buildings at the corners or end of 
streets must be landmark buildings with unique features. Two of the units in Block B are 
designated as landmark buildings. The representative elevations provided include one of the 
landmark buildings, and it complies with the requirements through unique articulation and design 
elements. Staff will review construction documents to make sure that the second building also 
complies. 
 
The proposed plans comply with all development standards in the ordinance.  
 

Open Space: Open space is required with residential uses and is calculated to require two acres for 
every 1,000 residents up to 2,250 and then 1.5 acres per 1,000 residents above 2,250. The code 
assumes 1.5 persons per unit. When applied to the entire project, 1.52 acres are required. The 
development plans indicate the intent to dedicate 1.5606 acres as public open space. Details regarding 



3 
 

 

the open space improvements will need to be approved by the planning and zoning commission and 
city council at a future date. The proposed plans comply with the open space standards in the 
ordinance. 
 
Parking: The ordinance requires that two spaces be provided for each townhome and may be provided 
through tandem parking. Each unit has a minimum of two parking spaces in their garage. The proposal 
meets the parking requirements in the ordinance. 
 
Exterior Appearance:  The ordinance requires that every façade of the townhomes must have a 
minimum of 80% masonry construction with a maximum of three materials. The representative building 
elevations show masonry counts above 90% for most of the building. The alley façade for building 10 
has the lowest masonry percentage at 82.5%. The elevations show a mixture of brick, stone and minimal 
amounts of siding. Building elevations for the remaining units will be reviewed by staff to ensure that 
they are in keeping with the representative elevations shown and the ordinance requirements. The 
proposal meets the exterior appearance in the ordinance, further compliance will be assessed 
prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 
Landscape: The landscaping regulations in the ordinance govern the street edge as well as private 
landscaping. The plan has been reviewed by the Parks Department and no issues were identified.  The 
proposal meets the standards for landscape in the ordinance. 
 
Screening of Mechanical Equipment: The ordinance requires that mechanical equipment as well as 
loading, service, and trash storage areas be screened from view of all public roadways. Mechanical 
equipment will be located on either the roof or third floor patio of the townhome units and will not be 
visible from the street.  There are no loading or service areas associated with the residential units. The 
proposal meets the screening requirements in the ordinance. 
 
General Requirements: When the zoning was approved, several conditions were added and became 
part of the regulations for the development. They are as follows: 
 

 A short, wrought iron or decorative fence or wall shall be installed to delineate the front yards of 
the townhomes facing Beltway from the public green space/park. 

 
This has been included in the development plans. The site plan shows that all units 
fronting Beltway will have a four foot wrought iron fence between their private front yard 
and the green space, as well as a sidewalk. 

 
 The proposed street shown on the east side of the development shall be constructed with 

retractable bollards at Beltway to provide for public safety access only. 
 
Staff and the developer are continuing to assess options for retractable bollards, but 
these are shown on the site plan and will be included when the street is constructed. 
 



4 
 

 

 The proposed street shown on the east side shall also be constructed with speed/traffic calming 
devices. 
 

The eastern street will include a stop sign at the T intersection with the extension of 
Runyon Road. This will also serve as the traffic calming device. 

 
 Courtyards shown on the Concept Plan will be designed and constructed with enhanced 

architectural and landscaping features, including such elements as water features, landscaping, 
and art features. 
 

The landscape plan for the site indicates that the private courtyards in Blocks A, C, and 
D will include fountains, pergolas, and landscaping. 

 
The proposal complies with all general requirements in the ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
This development plan approval marks the beginning of the construction phase of the Addison Grove 
project.  The site plan and landscape plan approval will allow the developer to begin installation of the 
infrastructure systems needed to accommodate the development. Additionally, the approval of the 
representative building elevations and floor plans for the 57 townhome units in Block B will enable 
construction work to begin on those units. Staff has reviewed the development plans and found them 
to be in compliance with all requirements of the approved zoning ordinance. Staff will continue to review 
construction documents to ensure compliance prior to the issuance of any building permits. Staff 
recommends approval subject to no conditions. 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

The development includes a variety of uses, which should 
be very attractive to future residents and tenants.  

  

 Safe 
The concept plan and development standards have been 
crafted to promote a safe, walkable environment. 

  

 Functional 
The various components of the plan should function well 
together and integrate into the area without negatively 
impacting the surrounding properties. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The development will be required to build to a high visual 
standard. The parks and street trees will make the devel-
opment visually appealing. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The mix of uses within the development will provide 
amenities for the residents. Additionally, the adjacent 
properties will provide easy access to additional ameni-
ties . 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

This will be a compact, pedestrian oriented mixed use 
development. This is an environmentally responsible de-
velopment pattern.  

  

 Walkable 
The development is walkable and will improve pedestrian 
connections along Beltway. The sidewalks along Belt Line 
will be improved to better accommodate pedestrians. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

The proposed townhomes will be a high quality prod-
uct and will serve as an important first step in this 
redevelopment project. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Addison Grove, 4150 Belt Line Road 1729-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1729-Z/Addison Grove 
April 19, 2016 
  
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on April 19, 
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance granting development plan 
approval for the overall site plan and landscape plan as well as building elevations and 
floor plans for 57 Townhomes in an existing Planned Development District (PD o16-
003), subject to the following condition: 
 

 The fences shown on the site plan along Beltway Park be revised to provide 
public access between the Townhomes. 

 
Voting Aye:  Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer 
Voting Nay:  Smith 
Absent:         none 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:        none 
On:         none 
Against:  none 
 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR 

APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A TOWNHOME DEVELOPMENT IN 

A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT (016-003) LOCATED ON 17.4 

ACRES LOACTED 4150 BELT LINE ROAD, PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL OF A 

WAIVER TO DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE 

NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH 

OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having 

full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 

its Home Rule Charter; and 

 

WHEREAS, the area generally known as Addison Grove was zoned PD, Planned 

Development, with development standards and a concept plan governing the entire property 

through Ordinance O16-003; and   

 

WHEREAS, the PD requires development plan approval prior to the issuance of a building 

permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at the public hearing, and other 

relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 

 

 Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2. The property shall be improved in accordance with the development plans which 

are attached hereto as Exhibit A and made hereof for all purposes, subject to the following 

condition: 

  

A. The fences shown on the site plan along the Beltway greenspace be revised to provide 

public access between the Townhomes. 

 
 Section 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 

of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

 Section 4.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and should any section, 

subsection, paragraph, sentence,  phrase or word of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any 

person, firm, corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be 

unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other 

parts or portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 

such remaining parts or portions of this Ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or 

invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 24th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

                                                             ______________________________ 

                                                             Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1729-Z/Addison Grove 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

  

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHIBIT A: DEVELOPMENT PLANS



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 



Case No. 1729-Z/Addison Grove 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 



   
AI-1628     Item #   23.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/24/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Presentation And Discuss The Belt Line Utility Relocation Update.

BACKGROUND:
Staff will present a history and update of the Belt Line Road Underground Electrical
Project.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
Presentation



Belt Line Utility Relocation Update

May 24, 2016

1



Belt Line – Project History

• 2000: Addison voters approved $11million bond proposal

– Proposition 3: “Belt Line Road Utility Relocation and 
Streetscape Improvements and Levy of a Tax in Payment 
Thereof”

• 2001-2003: Various studies and citizen “visioning” efforts

• June 2004: Belt Line Road Re-visioning and Re-
invigoration Concepts – intersection and district 
enhancements 

• February 2005: Addison 2030 Vision Project – “redesign 
Belt Line Road” “use all available funding opportunities 
to begin Belt Line redevelopment”

• May 2007: Next Great Ideas: “Endorse Belt Line Re-
development vision”

2



Belt Line History - continued

• April 2009: Citizen Advisory Committee: “Pursue 
redevelopment of Belt Line Road including 
pedestrian/bus shelters/pedestrian bridges
– Included lighting & intersection enhancements, pavement 

treatments, pedestrian-oriented design

• 2010: In conjunction with Vitruvian, Spring Valley street 
improvements: road widening, landscape design, electric 
utility relocation
– Spurred renewed interest in undergrounding utilities on Belt Line 

Road

• Belt Line undergrounding project continued to rank high 
in citizen bond proposal survey and by bond committee
– Bond committee ranked relocation of utilities as one of the top priorities 

(January 2012 report to Council) 

3



Belt Line History - continued

• 2012 – Proposed $55m bond program that included Belt Line 
undergrounding project. Funds to be combined with remaining 
2000 bond proceeds

• $10m bond proposition - amount based on utility relocation 
estimates from Spring Valley (2010) and Oncor information 
only – no engineering had been done

• May 12, 2012: Bond election language

– Proposition 2:“…issue general obligation bonds…in the…amount of 
$10,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds for permanent public 
improvements, to-wit: relocating utilities currently located in or 
adjacent to the Belt Line Road right-of-way and acquiring, 
constructing, and developing Belt Line Road roadway and 
streetscape improvements and the acquisition of land therefor;…”

– Proposition approved – 728 to 212

4



Belt Line Project Design Overview

• Undergrounding of aerial utilities – electrical and telecom 
relocation and related work

• To be done in two Phases – Marsh to Midway; Midway to 
Tollway

• 2000 and 2012 bonds – approximately $20 million

• Original plan was to place lines in public right-of-way on north 
and south sides of Belt Line Road

• Also included: ADA compliance, signal upgrades, mid-block 
crossing, ROW acquisition, restoration of median and right-
of-way

• Landscaping and bus shelter enhancements to be done in 
future phase



Project Design Development 

• Subsurface Utility Exploration (SUE) showed more 

congestion in north and south rights-of-way than 

anticipated

• Additional property would need to be acquired at 

expense of parking for businesses

• Necessitated use of median and left-hand turn lanes in 

Belt Line – increased traffic control costs, night work, 

and safety considerations

• Increased number and length of service duct banks and 

lateral lines

• Traffic signal relocations, added mid-block crossing for 

connectivity project



Belt Line Project Current Scope Details

• Undergrounding utilities: Oncor, AT&T, Time Warner Cable, 

Fiberlight

• Three concrete ducts, service lines, laterals w/ multiple 

conduits, switch gears, utility pads, manholes 

• R.O.W. acquisition for easements and sight visibility corners

• ADA compliance 

• Sidewalk widening to enhance safety

• Traffic signal upgrades; new mid-block crossing signal

• Minor water and storm water infrastructure improvements

• Restoration: pavement, parking lots, driveways, landscaping

• Asphalt overlay, restriping

• Engineering design, survey, materials testing, project 

management, inspection 



Belt Line Project Timeline

• February 13, 2013: Design kick-off meeting

• December 12, 2013: Phase 1 Design 100% 

Complete

• February 7, 2014: First request for bids posted

• March 4, 2014: One bid received; bid rejected; 

rebid process initiated

• March 28, 2014: Bid request reissued

• April 17, 2014: Three bids received

• April 22, 2014: John Burns Construction lowest 

responsive bidder



Belt Line Project Timeline (cont.)

• May 13, 2014: Council authorized contract with John 
Burns and Alliance Geotech Group

• May 27, 2014 and June 10, 2014 – Council briefings 
related to cost of project and debt service related to 
possible future bond programs

• June 24, 2014: Award of bids rescinded pending public 
meetings

• August 4, 2014: Public meeting to solicit input

• August 12, 2014:  Council re-awarded contracts

• Notice to Proceed – October 21, 2014

• Start date – October 31, 2014

• Civil construction completion date – November 27, 2016

9



Budgeted Spent to Date*

• Civil Construction $ 8,820,802 $  4,680,335.07

• Contingency $    585,332 $     338,318.53

• Land Acquisition $    930,000 $     930,000.00

• Oncor Reimbursement $ 4,600,000 $                0.00

• Telecom Reimbursement $    400,000 $                0.00

• Engineering $ 2,388,742 $   2,146,311.23

• Project Management Design (Phases I & II) $    238,874 $      287,087.67

• Construction Inspection, Admin, & PM $    550,418 $      343,338.90

• Appraisal fee $    113,000 $      113,000.00

• Geotech & Materials Testing $ 91,000 $        41,279.39

• Direct Costs (Printing, Adv., Etc.) $ 71,000 $        16,000.00

Phase I Total $18,789,168 $   8,895,670.79

Remaining Budget $  9,893,498

*As of May 13, 2016

Phase I Expenditures To Date*

10



Phase I and Overlay Total 

Estimated Cost

Phase I (Marsh to Midway) $18,789,168

Overlay (estimated) $  2,023,000*

Project Total $20,812,168

*2014 dollars estimated cost

11



Project Progress

• All parcels have been acquired

• All median duct bank work is complete

• Work in north and south rights-of-way in 
progress - 65% complete

• Oncor will begin pulling cable in June

• Right-of-way and median restoration 
beginning week of May 30th

• Water valves and manhole work will begin in 
late summer

12



Next Steps

• Restoration of median and landscaping areas

• Complete cable pulls

• Removal of lines from poles

• Remove poles

• Bid overlay project and award bid – spring 
2017

• Begin overlay of Belt Line from Marsh to 
Tollway – early summer; estimate 10-12 
months to complete; spring 2018

13


	Agenda
	_Executive Session 
	_Executive Session Reconvene
	_Presentation And Discussion Of A Public Art Policy 
	Att1_Accession Record
	Att2_Proposed Policy
	_Proclamation
	_Proclamation
	_Minutes
	Att1_Minutes
	_Consider a Resolution Adopting A Public Art Policy
	Att1_Resolution
	_Kellway Lift Station Assessment and Master Plan
	Att1_Resolution and Professional Engineer Services Agreement
	_Bid 1603-001 for Landscape Maintenance Addison Circle District and Addison Circle Park 
	Att1_Bid Summary _1603-001
	Att2_Contract
	_Belt Line Road Underground Electrical Project - Change Order _6
	Att1_Change Order Doc
	Att2_Map
	_Kleinfelder Design_Construction Services for Surveyor Ground Storage Tank
	Att1_Resolution and Professional Engineer Services Agreement
	_Theatre Main Space Naming
	Att1_Application
	Att2_Theatre Naming Rights Policy
	Att3_Resolution
	_Discuss and Consider Termination of Weekly Mayor's Newsletter
	Att1_Town of Addison Mayor's Newsletter Request to TEC
	Letter p. 1-11.pdf
	Letter p. 12.pdf
	03.01.16 Town of Addison Request for Informal Opinion (w_attach).pdf

	Att2_Response to Notice of Ethics Complaints
	_Legal reimbursement
	Att1_Response to Notice of Ethics Complaints
	Att2_Town of Addison TEC Opinion Request
	Letter p. 1-11.pdf
	Letter p. 12.pdf
	03.01.16 Town of Addison Request for Informal Opinion (w_attach).pdf

	Att3_Complaint-Duffy
	Att4_Complaint-Oliver
	_Presentation and Discussion Of Possible Locations For Installing The _Lost In Wisconsin_ Public Art Piece
	Att1_Map
	Att2_Picture of Entry
	Att3_Resolution
	_Standards of Care for Youth Recreation Programs
	Att1_Ordinance
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1736-SUP_Gyu KaKu
	Att1_1736-SUP Plans
	GYU A_A001_SITE PLAN

	Att2_1736-SUP Staff Report
	1736-SUP Map
	1736-SUP Staff Report
	1736-SUP Land Use Analysis
	1736-SUP Commission Findings

	Att3_Ordinance
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1735-Z_UDR
	Att1_1735-Z Concept Plan
	Att2_1735-Z Staff Report
	1735-Z Map
	1735-Z Staff Report
	1735-Z Land Use Analysis
	1735-Z Commission Findings
	Email Abdul Hadwani

	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1734-Z_Vitruvian West Phase I
	Att1_1734-Z Plans
	13514-A201-zoning CHECKLIST-A201
	13514-A301
	13514-A302
	13514-A303
	13514-A304
	13514-A305
	13514-A306
	13514-A307
	13514-A308
	13514-A410
	13514-A411
	13514-A412
	13514-A413
	13514-A414
	13514-A420
	13514-A421
	13514-A422
	13514-A510
	13514-A801
	13514-A802
	13514-A811
	13514-A812

	Att2_1734-Z Staff Report
	1734-Z P&Z Packet
	1734-Z Map
	1734-Z Staff Report
	1734-Z Land Use Analysis

	1734-Z Commission Findings

	Att3_Ordinance
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1727-Z_Brookhaven Village Shopping Center
	Att1_1727-Z Plans
	Vitruvian Shopping Center Site Plan
	Vitruvian Shopping Center Landscape Plan
	Vitruvian Shoping Center Elevation 1 of 2
	Vitruvian Shoping Center Elevations 2 of 2

	Att2_1727-Z Staff Report
	1727-Z P&Z Packet
	1727-Z Map
	1727-Z Staff Report
	1727-Z Land Use Analysis

	1727-Z Commission Findings

	Att3_Ordinance
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1729-Z_Addison Grove _ Block B
	Att1_1729-Z Conceptual Renderings
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1-1
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 - 2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 8-20160419
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 10-20160419

	Att2_1729-Z Site and Landscape Plans 
	Addison Grove Site Plan Zoning
	Sheets and Views
	1 Site Plan
	2 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block A
	3 Plans - Blocks - Block B
	4 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block C
	5 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block D
	6 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block E


	L0.0 Reference Plan L0
	L4.0 Landscape Plan
	L4.1 Landscape Plan
	L4.2 Landscape Plan
	L4.3 Landscape Plan
	L4.4 Landscape Details
	L4.5 Landscape Details
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Front Elevation (3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Rear Elevation(3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Left Elevation (3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Right Elevation (3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Front Elevation 2(3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 (3) A-2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 (3) A-2.2pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Front ElevationA-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Rear Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Left Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Right Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Front Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 A-2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 A-2.2pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Front Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Rear Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Right Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Left Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Front Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Right Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 A-2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 A-2.2 pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 4
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	6.pdf
	7.pdf
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 4 A-2.pdf
	2.pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 8
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	6.pdf
	1.pdf
	2.pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 10
	2.pdf
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	1.pdf


	Att3_1729-Z Block B Floor Plans and Building Elevations
	Addison Grove Site Plan Zoning
	Sheets and Views
	1 Site Plan
	2 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block A
	3 Plans - Blocks - Block B
	4 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block C
	5 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block D
	6 Preliminary Plans - Blocks - Block E


	L0.0 Reference Plan L0
	L4.0 Landscape Plan
	L4.1 Landscape Plan
	L4.2 Landscape Plan
	L4.3 Landscape Plan
	L4.4 Landscape Details
	L4.5 Landscape Details
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Front Elevation (3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Rear Elevation(3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Left Elevation (3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Right Elevation (3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 Front Elevation 2(3) A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 (3) A-2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 1 (3) A-2.2pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Front ElevationA-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Rear Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Left Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Right Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 Front Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 A-2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 2 A-2.2pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Front Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Rear Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Right Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Left Elevation A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Front Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 Right Elevation 2 A-3
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 A-2
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 3 A-2.2 pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 4
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	6.pdf
	7.pdf
	BLOCK B - BUILDING 4 A-2.pdf
	2.pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 8
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	6.pdf
	1.pdf
	2.pdf

	BLOCK B - BUILDING 10
	2.pdf
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	5.pdf
	1.pdf


	Att4_1729-Z Staff Report
	1729-Z Map
	1729-Z Staff Report
	1729-Z Land Use Analysis
	1729-Z Commission Findings

	Att5_Ordinance
	_Belt Line Road Underground Electrical Project Update
	Att1_Presentation

